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NON - CONFIDENTIAL

SECTION A
COMPANY STRUCTURE AND OPERATIONS

This section requests information relating to company details and financial reports.
A-1 Identity and communication

Please nominate a person within your company who can be contacted for the
purposes of this investigation

Head Office:
Name: Chidchanok Vipavasupakorn
Position in the company: International Business Manager
Company name: Tipco Foods Public Company Ltd (“Tipco”)
Address: Tipco Tower 28" Floor
118/1 Rama 6 Road
Samsen Nai, Phayathai
Bangkok 10400, Thailand
Telephone number: (662) 273 6200 ext. 6803
Facsimile number: (662) 271 1600, 271 4304

Email address of contact person: chidchanok@tipco.net

factory:
Name of contact person: Chidchanok Vipavasupakorn
Address: Tipco Tower 28" Floor

118/1 Rama 6 Road
Samsen Nai, Phayathai
Bangkok 10400, Thailand

Telephone number: (662) 273 6200 ext. 6803

Facsimile number: (662) 271 1600, 271 4304

Email address of contact person: chidchanok@tipco.net

A-2 Representative of the company for the purpose of assessment

If you wish to appoint a representative to assist the company in this investigation,
provide the following details:

Name: Roger D Simpson & Associates Pty Ltd
Address: Level 1, 2 Mercantile Dock

Port Adelaide

South Australia 5015, Australia
Telephone: +61 8 8447 3699
Facsimile number: +61 8 8447 2661

E-mail address of representative: roger @ panpac.biz
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A-3 Company information

i

What is the legal name of your business? What kind of entity is it (e.g. company,
partnership, sole trader)? Please provide details of any other business names that
your company uses to export and/or sell goods.

e Tipco Foods Public Company Limited
¢ Public company
¢ No other business names

Who are the owners and/or principal shareholders?

Provide details of shareholding percentages for joint owners and/or principal
shareholders. (List all shareholders able to cast, or control the casting of, 5% or
more of the maximum amount of votes that could be cast at a general meeting of
your company).

Refer to p. 75 of the enclosed Annual Report 2011

If your business is a subsidiary of another company, list the principal shareholders
of that company.

N/A

If your parent company is a subsidiary of another company, list the principal
shareholders of that company.

N/A

Provide a diagram showing all associated or affiliated companies and your
company’s place within that corporate structure.

N/A

Are any management fees/corporate allocations charged to your company by your
parent or related company?

N/A

Describe the nature of your company’s business. Explain whether your company is
a producer or manufacturer, distributor, trading company, etc.

Refer to p. 55 of the enclosed Annual Report 2011

If your company does not perform all of the following functions in relation to the
goods under consideration, then please provide names and addresses of the
companies which perform each function:

- produce or manufacture

- sell in the domestic market

- export to Australia, and

- export to countries other than Australia.
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If your business does not perform all of these functions, please provide names and
addresses of the companies which perform each function.

Tipco performs all of the functions in relation to the goods under
consideration (GUC) other than selling into the domestic market.

9. Provide your company’s internal organisation chart. Describe the functions
performed by each group within the organisation.

Refer to attachment A-3.9

10.  Provide a copy of your most recent company’s annual report, together with any
relevant brochures or pamphlets on your company’s activities.

Annual Report 2011 and product brochure are enclosed.
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A-4 General accounting/administration information

1.

Indicate your accounting period.

January — December

Indicate the address where the financial records are held.

Head office per A-1 above

Please provide the following financial documents for your most recently completed
financial year plus all subsequent monthly, quarterly or half yearly statements:

- chart of accounts;

- audited consolidated and unconsolidated financial statements (including all
footnotes and the auditor’'s opinion); and

- internal financial statements, income statements (profit and loss reports), or
management accounts that are prepared and maintained in the normal course
of business for the goods under investigation.

These documents should relate to:
- the division or section/s of the business responsible for the production and
sale of the goods under investigation, and
- the company.

. Refer to the enclosed Annual Report for the audited financial
statements for 2011 (2012 not yet available).

. At attachment A-4.3 are the following -
— Chart of accounts; and
— Internal balance sheet and income statement for the period
January — September 2012

If you are not required to have the accounts audited, please provide the unaudited
financial statements for your most recently completed financial/calendar year,
together with your company’s taxation returns. Any subsequent monthly, quarterly
or half yearly statements should also be provided.

N/A

Do your accounting practices differ in any way from the generally accepted
accounting principles in Greece? If so, provide details.

Do not differ
Describe:

The significant accounting policies that govern your system of accounting, in
particular:
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- the method of valuation for raw material, work-in-process, and finished goods
inventories (e.g. last in first out —LIFO, first in first out- FIFO, weighted
average);

Weighted average

- costing methods, including the method (e.g. by tonnes, units, revenue, direct
costs etc) of allocating costs shared with other goods or processes (such as
front office cost, infrastructure cost etc);

By production quantity

- valuation methods for damaged or sub-standard goods generated at the
various stages of production;

Specific expense item in income statement
- valuation methods for scrap, by products, or joint products;

Scrap (peel and tinplate) is sold at market value and the income is
netted out of material cost. No by-products or joint products.

- valuation and revaluation methods for fixed assets;

Depreciated cost — refer to attachment 3 to the audited financial
statements in p. 152-153 of the enclosed Annual Report

- average useful life for each class of production equipment and depreciation
method and rate used for each;

Refer to note 5.7 to the audited financial statements of the enclosed
Annual Report

- treatment of foreign exchange gains and losses arising from transactions;

Refer to note 5.13 to the audited financial statements of the enclosed
Annual Report

- treatment of foreign exchange gains/losses arising from the translation of
balance sheet items;

Refer to note 5.14 to the audited financial statements of the enclosed
Annual Report

- inclusion of general expenses and/or interest;

Included in administrative and finance expenses in income statement
- provisions for bad or doubtful debts;

Refer to note 9 to the audited financial statements in the Annual Report
- expenses for idle equipment and/or plant shut-downs;

Included in the cost of manufacture as a fixed cost
- costs of plant closure;

Included in the cost of manufacture as a fixed cost
- restructuring costs;

N/A
- by-products resulting from your production process; and

N/A
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- effects of inflation on financial statement information.
N/A
In the event that any of the accounting methods used have changed since your most

recent financial year provide an explanation of the change, the date of change, and the
reason for it.

A-5 Income statement

Please fill in the table — A-5 Income Statement. It requires information concerning all
products produced and for the goods.

Please explain how costs have been allocated.

This information will be used to verify the completeness of cost data that you provide in
Section G. If, because of your company’s structure, the allocations would not be helpful
in this process, please explain why this is the case.

Note: if your financial information does not permit presentation of the information in
accordance with the table, please present the information in a form that closely matches
the table.

Refer to attachment A-5

A-6 Sales

State your net turnover (after returns and all discounts), and free of duties and taxes. Use
the currency in which your accounts are kept.

Prepare this information in the format shown in the table at A-6 Turnover.

This information will be used to verify the cost allocations to the goods under
consideration in Section G.

Also, you should be prepared to demonstrate that sales data shown for the goods is a
complete record by linking total sales of these goods to relevant financial statements.

Refer to attachment A-6
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SECTION B
SALES TO AUSTRALIA (EXPORT PRICE)

This section requests information concerning your company’s export practices and prices
to Australia. Costs incurred beyond ex-factory should be included. Export prices are
usually assessed at FOB point, but Customs and Border Protection may also compare
prices at the ex factory level.

Prices should be reported of all of the goods exported by your company to Australia
during the period of investigation.

The invoice date will normally be taken to be the date of sale. If your company considers:

the sale date is not the invoice date (see ‘date of sale’ column in question B4 below);
and

an alternative date should be used when comparing export and domestic prices.

Your company must provide Information in Section D on domestic selling prices for a
matching period covering the dates of sale of the exported goods - even if doing so
means that such domestic sales data predates the commencement of the investigation
period.

B-1 Please provide the following information in relation to the shipments of the goods
to Australia during the period of investigation:

« Contact details and trade leve! || I

B-2 Please provide also the following information:

(a) Describe how the goods are sent to Australia, including a diagram if
required.

By container vessel from Bangkok or Leam Chabang port.

(b) Identify each party in the distribution chain and describe the functions
performed by them. Where commissions are paid indicate whether it is a
pre or post exportation expense having regard to the date of sale.

e > N - .

Note: is a Thai selling agent to whom

Tipco pays a commission
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(c) Explain who retains ownership of the goods at each stage of the
distribution chain. In the case of any DDP sales, explain who retains
ownership when the goods enter Australia.

ownership is transferred to ||} ]S 2t FOB port of

shipment

(d) Describe any agency or distributor agreements or other contracts entered
into in relation to the Australian market (supply copy of the agreement if
possible).

N/A

(e) Explain in detail the process by which your company negotiates price,
receives orders, delivers, invoices and receives payment. If export prices
are based on price lists supply copies of those lists.

Enquiry from [ E;

Price offer by Tipco;
Negotiation between Tipco and :
Sales confirmation from
(f) State whether your company is related to any Australian customers. Give
details of any financial or other arrangements (e.g. free goods, rebates,

or promotional subsidies) with customers in Australia (including parties
representing either your company or Australian customers).

N/A

B-3 Do your company’s export selling prices vary according to the distribution
channel identified? If so, provide details. Real differences in trade levels are
characterised by consistent and distinct differences in functions and prices.

N/A

B-4 Using the format shown in the table at B-4 Australian sales, list all shipments
(i.e. transaction by transaction) to Australia of the goods under consideration in
the period of investigation. The notes at the bottom of the table provide an
explanation of the terms used by Customs and Border Protection.

The following additional definitions should be noted:

FOB export price: An FOB export price must be calculated for each shipment -
regardless of the shipping terms. FOB price includes inland transportation to the
port of exportation, inland insurance, handling, and loading charges. It excludes
post exportation expenses such as ocean freight and insurance. Use a formula to
show the method of the calculation on each line of the export sales spreadsheet.

Ocean freight: as ocean freight is a significant cost, it is important that the actual
amount of ocean freight incurred on each export be reported. If estimates are
made, your company must explain the reasons and set out the basis - estimates
must reflect changes in freight rates over the investigation period. Freight
allocations must be checked for consistency.
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All of the costs in the table are further explained in Section E-1.
Refer to attachment B-4

B-5 If there are any other costs, charges or expenses incurred in respect of the exports
listed above that have not been identified in the table above, add a column (see
‘other factors’ in question B-4) for each item, and provide a description of each
item.

N/A

B-6 For each type of discount, rebate, and allowance offered on export sales to
Australia:

- provide a description; and
- explain the terms and conditions that must be met by the importer to
obtain the discount.

Where the amounts of these discounts, rebates etc are not identified on the sales
invoice, explain how the amount has been calculated shown in the response to
question B4.

N/A

B-7 If your company has issued credit notes (directly or indirectly) to Australian
customers, in relation to the invoices listed in the detailed transaction by
transaction listing in response to question B4, provide details of each credit note if
the credited amount has not been reported as a discount or rebate.

N/A

B-8 If the delivery terms make your company responsible for arrival of the goods at an
agreed point within Australia (e.g. delivered duty paid), insert the information in the
relevant columns in table B-4 Australian Sales.

N/A

B8-9 Provide a complete set of all of the documentation relevant to two sample export
sales. For example:

- the importer's purchase order, order confirmation, and contract of sale;

- commercial invoice;

- bill of lading;

- export permit;

- freight invoices in relation to movement of the goods from factory to
the port of loading;

- overseas freight invoices;

- marine insurance expenses; and

- letter of credit, and bank documentation, proving payment.

Refer to attachment B-9
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SECTION C
EXPORTED GOODS & LIKE GOODS

Fully describe all of the goods your company has exported to Australia for arrival
during the period of investigation. Include specification details and any technical
and illustrative material that may be helpful in identifying, or classifying, the
exported goods.

List each product type of the good exported to Australia. This should cover all
product types listed in the table B-4 Australian sales — see section B of this
questionnaire.

As above

If your company sells like goods on the domestic market, for each product type
that your company has exported to Australia during the investigation period, list
these like goods sold domestically, and provide a detailed explanation of the
differences where those goods sold domestically (i.e. the like goods — see
explanation in glossary) are not identical to the goods exported to Australia.

No domestic sales of FSI pineapple

Please provide any technical and illustrative material that may be helpful in
identifying or classifying the goods that your company sells on the domestic
market.

See enclosed product brochure
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SECTION D
DOMESTIC SALES

This section is not applicable as there were no domestic sales of FSI
pineapple during the review period
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SECTION E
FAIR COMPARISON

Section B sought information about the export prices to Australia and Section D sought
information about prices on your company’s domestic market for like goods (i.e. the
normal value).

Where the normal value and the export price are not comparable adjustments may be
made. This section informs your company of the fair comparison principle and asks to
quantify the amount of any adjustment.

As prices are being compared, the purpose of the adjustments is to eliminate factors that
have unequally modified the prices to be compared.

To be able to quantify the level of any adjustment, it will usually be necessary to examine
cost differences between sales in different markets. Customs and Border Protection must
be satisfied that those costs are likely to have influenced price. In practice, this means
that the expense item for which an adjustment is claimed should have a close nexus to
the sale. For example, the cost is incurred because of the sale, or because the cost is
related to the sale terms and conditions.

Conversely, where there is not a direct relationship between the expense item and the
sale a greater burden is placed upon the claimant to demonstrate that prices have been
affected, or are likely to have been affected, by the expense item. In the absence of such
evidence Customs and Border Protection may disallow the adjustment.

Where possible, the adjustment should be based upon actual costs incurred when
making the relevant sales. However, if such specific expense information is unavailable,
cost allocations may be considered. In this case, the party making the adjustment claim
must demonstrate that the allocation method reasonably estimates costs incurred.

A party seeking an adjustment has the obligation to substantiate the claim by relevant
evidence that would allow a full analysis of the circumstances, and the accounting data,
relating to the claim.

Where an exporter has knowledge of the material substantiating an adjustment claim that
material is to be available at the time of the verification visit. Customs and Border
Protection will not consider new claims made after the verification visit.

" E-1 Costs associated with export sales

(These cost adjustments will relate to your company’s responses made at question
B-4, ‘Australian sales’)

1. Transportation

Explain how your company has quantified the amount of inland transportation
associated with the export sale (‘Inland transportation costs’). Identify the
general ledger account where the expense is located. If the amount has been
determined from contractual arrangements, not from an account item, provide
details and evidence of payment.
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Inland transportation costs included in attachment B-4 are actual costs
incurred for each shipment

2. Handling, loading and ancillary expenses

List all charges that are included in the export price and explain how they have
been quantified (‘Handling, loading & ancillary expenses’). Identify the general
ledger account where the expenses are located. If the amounts have been
determined using actual observations, not from a relevant account item, provide
details.

The various export related ancillary costs are identified in the table at question B4,
for example:

- terminal handling;

- wharfage and other port charges;

- container taxes;

- document fees and customs brokers fees;
- clearance fees;

- bank charges;

- letter of credit fees; and

- other ancillary charges.

Handling and other costs included in attachment B-4 are all actual costs, other
than inland freight, incurred in the movement of the goods from factory to FOB.
They include shipping, port and THC charges.

3. Credit

The cost of extending credit on export sales is not included in the amounts
quantified at question B4. However, Customs and Border Protection will examine
whether a credit adjustment is warranted and determine the amount. Provide
applicable interest rates over each month of the investigation period. Explain the
nature of the interest rates most applicable to these export sales for example,
short term borrowing in the currency concerned.

If your company’s accounts receivable show that the average number of collection
days differs from the payment terms shown in the sales listing, and if export prices

are influenced by this longer or shorter period, calculate the average number of
collection days. See also item 4 in Section E-2 below.

There is no credit cost |

4. Packing costs

List material and labour costs associated with packing the export product.

If applicable, describe how the packing method differs from sales on the domestic
market, for each model.

Report the amount in the listing in the column headed ‘Packing’.
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No adjustment for packing cost is necessary as the cost would be the same
if there were domestic sales

8. Commissions

Where any commissions have been paid in relation to the export sales to
Australia:

- provide a description; and
- explain the terms and conditions that must be met.

Report the amount in the sales listing in question B-4 under the column headed
‘Commissions’. Identify the general ledger account where the expense is located.

The sales reported in attachment B-4 were through Thai selling agent
* who is paid a commission of % of the FOB

value

6. Warranties, guarantees, and after sales services

Where these costs occur, show relevant sales contracts. Show how your company
calculated the expenses (‘Warranty & guarantee expenses’ and ‘Technical
assistance & other services’), including the basis of any allocations. Include a
record of expenses incurred. Technical services include costs for the service,
repair, or consultation. Where these expenses are closely related to the sales in
question, an adjustment will be considered. Identify the ledger account where the
expense is located.

N/A

74 Other factors

There may be other factors for which an adjustment is required if the costs affect
price comparability — these are identified in the column headed “Other factors”.
For example, other variable or fixed selling expenses, including salesmen’s
salaries, salesmen’s travel expenses, advertising and promotion, samples and
entertainment expenses.

Your consideration of questions asked at Section G, concerning domestic and
export costs, would have alerted you to such other factors.

N/A
8. Currency conversions

In comparing export and domestic prices a currency conversion is required.
Fluctuations in exchange rates can only be taken into account when there has
been a ‘sustained’ movement during the period of investigation (see article 2.4.1 of
the WTO Agreement). The purpose is to allow exporters 60 days to adjust export
prices to reflect ‘sustained’ movements. Such a claim requires detailed information
on exchange movements in your company’s country over a long period that
includes the investigation period.
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N/A
E-2 Costs associated with domestic sales

This sub-section is not applicable as there were no domestic sales of FSI
pineapple during the review period.
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SECTION F
EXPORT SALES TO COUNTRIES OTHER THAN AUSTRALIA
(THIRD COUNTRY SALES)

Your company’s response to this part of the questionnaire may be used by Customs and
Border Protection to select sales to a third country that may be suitable for comparison
with exports to Australia.

Sales to third countries may be used as the basis for normal value in certain
circumstances. Customs and Border Protection may seek more detailed information on
particular third country sales where such sales are likely to be used as the basis for
determining normal value.

F-1  Using the column names and column descriptions in the table F-1 Third Country,
provide a summary of your company’s export sales to countries other than
Australia.

Refer to attachment F-1

F-2 Please identify any differences in sales to third countries, which may affect their
comparison to export sales to Australia.

Different products, different terms and conditions of sale, different volumes,
different customer relationships and different market conditions
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SECTION G
COSTING INFORMATION AND CONSTRUCTED VALUE

The information that your company supplies in response to this section of the
questionnaire will be used for various purposes including:

— testing the profitability of sales of like goods on the domestic market;

— determining a constructed normal value of the goods — i.e. of the goods exported to
Australia; and

— making certain adjustments to the normal value.

Your company will need to provide the cost of production of both the exported goods (the
goods) and for the like goods sold on the domestic market. Your company will also need
to provide the selling, general, and administration costs relating to goods sold on the
domestic market: the finance expenses; and any other expenses (e.g. non-operating
expenses not included elsewhere) associated with the goods.

In the response please include a worksheet showing how the selling, general, and
administration expenses; the finance expenses; and any other expenses have been
calculated.

If, in response to question B4 (Sales to Australia, Export Price) your company:

e reported that the date of sale is not the invoice date and considers that this alternative
date should be used when comparing domestic and export prices, and

e provided information on domestic selling prices for a matching period as required in
the introduction to Section D (Domestic Sales)

cost data over the same period as these sales must be provided even if doing so means
that such cost data predates the commencement of the investigation period.

At any verification meeting your company must be prepared to reconcile the costs shown
to the accounting records used to prepare the financial statements.

G-1. Production process and capacity

e Describe the production process for the goods. Provide a flowchart of the process.
Include details of all products manufactured using the same production facilities as
those used for the goods. Also specify all scrap or by-products that result from
producing the goods.

Refer to attachment G-1

G-2. Provide information about your company's total production in the table G-2
Production.

Rather than showing a ‘name-plate’ optimal capacity it is more meaningful to show
the maximum level of production that may reasonably be attained under normal
operating conditions. For example assuming: normal levels of maintenance and
repair; a number of shifts and hours of operation that is not abnormally high; and a
typical production mix.
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Refer to attachment G-2

Cost accounting practices

Outline the management accounting system that your company maintains and
explain how that cost accounting information is reconciled to your company’s
audited financial statements.

Tipco maintains a ‘|l computerised system for both cost and financial
accounting

Is your company’s cost accounting system based on standard (budgeted) costs?
State whether standard costs were used in the responses to this questionnaire. If
they were state whether all variances (i.e. differences between standard and

actual production costs) have been allocated to the goods - and describe how
those variances have been allocated.

No - based on actual costs

Provide details of any significant or unusual cost variances that occurred during
the investigation period.

N/A

Describe the profit/cost centres in your company’s cost accounting system.
Refer to attachment G-3

For each profit/cost centre describe in detail the methods that your company
normally uses to allocate costs to the goods under investigation. In particular
specify how, and over what period, expenses are amortised or depreciated, and
how allowances are made for capital expenditures and other development costs.

By production quantity

Describe the level of product specificity (models, grades etc) that your company’s
cost accounting system records production costs.

Product category, eg canned pineapple, fruit salad, juice concentrate, etc.

List and explain all production costs incurred by your company, which are valued
differently for cost accounting purposes than for financial accounting purposes.

N/A

State whether your company engaged in any start-up operations in relation to the
goods under consideration. Describe in detail the start-up operation giving dates
(actual or projected) of each stage of the start-up operation.

N/A
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9 State the total cost of the start-up operation and the way that your company has
treated the costs of the start-up operation it its accounting records.

N/A

G-4 Cost to make and sell on domestic market

There were no domestic sales of FSI pineapple during the review period

G-5 Cost to make and sell goods under consideration (goods
exported to Australia) to Australia

¢ Refer to attachment G-5

e Included in the cost to make and sell table at attachment G-5 are not just
costs to make and sell the product type included in shipments to Australia
during the review period but also other product types that Tipco intends to
export to Australia in the future

e The cost to make and sell at attachment G-5 are ex-factory and the SG&A
expenses included are based on the assumption that the goods had been
sold for home consumption in Thailand

G-6 Where there are cost differences between goods sold to the domestic market and
those sold for export, give reasons and supporting evidence for these differences.

N/A

G-7 Give details and an explanation of any significant differences between the costs
shown, and the costs as normally determined in accordance with your company’s
general accounting system. Reference should be made to any differences arising
from movements in inventory levels and variances arising under standard costing
methods.

N/A

G-8 In calculating the unit cost to make and sell, provide an explanation if the
allocation method used (e.g. number, or weight etc) to determine the unit cost
differs from the prior practice of your company.

N/A

G-9 Major raw material costs

List major raw material costs, which individually account for 10% or more of the
total production cost.

For these major inputs:
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» identify materials sourced in-house and from associated entities;
identify the supplier; and
. show the basis of valuing the major raw materials in the costs of production

that your company has shown for the goods (e.g. market prices, transfer
prices, or actual cost of production)

Where an associate of your company produces the major input, Customs and
Border Protection will compare the purchase price to a normal market price. If the
associate provides information on the cost of production for that input such cost
data may also be considered.

Normal market price is taken to be the price normally available in the market
(having regard to market size, whether the input is normally purchased at ‘spot
prices’ or under long term contracts etc).

The term associate is defined in section 269TAA of the Customs Act. Included in
that definition are companies controlled by the same parent company (a company
that controls 5% or more of the shares of another is taken to be an associated
company); companies controlled by the other company; and companies having the
same person in the board of directors.

If the major input is purchased from an integrated production process, detailed
information on the full costs of production of that input should be provided.

Just raw material (pineapple fruit) and tinplate account for 10% or more of

total production cost. Both are purchased from unrelated suppliers at market
prices
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SECTION H
EXPORTER'S DECLARATION

| hereby declare that Tipco Foods Public Co Ltd did, during the period of

investigation, export the goods under consideration and have completed the
attached questionnaire and, having made due inquiry, certify that the information
contained in this submission is complete and correct to the best of my knowledge

and belief.
Name : Roger Simpson
Signature : / e

Position in/

Company : Consultant

Date RO VRS
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SECTION 1
CHECKLIST

This section is an aid to ensure that all sections of this questionnaire have been
completed.

Section Please tick if responses
to all questions in that
section have been
provided

Section A — general information

Section B — export price

Section C — like goods

Section D — domestic price

Section E — fair comparison

Section F — exports to third countries

Section G — costing information

KIE R E R RN E

Section H — declaration

Electronic Data Please tick if a
spreadsheet has been
has been provided

INCOME STATEMENT

RN

TURNOVER - sales summary

AUSTRALIAN SALES - list of sales to Australia

DOMESTIC SALES - list of all domestic sales of
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2010
Year of
Challenges

Advancing through a series of challenges
from economic and political crises and
uncertainties presented by external factors
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wpporT 2011

DPCO LOODE PUBLIC COMPAIVY LIMUT 1L OF

2011

Year of
Strong Return

Stepping towards solid growth with
strength, professionalism and determination
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Financial Highlights

Unit : Thousand Baht

As of for the year ending 2011 2011 2010 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

31 December (Consolidated) | (Company) | (Consolidated) | (Company) | (Consolidated) | (Consolidated) | (Consolidated) (Consolidated)

Common Share

Per share Per value * 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Book value 4.99 3.44 4.25 3.14 4.13 3.96 3.81 2.95
Basic earnings per share 0.7121 0.3313 0.3045 (0.2694) 0.4272 0.71207 1.1593 0.8218
Diluted earnings per share 0.7121 0.3313 0.3045 (0.2694) 0.4272 0.1201 1.1593 0.8191

Operation Results (Thousand Baht)

Revenues from sale 4,825,056 2,455,900 4,713,779 2,511,870 4,457,005 5,125,967 4,365,948 3,701,545
Total Revenues 4,825,086 2,458,308 4,713,779 2,515,443 4,457,005 5,125,967 5,162,808 3,966,754
Gross Profit 1,550,260 405,613 1,181,897 56,074 1,253,577 1,553,712 1,082,172 1,168,254
Earning before interest and tax 463,593 221,950 235,713 (98,604) 306,960 271,386 856,483 498,888
Net Profit 359,939 159,878 178,759 (130,015) 206,754 70,224 552,619 394,189

Balance Sheets {Thousand Baht)

Current Assets 2,121,119 1,576,207 1,489,590 1,094,861 1,754,267 1,993,344 1,423,444 1,358,797
Total Assets 5,739,402 3,387,435 4,797,587 2,834,175 4,670,420 4,879,275 4,558,760 4,229,984
Current Liabilities 2,198,866 1,087,584 1,642,550 889,285 1,477,456 1,986,034 1,864,101 1,697,463
Total Liabilities 3,333,112 1,728,481 2,745,831 1,318,409 2,679,678 2,967,232 2,719,522 2,813,494
Issued and paid-up share capital 482,580 482,580 482,580 482,580 482,580 482,580 482,580 480,698
Shareholder’s equity 2,406,289 1,658,954 2,051,757 1,515,766 1,990,742 1,912,043 1,839,238 1,416,490

Financial Ratios

Gross Profit margin (%) 32.1% 16.5% 25.1% 2.2% 28.1% 30.3% 24.8% 31.6%
EBIT margin {%) 9.6% 9.0% 5.0% (3.9%) 6.9% 5.3% 19.6% 13.5%
; Net Profit margin {%) 7.5% 6.5% 3.8% (5.2%) 4.6% 1.4% 12.8% 10.6%
g Dividend Payout ratio %] 16.1% 36.2% 0.0% 0.0% 35.0% 224.8% 69.9% 42.6%
‘ Dividend yield (%) 3.0% 3.0% 0.0% 0.0% 3.1% 4.5% 11.4% 7.6%
; Return on Equity {%) 15.0% 9.6% 8.7% (8.6%) 10.4% 3.7% 30.4% 27.8%
f Return on Fixed assets (%)} 13.6% 17.2% 7.0% (14.8%) 8.8% 2.9% 23.3% 18.8%
g Return on Total assets {%) 6.3% 4.7% 3.7% (4.6%) 4.4% 1.4% 12.3% 9.3%
3 Time interest earned 4.9 4.2 4.1 (3.1) A.6 3.1 9.2 6.2
P/E as of Dec 31 5.3 1.3 13.9 (15.7) 11.2 40.8 6.2 8.5
Current ratio 1.0 1.4 0.9 1.2 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.8
Quick ratio 0.3 0.5 0.4 0.6 0.5 0.3 0.3 0.4
Debt-equity ratio 1.4 1.0 1.3 0.9 1.3 1.6 1.5 2.0

B S




2009

. Net Profit
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MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRLADY

Mrs. Anurat Tiamtan
Chairlady

The year 2011 was another challenging year with many obstacles and problems ranging from global economy
to natural disaster. The economic downturn, especially in the EU and the U.S had reduced our export volume.
The fluctuation of Thai Baht further reduced the export income. There were drought in Prachuapkhirikhan, the
biggest pineapple plantation area, but the historical damaging flood across the country. However, we were
able to achieve Baht 4,825 million income or a 2.4% growth from last year, with Baht 344 million net profit or
a 134% increase from last year. This net profit includes the realized profits of Baht 179 million from the

associated company. The Board of Directors will propose to the AGM to approve the dividend payment for 2011
at 0.12 Baht per share.

Domestic Beverage Business is the major contributor to the aforementioned growth. Although it was affected

by the severe flood and had an opportunity loss of sales for almost 2 months, but its revenue income had
increased by 16.9% from last year.

The Retail and Food Services Business grew by 21% from last year, despite receiving the same effect from the

flood. The growth could continue mainly from the strong branding building and the expansion of the branches
of the Squeeze Juice Bar.
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ulture and Plant Extract Business had earned 4% more income than last year. There was more harvesting
& ‘Hom Suwan’ pineapple for the fresh market sales. This new pineapple variety had been researched and
loped by the Company. it has strong aroma and sweet tasty taste, is golden yellow, and contains higher
in C than normal pineapple; and thus is well accepted by the consumers. TIPCO farm grows the pineapple
high attention of care concerning food safety towards the consumers as in our slogan; “Fresh from Farm with
ty in Mind” resulting in the Company receiving the Quality Certification from the Department of Agriculture,
try of Agriculture and Cooperatives. In addition, the animal feed from pineapple waste made constantly
me while sustainably eliminating the environmental problems from the factory's waste.

i the Export Business, the beverage export increased by 9%, but the export of canned pineapple and others
creased by 6%, mainly from the strategic focusing on the margin rather than the sales volume. The business
d turned around and made a net profit of Baht 160 million or 6.5% of revenue because of the improvement of
recovery yield from the fruits which reduced the fruit cost and well balancing selling price.

2011 Thai people have been faced with tremendous hardship from the most severe flood which lasted over
nonths. The Company had donated over 500,000 bottles of our own AURA mineral water and beverage to the
d Cross and another 1 million bottles of AURA mineral water to the Flood Relief Operation Center (FROC). The
mpany was overwhelmed to be able to ease the suffering of hardship living of the Thai people. Moreover,
Company had helped releasing the suffering of the communities around Wang Noi Factory with water and
ds. For our own employees and families who were flood victim, the Company had assisted with the relief

d of around 6.3 million Baht.

ing business, the company values and strictly follows Good Corporate Governance and Code of Conducts by
nicouraging and grooming these as the corporate culture, and continue updating with the current regulations.
he Company regularly improves the Corporate Environmental and Social Responsibility for better practices.
ven so, the Company constantly determines to maintain food management and food safety systems. All these
ractices ensured our sustainable business growth with peaceful living in the society.

n 2011, the Company had been recognized and certified with numbers of awards as follows: SET Awards 2011-Top
orporate Governance Report Award for the 6" year; rated by the National Corporate Governance Committee at
1% or "Excellent’, for four consecutive years, which is higher than the average rating of 88% among companies
n the SET 50 Index; the 2011 Annual General Shareholder Meeting was rated by the Thai investors Association
t96.75% or “excellence”, which is higher than the average rating of 88.9% among the listed companies; and
ne Environmental Good Governance Certificate and accredited the Standard for Corporate Social Responsibility
CSR-DIW B.E.2554) by the Department of Industrial Works, for two consecutive years. Furthermore, the
Company, has joined with other 26 companies, in declaration of intent in view of establishing private sector to
work in cooperation with the government, civil society, media, and international organization for decreasing
corruption in Thailand.

As year 2011 may have passed, the coming 2012 is anticipated to be more challenging due to worldwide increasing
economical, political and climate problems. However, we see potential high demand for healthy beverage
in Thailand and ASEAN countries, and the positive view of more worldwide demands for canned pineapple
products than supplies. In addition, the Company and its employees at all levels who thoroughly understand
and are aware of the highest importance of risk management, closely monitor and control every possible risk.
Moreover, there is regular improvement to reduce operating costs while maintaining the Company’s original
product benefits and quality policies. With all these, we strongly believe that the Company can maintain its
business competency and be able to deliver reasonable benefits to the stakeholders.

I'hope that the shareholders and other stakeholders have a better understanding and to some extent are satisfied
with our 2011 performance as we were able to counter some difficulties and obstacles with the good results.
On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to express our great appreciation to our management and
employees for devotion and contribution of tireless efforts at their highest capacity especially during the tough
and severe flood crisis, and thank our valued customers, shareholders, creditors and suppliers for their trust in
the Company and its products, which have helped Tipco to attain today’s success.
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P rofile: Board of Directors
1

Mrs. Anurat Tiamtan / Chairlady of the Board

Mrs. Anurat Tiamtan obtained her Bachelor's Degree of Science with Honours [Chemistry) from Kasetsart University
and Master’'s Degree of Science (Chemistry] from The American University, Washington D.C., USA. She previously
served as Managing Director of Tipco Foods PCL, and Full-time Lecturer at the Chemistry Department, Kasetsart University.
Currently, she is the Chairlady of several companies within the Tipco Group, an Advisor on AGRO-Industry for Kasetsart
University Alumni Association, and also a Graduate Member of the Thai Institute of Directors (10D).

2

Mr. Surachet Supsakorn / Director / Member of the Nomination & Remuneration Sub-Committee

Mr. Surachet Supsakorn obtained his Bachelor's Degree of Business Administration {Accounting) from Rajamangala
University of Technology Krungthep and his Master’s Degree of Business Administration (Finance] from Kasetsart
University. He was previously an Executive Manager of Thanomwongse Service Co., Ltd.; Special Lecturer at the Faculty
of Business Administration, Chandrakaserm Rajabhat University and at the Rajamangala University of Technology
Krungthep. Currently, he is the Chairman of the Audit Committee of United Paper PCL, and Deputy Managing Director of
Thanomwongse Service Co., Ltd. He is also the Director of Tipco F&B Co., Ltd. and a Fellow Member of the
Thai Institute of Directors (I0D].

3

Mzr. Somchit Sertthin / Director

Mr. Somchit Sertthin obtained his Bachelor's Degree of Business Administration from Babson College, Wellesley,
Massachusetts, USA. He was previously Director of the Bank of Asia, PCL, and held many senior executive positions
in the Banking Sector, i.e. the Continental Bank of Chicago and Chase Manhattan Bank, N.A., Taipei Branch. Currentty,
he is the Chief Executive Officer of Tipco Asphalt PCL., the Director in several companies within the Tipco Group,
and a General Member of the Thai Institute of Directors (10D).

4

Miss Roumsin Supsakorn / Director

Miss Roumsin Supsakorn obtained her Bachelor's Degree of Business Administration from Boston University, Boston,
Massachusetts, USA., and Master's Degree of Business Administration (Finance] from The American University,
Washington D.C., USA. She was previously Director of Tipco Asphalt PCL. and Director, and Director of Operations-
International Business Division, Tipco Foods PCL. She is a General Member of the Thai Institute of Directors (10D).

5

Mr. Viwat Limsakdakul / Managing Director

Mr. Viwat Limsakdakul earned two Bachelor's Degrees in Marketing and Finance & Banking from Assumption University, and
Master’s Degree of Business Administration from Oklahoma State University, Oklahoma, USA. His extended experiences
of over 25 years with various companies, such as Siam Media and Communication Co., Ltd., IBM Thailand Co., Ltd.,
a Joint Venture of Dow Chemicals Group /Siam Cement Group have widen his expertise in various functional areas

including finance, accounting, planning, marketing, information system, and operational management. He is currently
the Managing Director of the Tipco Food Group and also a Graduate Member of the Thai Institute of Directors {I0D).
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6

Dr. Asaniya Suwansirikul / Audit Director /
Chairman of the Nomination & Remuneration Sub-Committee

Dr. Asaniya Suwansirikul obtained her Bachelor's Degree in Financial and Banking Management from Thammasat
University, Master’s Degree in Management from Sasin Graduate Institute of Business Administration, Chulalongkorn
University, and Doctorate in Business Management from Suan Dusit Rajabhat University. She was formerly Executive

Vice President of the Somboon Group, Vice President Administration & HR Development and Director of Human
Resources Training Grand Hyatt Erawan and Director of Human Resources, ANA Grand Pacific Hotel. Additionally, she
held positions of Director of Human Resources and Training in many organizations. Currently, she is the
Management Consultant of the Somboon Group and a Graduate Member of the Thai Institute of Directors {I0D).

7

Mr Virat Phairatphiboon / Audit Director

Mr. Virat Phairatphiboon obtained his Bachelor's Degree of Science (Economics and Business Administration] from
Adams State College, Colorado, USA. and undertook Executive Development Program from Princeton University, USA.
He held such positions as Managing Director of the CIMIC Finance and Securities PCL., Executive Vice President-
Finance, Siam Motor Co., Ltd. and Credit Control Director of Chase Manhattan Bank N.A., Bangkok Branch.

At present, he is an Audit Director and a member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee,

Bank of Ayudhya PCL. He is also a Graduate Member of the Thai Institute of Directors (10D)

8

Mr. Chalit Limpanavech / Independent Director

Mr. Chalit Limpanavech obtained his Bachelor's Degree of Business Administration (Marketing) from Assumption
University and Master's Degree in Public Administration from Chulalongkorn University. He took an extended training course
in Special Program of Senior Marketing Management in the United Kingdom. He previously was an Executive Director

at Lintas (Thailand] Co., Ltd., an Audit Director of Chuo Senko Advertising (Thailand) PCL, Chairman of the Marketing
Management Group of the Thai Management Association, and Chairperson of Marketing Department, Faculty of Business
Administrations, Assumption University. He was also Advisor to the Deputy Minister of industry. Currently, he is the Dean of
the Faculty of Communication Arts, Assumption University and also a Graduate Member of the Thai Institute of Directors {I0D).

9

Mr. Prasob Snongjati / Chairman of the Audit Committee /
Member of the Nomination & Remuneration Sub-Committee

Mr. Prasob Snongjati obtained his Bachelor's Degree of Commerce (Accounting) from the University in Calcutta,
India, received Scholarship from The Netherlands' Government to undertake an Industrialization Program,
at The Hague, The Netherlands. He was awarded by the Asia Foundation to attend the Leadership Program at
Georgetown University, Washington, D.C., USA. His past experiences included Executive Vice President of Siam Media
and Communication Co., Ltd., Director and Chief Financial Officer of IBM Thailand Co., Ltd., Chief Executive Officer of
the Thai Management Association (TMA), Associated Judge of the Central Intellectual Property and international Trade
Court. Currently, serves as Chairman of infonet (Thailand) Limited, an Independent Director of Supalai PCL,
Vice Chairman of the Rogation Foundation, and a Graduate Member of the Thai Institute of Directors (10D).

10

Mr. Phicharn Sluckpetch / Secretary of the Board of Directors

Mr. Picharn Sluckpetch obtained both his Bachelor's and Master's Degree in Accounting from Thammasat University.
In addition to finance and accounting, his extended expertises were in various Local Laws and Regulations, especially
Thai Revenue Law and Regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand. He is also a Tax Auditor. At present, he is a
Senior Manager-Accounting & Internal Control of the Company. He attended the Company Secretary Program and the
Effective Minute Taking Program from the Thai institute of Directors {ion).
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P rofile: Senior Executives

1

Mr. Pornchai Phulsuksombati / Director of Business Development and Finance Support

Mr. Pornchai Phulsuksombati earned his Bachelor's Degree of Science, Bachelor's Degree of Doctor of Veterinary
Medicine and Master's Degree of Business Administration, all from Chulalongkorn University. His extended experiences
including production management, export marketing, procurement, and empty can sales. Currently, he is responsible
for searching strategic new business in order to add-on to operation; management of Accounting & Internal control,
Finance & Business Planning, Investor Relations, and Information Technology System. In addition,
he serves as Quality Management Representative {QMR) of several quality systems,
and Vice-Chairman of Business Risk Assessment Sub-Committee.

2

Mr. Chanchai Kanjanaratmanee / Operations Director-Beverage Business

L Mr. Chanchai Kanjanaratmanee obtained his Bachelor's Degree of Business Administration {Marketing) from
E Assumption University and Master's Degree of Business Administration {Marketing] from Thammasat University.
He has extensive experiences of over 24 years in operation and commercial management on medical and health
products, consumer products, and electronic goods, with several companies both in Thailand and overseas,
such as Gilltte Thailand Co., Ltd., and its Headquarter in Boston, USA., and Minor Group. He was the General Manager
of Phillips Lighting Co., Ltd. in Malaysia. Currently, he is responsible for business strategy, strategic planning,
and business planning for beverage operation in domestic and in ASEAN.

3

Mr. Peerapong Archawapongsawat / Senior Manager-Retail Business and Food Services

Mr. Peerapong Archawapongsawat obtained his Bachelor's Degree in marketing from Assumption University and
Master's Degree in International Business from University of New Orleans, USA. He has experience in product
managerment, marketing through modern trade and food service as well as new business development. Presently,
he is responsible for retail business and food services management including analyzing new opportunity for the
company’s expansion, especially in out-of-home consumption business.

4

Mr. Napat Supsakorn / Operations Director-Fruit and Vegetables Businesses,

Mr. Napat Supsakorn obtained his Bachelor’s Degree of Science with Honours (Computer Science with Management)
from Royal Holloway and Bedford New College, and Master's Degree of Science (Analysis, Design and Management
of Information Systems) from The London School of Economics and Political Science, both from University of London,
United Kingdom. He gained marketing and sales experiences from various leading international companies,
such as IBM Thailand Co., Ltd., and SAS Software (Thailand) Co., Ltd., and was previously assigned as Food Group’s
Business Support Director. Currently, he is responsible for business strategy, strategic planning,
business planning for sales/marketing/ services/customer satisfactions, and new product and market development.
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Beverage Business - The Challenges

" TIPCO continues to grow in the beverage business while strategically focusing on product quality and innovative
new product development process through its professional R&D tearn. As a result, TIPCO was able to strengthen
its brand while focusing on the planned strategy and continues to be a trusted brand by consumers.

in 2011, beverage industry growth was negatively affected by multiple uncontrollable risk factors including
political unrest, severe drought, earth quake in Japan (1 quarter 2011), La Nina weather pattern and
nationwide flooding (3rd quarter to 4th quarter]. Despite these negative impacts, the beverage industry was able to
maintain its growth rate at 5% while TIPCO itself was able to outgrow the market at a healthy growth rate of 7%.

100% fruit juice made up over 70% of TIPCO's revenue in 2011 and 100% fruit juice continues to maintain its market
leading position at 42-45% share. With focus in R&D and flavor development, Tipco was able to outperform its
competitor in the 9 out of 10 flavors. The category include Tangerine, Sai Num Phueng orange, Shogun orange,
Pomegranate, red grape, and mix vegetable. In addition TIPCO co-develop with Suntory 3 flavors of ready to drink
green tea including honey lemon, original and Sakura under the brand "MIRAI". The key differences of MIRAI
from its competitor products include genuine quality green tea flavor and authentic aroma. In the 2nd quarter of
2011, TIPCO launched two new product lines inctuding “Super Fruit Essence”, a highly concentrate Prune juice,
and TIPCO Nature up Beauty Light and Beauty Shine, a multigrain milk drink with sesame. The highlight of new
product in 2011 belongs to “Tipco Fruit Plus”, which is the world first juice filled with aloe particulate. Tipco
Fruit Plus was launched in December with [4] flavors including [white grape, apple, orange and mixed fruits].

During the nationwide flood crisis bottled water demand spiked up which drove up the sales of “Aura” mineral
water over 20%. Since Aura bottling facility in Chiangmai was not affected by the flood, TIPCO was able to
increase production to ease the bottled water shortage. As part of TIPCO corporate social responsibility activity,
TIPCO donated 1,000,000 bottle of Aura as a flood relief effort.

TIPCO continues its plan to expand into ASEAN which saw its export sales rose over 25% over the past year.
TIPCO has been focusing in Indonesia due its large and growing market in the area and currently account for
10% of TIPCO export sales.

In 2011 production team continued to improve machine efficiency and lower production cost by utilizing the
latest technology. TIPCO installed new machine to expand capacity and support future growth.

4 Overall TIPCO's growth was negatively impacted from multiple natural disasters especially from the heavy flooding

' at the end of the year. New product launching and communication plan for 4th quarter had to be delayed until 1¢
quarter 2012. However TIPCO view that the end of 2011 delay allow us to launch a full fledge summer campaign
in 2012 which will drive the growth according to the long term business plan.
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ruit and Vegetables Business - The Progression

2011 started with a severe drought which carried over from 2010 which is 3 signal that pineapple raw material
problem has no end in sight. However as the severe weather pattern unexpectedly ended in March, pineapple
shortage situation also reversed. The unpredictable weather pattern turned oyt to be a positive factor for the
business in 2011. In addition to the favorable raw material situation, the pineapple export market in Middle East,
Asia, Europe and USA also picked up.

Middle East became a key contributor to our performance last year. Despite the political unrest in the Middle East
which dampened the demand for imported canned goods, the Middle East market still grew at an impressive
rate of 50% over 2010 in terms of value. Asia market grew at a healthy rate of 25% over 2010 in terms of value
with the growth driver coming from strong aloe demand. The high raw material cost in early 2011 contributed
to a healthy product price which contributed to a positive performance in USA and Europe.

In 2011, production team was able to commence production of canned fryit juice line which was certified by
GMP/HACCP and BRC. We were able to produce and export various fruit Juice including coconut juice to various
markets including Asia, Middle East, USA and Canada. In addition production was able to increase the capacity
of pineapple juice concentrate from 77 ton/hr to 105ton/r to support the higher canned pineapple production
volume. The additional capacity expansion will help reduce waste loss in production and debottleneck the
overall plant capacity. Production team also implemented the new process to collect and separate pineapple
residue by installing collection "SCREW The SCREW will separate pineapple residue into a Separate conveyor
belt from the peel after the juicing process and directly load the residue into the residue collection truck. The
SCREW allow the plant to reduce operating expense by reducing human labor which was previously required
for the residue separation and packaging and reduces drum loading accuracy problem.

With the strong production team, TIPCO is convinced that we can continue to develop new products and pack-
aging in the fruits processing business in 2012 and beyond.t we can continue to develop new products and
packaging in the fruits processing business in 2012
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" Retail Business and Food Service - The Steady Move

in 2011 Squeeze Juice Bar was negatively impacted from the nationwide flood. However the perseverance and
teamwork from all staff in every business unit made the impact minimal. Only 10 branches were closed for a
short period of time and no branch was damaged from the flood.

Overall retail outlet and foodservices continue to grow at a sustainable rate with new outlet opening
approximately 10-15 branches per year. At the end of 2011 there were over 67 Squeeze Juice Bar in operation.
Squeeze Juice Bar maintained its position as Thailand number one Premium Juice Bar for over 8 years.
2011 was the year that Squeeze Juice bar started to expand into provincial area to meet the demand of provinciat
consumers. Currently we operate in 6 provinces including Nakorn Ratchasima, Konkaen, Pitsanulok, Chonburi,
Prachuab and Songkla. We plan to cautiously continue the expansion into provincial area and choosing only
location with high potential.

With the strong health trend and increasing demand for healthy product, TIPCO firmly believe that Squeeze Juice
Bar will reach 100 branches in Bangkok and provincial area in the near future.-




OZz TIPCO OO PLUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED ANINUAL REPORYT 201 1

Agricultural and Plant - Extracts Business- The Business Drivers

In 2011 many positive factors pointed to a bright future for the agriculture and herbal extract business. Those
factors are consistent rain distribution and ability to adapt the planting process to better match the soil quatity
and surrounding environment. This led to a higher yield and consistent supply for the factory. In addition the
Hormsuwan pineapple (Aromatic gold) was able to enter into a wider market. With its own unigue taste profile
Hormsuwan was widely accepted thus resulted in significantly higher sales.

In the herb extract business, we were able to cultivate a relationship with a client who is one of Japan largest
herb extracting company. After two years of careful research and development we were able to refurbish the
factory and commission a commercial run successfully. We successfully extracted and exported fruit extract to
Japan at the end of the year. We expect that in 2012 we would be able to extract 2 additional products to the
same customer within the first gquarter.

In order to secure a foothold in the extracting business, since mid 2010 Tipco started a co research and
development project with a new client who is also one of Japan leading extracting company thus making the
project highly viable in the future.

In addition we also have multiple research and development projects which are considered national innovation
such as extracting Croton sublyratus Kurz. Croton sublyratus Kurz is one of best Thai herb for the treatment of
peptic ulcer. After 2 years of research on the effectiveness and safety of the extract we will start a commercial
production and sales by mid 2012. At the same time we will start selling a new herbal extract which has been
processed with powder particle technology. The technology eliminates extract limitation from mixing with food
and beverage by eliminating unwanted odor, precipitation, solubility and stability. Tipco will be the one of the
early adopter to bring such high level innovation into commercial scale in Thailand.

It is clear that TIPCO will successfully expand the extracting business into multiple channel starting mid 2012.
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1R-THE BUSINESS DRIVERS

understand the importance of human resource because it is the most important cog that drives the
owth of an organization. In 2010 TIPCO's human resource policy was to develop core competency of the staff
ultaneously with improving working condition for all employees. In order to improve core competency of
i,employees at every level, we set up training and seminar and coaching for executives. In addition we also
cused on allowing emptoyees and executives to increase their exposure by visiting companies and exhibition

' 6th in and out of Thailand. The following are examples of exhibition and company visit.

s All senior executives visit Food Ingredients China 2011 in Shanghai China

e Fruits and Food Processing Director and staffs attended Anuga 2011 in Cologne Germany and Food

Hospitality Fair in Tehran Iran to introduce new products, market review and visit clients

e Extracting Director attended Winter Fancy Food Show 2011 in San Francisco USA to review the trend of

food and beverage market and also visit extracting factory in Hiroshima Japan

¢ Executives and beverage business research and development staff attended training session and factory

visit in Hiroshima Japan

¢ Aura plant manager and staff visited water filler company in Taiwan and visited bottling facility in Malaysia
which employed energy saving technology

In order to promote a better working condition, we implemented “Happy Work Place” project by continuously
hosting relevant events for all employee at all production site and head office in Bangkok. in addition we also

increased various benefits for both monthly and daily staff. During the nationwide flood, TIPCO also provided

support for staffs including temporary shelter, allowance for shelter, provided supplies for employees whose

house were flooded, and provided funds to repair staffs flooded home through “Friends Help Friends” project.
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SHARING & GIVING

2011 was a year where Thais and international community faced multiple natural disasters starting with
earthquake and tsunami in Japan and ending with nationwide flooding in Thailand. As a good corporate citizen,
TIPCO answered to the call and rose up to the task of alleviating the victim’s plight. TIPCO swiftly donated funds,
bottled waters and beverages through various organization and government entity to be distributed to those who
are in need both in Japan and Thailand. We coordinated close with Red Cross Thailand, Flood Relief Operation
Center (FROC}, Thai Army, Press community and various organizations. In addition Tipco Group's executives,
staff, and its partners created “Friend Help Friend” project to support the group flood affected staff and those
who are in need. The fund raising for the project include donation and charity auction. The company would
also like to thank its executives and staffs for sacrificing the entire New Year party budget to support those in
need through Friend Help Friend project. In addition we would also like to thank staffs who helped packed and
delivered supplies. The key donation in 2011 included the following:

Cash donation of 991,440 Baht to Red Cross for Tsunami victim

e Donation of 1,026,800 bottle of Aura bottled water (3,600,800 Baht] and Suntory Holdings Limited
Corporation donated 1,000,000 Baht to FROC

» Cash and Tipco beverage product donation in the amount of 3,753,760 Baht to those impacted by

nationwide flood

* Suntory Holding Limited Corporation donated beverage including Mirei greentean and Dakara Benefit in
the amount of 4,800,000 Baht through Princess Pa Foundation Thailand Red Cross

» Cash and supplies in the amount of 8,26,130 Baht through Friend Help Friend




TIPCO FOODS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED 025

'fLé,o participated in programs to support sustainable development of environmental, social and quality of
all factory and head office including the following:

Provided 81 scholarship (349,500 Baht] to staff's children who are outstanding scholar but lack funding
support

Prachuab factory supported “Recycling Center” by encouraging staffs to sell recyclable products to
~Recycling Center. The project is in line with the plan to encourage local community to support recycling
-within their community. The Recycling center increased its members by 364 and has approximately
50,000 Baht in working capital

Prachuab factory and SCG Public Company Limited with the budget of 80,000 Baht provided learning
~ center for herb processing for the production of multipurpose cleaning liquid.

Wang Noi factory provide reverse osmosis and UV treated water to supply clean drinking water to
surrounding communities

TIPCO Foods was the core sponsor in the "D Ambassador” with a budget of 3,000,000 Baht. The
D Ambassador Project vision is to support and encourage students at all educational level nationwide in

merit based activities. The D Ambassador project started was aired on Channel 3 TV during 5" February
2011 to 30th April 2011,
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] Million Bottles of Aura Mineral Water for Flood Relief

During Thailand's great flood crisis in 2011, finding clean drinking water proved to be the worst difficulty
for flood victims. Drinking water became very scarce during the flood mainly because water sources were
contaminated, drinking water and bottling plants were inundated and transportations were obstructed. Shortage
of drinking water which is essential for life became a national crisis and affected not only flood victims but also
general consumers and flood relief volunteers as drinking water shelves in a number of stores became empty.

Tipco, as the manufacturer of Aura natural mineral water, was greatly concerned about the hardship suffered
by the Thai people. Though we are a leading mineral water manufacturer in Thailand, our medium-sized
plant is located in the mountainous, remote area of Mae Rim, Chiang Mai. Qur attempts, which were initiated
in September 2010 when the flood first hit Thailand and continued throughout the crisis, to quickly deliver
mineral water for flood relief through provincial red cross chapters were inhibited by the flood. Against our will,
the deliveries proceeded slowly and could not sufficiently accommodate the needs of flood victims. However,
the “1 Million Bottles of Aura Mineral Water by Tipco for Thais” mission eventually met with success. With the
assistance from the Flood Relief Operations Command (FROC) and in collaboration with parties in Chiang Mai
which included the State Railway of Thailand, the Chiang Mai Provincial Land Transport Office, Nim See Seng
Transport 1998 Company Limited, the Chiang Mai Provincial Electricity Authority Office and the 33rd Military
Circle [Gavila Camp), 1 million bottles of Aura mineral water were transported to the Bang Sue train station and
subsequently delivered to the FROC for timely distribution to flood victims.

The most challenging obstacles and limitations in this mission were the production, in terms of production capacity
and package scarcity, and the market demand because bottled drinking water supply had to be spared from
commercial distribution and merchants’ demands had to be negotiated. With the heartfelt and deep concern for
the thirst suffered by flood victims, our staff at all levels tirelessly devoted their efforts and worked throughout
24 hours daily until all problems and obstacles were finally overcome.

Besides this mission, Tipco also donated approximately 1,200,000 bottles of Aura mineral water through the Thai
Red Cross Society, the Royal Thai Army, the mass media and other entities.

The happiness of giving and helping those in hardship and the opportunity to get through this crisis together
with all the Thai people are the greatest reward for all Tipco members.

From our Aura mineral-water Factory
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AWARD OF HONOR

In 2011, it was a tough year that TTPCO had to encounter and
pass obstacles and challenges for various businesses and because of
its commitment with key stakeholders of operational taskforces,
with firm undertaking of business operation ideologies of TIPCO
on Corporate Governance with excellence, social responsibility
and continuity, TIPCO therefore received a number of rewards,
certificates and honors as follows:

® The TIPCO Foods Public Company Limited had been assessed its
corporate governance in 2011, by the National Corporate Governance
Committee of Thailand, with its cumulative rates as 91% (Excellence]
in continuity for 4 years;

The TIPCO Foods Public Company Limited was rewarded the 2011
CSR-DIW Continuous Awards for 2 years and the 2011 CSR-DIW
Network Awards for industrial enterprise that has been assessed and
passed the standard criterion for social responsibility with sustainabitity
with its qualifications for I1SO 26000 accreditation from Department of
industrial Works, Ministry of Industry;

The TIPCO F&B Company Limited was granted the 2011 Excellent
Logistics Management Award, of Department of Primary Industries
and Mines, Ministry of industry;

The Factory in Prachubkirikhan province had been awarded the 2011
Reward of Good Governance for Environment, which obviously illus
trated that TIPCO can achieve the Criterion for Environmental
Management, with standardization and environmental friendly
management and creation of healthy neighborhood, from Department
of Industrial Works, Ministry of Industry;

® The Factory in Prachubkirikhan province had been certified with the
Standardization Accreditation of Thai Labour Management, 8001-2553
in primary completion, from Labour Protection and Welfare
Department, Ministry of Labour,

® The Factory in Prachubkirikhan province had been rewarded the 2011
Excellent Workplace Award, for Labour Relations and Welfare, from
Labour Protection and Welfare Department, Ministry of Labour;

® TIPCO has been continually granted a number of awards and

certifications on its quality and safety of foods, in continuity from 2011
as follows:

® The Factory in Prachubkirikhan province has been certified with the
Standardization Accreditations of 1S09001, 15022000, IFS, BRC, GMP
and HACCP;

The Factory in Chiang Mai province has been certified with the
Standardization Accreditations of 1509001, GMP and HACCP;

The Factory in Ayudhaya province has been certified with the
Standardization Accreditations of GMP and HACCP;
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sort of the Corporate Governance Sub-committee

ér responsibility of the Board of Directors is to perform the duties of the Corporate Governance Sub-
ittee with a determination to oversee all matters relating to good corporate governance and to guide and
e to the good management principles and guidelines set by the Securities Exchange of Thailand which is
with the international practice.

Company encourages working practices with good governance at all employee levels with utmost objectives
the shareholders, investors; customers and the stakeholders to have trust and confidence in the Company’s
ient management, transparency, accountability and fair to all related parties in order to add value and to
port a sustainable growth of the Company. The above objectives are in line with the Company's visions with
aim of sustainable growth, be able to compete, and be trustworthy to both local as well as international

011 the Company constantly conducted the orientation program of the good corporate governance and code of
duct handbook in order to communicate the Company’s policies on the subject to the management and every
{ of employees aiming at encouraging the employees to see the importance of good corporate governance
be aware of the responsibilities and adhere to the Company’s code of conduct, to create good corporate
yvernance culture within the Company. Besides, the Company has joined all kinds of anti-corruption activities
erefore, the result of the Employee Opinion Survey (E0S), shows the highest score of 4.63 (from total of 5.00}.

uch persistent practices of good corporate governance have earned the Company the 2011 SET Awards-
op Corporate Governance Report Award for the 5" year (2003-2006 and 2010} and in 2011, the Company was
lso rated by the National Corporate Governance Committee with the rate of 91% or the level "Excellent”, above
e average rating of 88% among other companies in the SET 50 Index. The Company is proud of its achievement
maintaining “Excellent” level for 4 consecutive years. In addition, the Company’s 2011 shareholders meeting
was rated by the Thai Investors Association with a 96.75% mark in the "Excellent”.

“Throughout 2011, the Company continued to carry on the activities and projects for the environment and the
_society especially the strong supports to the victims of natural disasters, starting from the earthquake and Tsunami
in Japan, and the mega-flood in many provinces in Thailand with money, juice and mineral water products.
in addition, Friends Help Friends (FHF) Project was organized to support and help both the employees and
people to relief their suffering from this flood disaster.

For Human Resources, the Company was focusing on the competency development together with the creating
and promoting of good working atmosphere. As the result of the Company systematic human resources
development process, TIPCO Foods Public Company Limited was recognized and awarded as 2011
Outstanding Company for Human Resources Planning and Development from the Department of Skill
Development, the Ministry of Labor.

This will enhance the Company in maintaining a sustainable growth together with sustainable living in peace
and harmony with the society and the environment, reflecting the true objectives of the Company’'s management
policies in good corporate governance is achieved.

AT Samhom

Mrs. Anurat Tiamtan
Chairlady of Corporate Governance Sub-Committee
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 CORPORATE GOVENANCE

TIPCO fully recognizes the importance of good corporate governance for transparency in all level of employees’
operations, TIPCO thus adopted the Stock Exchange of Thailand’s 2006 Guidelines of the Good Corporate
Governance for Public Companies whose 15 points were used as a guideline for the Company’s own corporate
governance and business code of conduct between the years 2002-2006 and with some revisions made in 2007
to be in line with guidelines set by the OECD (The Organization for Economic Co-operation and Development).
Furthermore, in 2010 TIPCO has revised its employees’ manual on good corporate governance and business
code of conduct with implement on the corporate organization aiming at more transparency, accountability and
efficiency measurement in business operations including setting clear business direction and good practices

in relation to all stakeholders. The above amendments were in line with the changing social and economic
environments as well as the new regulations and standards adopted. Moreover, the Company conducted meetings
on the content of revised manual at all establishments of the Food Group aiming at all employees’ full and clear
understanding on good corporate governance and business code of conduct in order to adhere and instill good
corporate governance culture in on-going practices for sustainable growth and to add value to all stakeholders.

The company’s Board of Directors comprises of the highly qualified and capable individuals with the strong
sense of self development according to the requirement of Thai Institute of Directors (I0D). The Board of Directors
participates in the formulation and approval process of the corporate vision, strategies, goals, business plans
and budget. The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing that management activities are efficiently
and effectively carried out in line with the determined business plans and budget. The Board of Directors and
Mmanagement executives have full responsibility concerning their duties to the shareholders. A system that
distinctly separates the duties and responsibilities between the Board of Directors and management executives
is set as well. Furthermore, this system is implemented to review and evaluate internal controls and risk
Management to an appropriate degree, within the greater framework of law, the corporate objectives and
regulations. This obligation extends to the resolution of shareholders’ meetings and protection of the company’s

interests based on the foundation of good corporate governance. In addition. the 4 subcommittees have
been established, namely: The Audit Committee, the compensation & Director/MD Search Subcommittee, the
Corporate Governance Subcommittee, and the Business Risk Assessment Subcommittee. These committees
comprise the Directors with qualifications and duties in accordance with the guidelines specified by the Stock
Exchange of Thailand. The duties and responsibilities between the Directors and management and between the
directors and major shareholders are clearly defined.

In 2011 the Company was annually evaluated by the National Corporate Governance Committee of Thailand and
received the total score of 91% or the “Excellent” ranking, for the 4" consecutive year, which is higher than the
average score of 88% among the companies in SET 50 Index. The evaluation showed that the company improved
over the previous year, in almost all of the 5 categories being rated, as follows:
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2011 - 2010
Rights of Shareholders 95% ?5%
Equitable Treatment of Shareholders 92% 92%
Stakeholders Rights 91% 7%
Information Disclosure and Transparency 94% 94%
Board of Directors’ Responsibility 86% 87%

Corporate Governance

In'2011, the Company had reviewed its five year (2011-2015] corporate vision, operational goals, strategies and
business plans in order to adjust them towards the present and future business environment. The new revised
vision would emphasize principally on customers’ trust in quality and innovation. In order to reach its target,
the company also focused on the management activities based on 4 perspectives: financial, customer, internal
process, and learning and growth of our human resource. In addition, the Company has incorporated its Critical
Success Factors and Excellence into the business operations, or in particular infused these into every sector’s
goal and individual's goal to improve the company's operational proceedings. In other words, this concept
brings the goals of every unit together within the organization, from the individual goal to the departmental,
divisional, and corporate goals, as well as improving and driving those goals to the major set target and vision.
In addition, the company determines various policies, such as quality policies focusing on the importance of
creating customer satisfaction by utilizing the combination factors of the personnel, operational process, safety,
environment, and society, this to drive the company continuously to create and encourage the spirit of business
conduct that serves as a good example to society and country. The Board of Directors has established the
Corporate Governance Subcommittee, comprising of all Directors of the company, and also formulated the policies
regarding the good corporate governance as absolute disclosed in the company’s annual report and website.
Moreover, the company encourages the development of good corporate governance as a clear concrete ideal,
by assimilating the employees with the organizational spirit in order to understand, maintain and prolong with
the codes of good corporate governance.

In 2007, the Corporate Governance Sub-Committee authorized the adoption of the principles of Good Corporate
Governance for Listed Companies in 2006 to monitor its business as follows:
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ns. Voting is conducted for each successive agenda item. No agenda item is added without informing
rs in advance; shareholders will be informed about the voting method prior to the beginning of the
irthermore, an opportunity is provided for clarification and debate prior to the voting for each agenda.
holders may exercise their voting rights, with the exception of certain shareholders having a stake
rticular agenda. For example; according to the agenda of Directors’ remuneration, the Director with

& or interest or benefit or related to the remuneration was obliged to refrain from voting. Since 2008,

rpany has disseminated its objectives and rules for the minor shareholders in order for them to have

unities to propose agenda items and nominees for committees via the company’s website. In 2011, the

ny held 1 general shareholders meeting of shareholders. The invitation letter contained general details of
genda, additional reasons, and potential impacts of the issues, accompanied with the Board of Directors’

éens_ This enables shareholders to comprehend better the details of each agenda and allowing better

med analysis and decisions. The minutes of each meeting are recorded accurately and completely, so that

hareholders can inspect those as required. The Company also offers shareholders additional alternatives:

from appointing a proxy to attend the meeting in their stead, the shareholders who are unable to attend in
on may transfer their rights to Independent Directors to vote on their behalf. The Board of Directors assigns

h priority for attending the Shareholder Meetings, except for unavoidable circumstances. All Directors have

fended in each Generat and Extraordinary meeting as well as the Company’s top management that has also
gularly and consistently been in attendance at these meetings.

e Minutes of Meetings contain a completed record of all significant details, such as the Directors in attendance,
e clarifications of the Chairman of the Board of Directors, Chairman of the Audit Committee, the President

and other relevant Directors. The Minutes of Meetings include the questions raised and opinions expressed by
shareholders; the method for voting and counting votes; the number of votes for, against or non-voting on an

ssue; and any other relevant information. The Minutes of Meetings are forwarded to the Stock Exchange of
Thailand within 14 days from the meeting date and are also posted on the Company’s website. This allows

shareholders to inspect their accuracy of resolutions, as well as matters debated or clarified at the meeting,
- and to give recommendation for any other details to be recorded before proposing the authorization of the said
Minutes at the next Shareholders’ Meeting.

The voting ballots and other key documents are systematically complied, verifiable, and referable.

The Company informs the meeting resolution through the news and information system of the Stock Exchange
of Thailand within 1 day after the meeting, which the resolution will identify as the result of meeting including

vote for, or against, or non-voting on each issue. This enables the Directors who did not have a chance to attend

the meeting to receive the meeting resolution swiftly

Regarding to the allocation of profits, the Company has the mechanism to ensure that shareholders will receive
any returns completely The Company in full. It has a clearly defined shareholding structure, with no double
stake-holding. However, the shareholding in the form of similar shareholder group with related business exists,

(TIPCO Asphalt Public Co., Ltd.}, comprising investment in ordinary shares with an equity stake of 24.33 percent.

Meanwhile, in matters of the related transactions, the Board of Directors has the authority to authorize such items.

Directors with any stake or interest in the authorization of such transactions are obliged to refrain from voting.
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Moreover, the Audit Committee has the authority to oversee that there is no conflict of interest among them. In
order to have the measures of overseeing the internal information against the use of personal gain, since 2004
the secretary of Board of Directors must be informed each time a movement of the shareholdings of Directors
and management, to replace the previous requirement for individual reporting. Furthermore, Directors and
management are required to disclose their shareholdings in the company in each Board of Directors’ meetings.

Roles of Stakeholders

The Company considers the importance of the rights of both internal and external stakeholders thus then the
“Business Operation Code of Conducts” has been set out to serve as a guideline in running the business. This
includes the fight against corruption, involvement in politics in a responsible way, equal and fair treatment
of stakeholders, responsibilities to the environment and society, and the practice according to labor laws,
respecting the rights of employees, as well as good practices of the 3 main parties; who are involved in the
operation and share interests in the Company, consisting of the management (including the Board of Directors,
Senior Executives, management, and officer at all supervisory level], employees, and major shareholders. In
particular, the code for management specifies guidelines regarding to 7 stakeholder categories: shareholders,
employees, customers, trading partners and/or creditors, competitors, the environment, and the society as a
whole. This Code of Conducts rests upon the ideals of quality and morality, while emphasizing on the process
of corporate governance to ensure that major shareholder groups do not interfere with the decision making
of management, which conducts itself with honesty and professionalism. The Company always realizes its
role as a member of society. Therefore, it formulates the policies in doing business, with the realization of the
responsibilities to society and environment. Personnel have been specifically designated for this purpose and
to support these policies. [Please refer to the policies concerning environmental and social responsibitity on the
Company’s website.] Examples of activities that support communities and environment include the company’s
patronage of schools located in the vicinity of its factories, or other schools as appropriate. The Company
provides educational scholarships, donates school supplies, or participates in the development of school faciljties.
Likewise the Company offers product donations to support activities of various government agencies, schools,
temples, and other organizations and communities in the neighboring areas. The Company is indeed careful as
well to ensure that there is no environmental impact to community environment in the vicinity of the factories.

Report on Environmental and Social Responsibilities

The Company has been doing business with the strong belief in responsibilities towards every group of
stakeholders and realized its role as a member of society. The Company also intends to take responsibilities
to environment and Thai society by which it will act as a good citizen who can live proudly among others.
The Company instills this idea which can be practical at the same basis concerning every employee at all

levels and in every entity, such as Board of Directors, Executive management, managers, commanding
officers, employees and other stakeholders. The policy documentation and rules of corporate responsibilities are
implemented and for any other interested groups to adopt constantly and seriously as operational guidelines in
every case of operation. It may be concluded that the business proceeding and operation with responsibilities
to environment and society is the key idea of all business stakeholders in TIPCO's food business groups as the
policy of “TIPCO developing business together with the environment and society”.
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ver, in order to manage and proceed with the Company's environmental and social operations efficiently
sistent with the determined policies, the Company has set up the Social and Environmental Committees
comprise of; representatives from management who is responsible for supporting and promoting the
ironment and society; Head of working committees, the working committees and secretaries of each factory
e headquarter. Their duties and responsibilities are as follows:

1. Propose to consideration: activities of environmental and social supports for government
organizations and communities where the factory is located:;

Coordinate and process the environmental and social activities in line of the approved budget;

Oversee, monitor, and arrange the activities for the factories environment management in compliance
with provisions, laws and related standards;

Be the center of public relations to promote those environmental and social activities via local media:

Implement annual activity plan and propose the budget for approval in order to support the
environmental and social projects;

Arrange other activities as to promote the Company’s good images .on environmental and social
aspects;

According to these duties, the "Environmental and Social Working Committee’ holds the meeting for planning,

ranging activities, monitoring, and reporting regularly management concerning the proceeding environmental
d social activities results. In 2011, the working committees in each factory and headquarters arranged the
environmental and social activities by emphasizing on providing assistances to and promotion for activities and
projects regarding His Majesty the King's Sufficiency Economy. This enabled the supported to carry on creating
sustainable environmental and social benefits for communities. The Company also focused on the employees’

;participations in such activities and, according to their proceeding performances, the working cormmittees on
environmental and social issues from every factory and the headquarters to carry on their duties and take their
sincere responsibilities for each activity in compliance with the Company’s policies and targets. The evaluation
of success could be measured by the indicators which have been derived: from the communities’ opinions

- and satisfaction survey, from the cooperation between communities and local administrative organizations in

arranging the environmental and social activities with the Company and its employees, and from the local
~ supports of promoting constantly the Company’s good images to the public.

Regarding the evaluation of the Community Satisfaction Level (CSL), in which the Company has surveyed
continuously, in 2011, from the target score of 4.46 out of the 5.00 scale which exceeding its expected scores
of 4.30, the Prachuap Khiri Khan Factory received a score of 4.44, which was higher than the score of previous
year of 4.41. The Chiang Mai Factory scored 4.50, lower than the previous score of 4.55, but higher than
average score. The Wang Noi Factory was scored 4.47, higher than the previous year's score of 4.03.
Consequently, the Company has assigned the related personnel to gather comments from the communities

and to make further corrections and improvements {see more information from the “Sustainable Social and
Environmental Responsibility” Section).
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Other stakeholders in the Company can directly contact the Board of Directors as well, regarding the accuracy
of the financial reports, shortcomings in internal control systems, or violation of law or ethics. They can

cornmunicate through the use of the provided telephone numbers and e-mail addresses, for each Director, as |
shown on the Company’s website.

Mareover, in recognition of stakeholders’ rights, recommendaticons have bean adopted in actual practice ang -

the Company has included the awareness as part of its frarework of the corporate vision, as follows:
“TIPCO is recognized in ASEAN as 3 trusted food company excelled in innovation and quality”

“Our goals are to attain Baht 10,000 Million by 2012, fulfilt custormer satisfaction. build on-going competitiveness
and sustain business growth, good return to stakeholders, invest in employee development within our Company
and mmaintain highest standards of management practices.

From 2003 to 2007, the Company had introduced a campaign of "Culture Leads Organization”, highlighting the
relation between the corporate vision and values in driving for the lasting growth and continually driving with
offshoot operations under the New Vision, during 2008-2012. Employees at management level were responsible
for determining the 5 Core Values drawn from the TIPCO name as follows:

T stands for Teamwork

T stands for Innovation

P stands for Pursuit for Excellence

c stands for Commitment to Customer
o stands for Openness to learn

The Core Values concerned are to ensure customer satisfaction of both the Company's external and internal clients
of all divisions of the Company. Thus, all corporate units are instituted service minded with the commitment
to product quality in order to satisfy all the customers’ needs. In return. this spirit promotes a culiure of good
corporate governance. in 20171, the result of the Company’s Customer Satisfaction Indey survey revealed the
rating in the range of “satisfactory” to "Excellent”, with a score of 98.2%, higher than that of the last year [96.7%)
and better than our set target of 95.0%.

The Comipany also realizes the importance of emptioyees as a key mechanism in driving the consistent business
growth. An Employee Gpinion Survey [EOS] has been conducted to evaluate the employees’ attitudes toward the
organization in terms of its image, reputation, benefits, management and good corporate governance. In 2011,
the survey result was 4.19 {on a total scale of 5.0, higher than 4.10 from the last year's survey, and tower than
the set target of 4.20. The highest score achieved was in the anti-corruption and confidence in organization,
management and products consecutively and the lowest score was on focusing on goals of work and payment

of variable returns. The management has therefore planned further improvement concerning focusing on goals

of work and payment of variable returns. In addition, regarding human resource management, the Company has
reviewed and developed the employees’ capabilities and competencies in both Core Competency and Managerial
Competency in consistent with the business target by conducting 360 degree evaluations for the divisional
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entand upper levels. The results from such evaluation will be used to implement plans more explicitly
fange activities for Employee Development Plan (EDP). Moreover, the Company also organized an
‘Development program for top management employees. Regarding other levels of employees, each
valuated and formulated the individual development plan by using the Core Competency Index (CCl)
re their readiness and reflection on their career paths in the Company. This will enable the potential

ces to learn and develop their knowledge in every aspect in order to be ready for the Company’s new

yver, the Company carried out a satisfaction survey on the suppliers. The average score received was 4.57
k .00, higher than the previous year's score of 4.42 and higher than the 4.40 target. The Company will use

ithered comments and opinions to make further improvements, by assigning responsible personnel and

pecific timeframe, together with doing periodical evaluations; aiming to be a good corporate governance
pany which takes good care of all stakeholders equally.

ark: Points from 1 to 5 are equivalent to the following ratings: 5 = “Excellent” 4 = "Good”, 3 = "Satisfac-
2 and 1 = "Improvements needed"]

closure and Transparency

orporate Governance Policy

order to achieve the company’s goals, to show the responsibilities for its operations, to promote transpar-
Icy on the basis of integrity, to create long-term competitiveness, and to build stakeholders confidence, the
ompany's Board of Directors has set up the policies for corporate governance as follows:

Oversee that the Company's Board of Directors operate efficiently in accordance with the assigned
roles and responsibilities;

Implement an efficient system of internal control and business risk management;
Provide policy directives and review strategies/business plans with management;
Prevent potential situations of conflict of interest;
Treat all shareholders and stakeholders with equity and justice;
Conduct operations that are transparent, fair and can be audited:

Disclose adequate information, especially on operational performances and financial statements,
to stakeholders;

Provide a corporate ethics manual, for management and all employees to comply with;

Carry out the social and environmental activities distinctively

'
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pinion reports regarding to the subcommittees’ activities: The annual reports have been done since 2005.

chairman: The Chairman of the Board of Directors has been specified not to serve as the Chairman or the
per of any subcommittees since 2003. A rule that the Chairman will not serve as the Chairman of the

cutive Executives has been effective since 2007.

épresentation of the operational performance to the Board of Directors: In the event that the Company does
t hold the Board of Directors’ Meetings on monthly basis, the Company will prepare an operational performance
ort for submission to the Board monthly. This presentation started since 2007 and was improved in 2009.

he guidelines and policies for remuneration of the Managing Director and Executives: The Nomination and
emuneration Committee has drafted the guidelines and policies for the Board of Directors to review. This issue
\as been raised for Shareholders’ approval at the Meeting of Ordinary Shareholders No. 1/2006.

he plans for succession of the Managing Directors: A Managing Director is required to report constantly on the
uccession plans for the position of Managing Director and senior management, as well as the management
development projects on an annual basis, starting from 2005.

In the Meeting of Board of Directors in 2008, Board of Directors reviewed and evaluated itself whether the
operational performances were complied with the code of good corporate governance according to the 82 items
pecified by the Corporate Governance Center, the Stock Exchange of Thailand. The Board conducted the
- pre-assessment concerning the practice prior to the meeting and the resolution of the meeting exchanged
opinions on compliance, with the result that the directors identified the following areas in which compliance
was not confirmed or completed:

- The opportunity for minority shareholders to propose meeting agenda in advance: Starting from 2008,
the Company would inform the minor shareholders of the proposals mentioned in the meeting agenda and rules
through the Company’s website so as to raise those proposals in the meeting agenda of Ordinary Shareholders.

The Chairman of the board being an Independent Director: The Compliance of this issue has not been
determined as there is insufficient readiness on the part of majority Shareholders to institute this change and
for Independent Directors to accept this designation.

The specific determination of Directorial tenure: This issue has not yet been determined how long the directorial
tenure period is since there is a concern of seeking unqualified candidates as Directors. Even though the Institute
of Directors (I0D] currently established a register of chartered Directors, those few could be qualified.

The specific determination of Sub-Committee tenure: This issue has not yet been decided due the same reason

as the specific determination of the Directorial tenure's.

The Directors’ policies in allowing the directors to be designated in other companies in a suitable manner:
Directors can serve as Directors for not more than 3 registered companies. However, no limit is specified for
serving as Directors of non-registered firms.




The measures of compensation in regard to the stakeholders suffering from the Company’s violati
legal rights: According to the corporate ethics, if the Company’s legal actions bring about the viola
legal rights of stakeholders, the court must prove whether the Company’s actions cause real suffe
stakeholders.

Non-Executive Directors conduct a meeting, as their necessities without management attendance, t¢
interesting management issues, and the Managing Directors will be informed about the meeting

Non-Executive Directors can convene their own meetings at least once a year, commencing from 200

Furthermore, in order to ensure that all levels of employees understand and adopt this principle on a
working basis, the foundations have been laid in the corporate governance policy, and business operation e
have been disseminated during the orientation programs. The revisions are also provided at least twice
while questions and feedback on this are obtained by means of an Employee Option Survey (EQS). as follg
samples of questions: "Do you agree with the Good Corporate Governance and Code of Conducts, perform;
with transparency of all shareholders, employees, customers and stakeholders?” and “Do you agree with
business operation upon the Cooperative Social Responsibility [CSR) with responsibility towards environment
society in compliance with the Company’s policies?” The evaluation results of both questions in 2011, on a tél
scale of 5, were 4.23 and 4.25 respectively. In additional for the sake of compliance with Code of Conducts
Business Operation, apart for mainstreaming of anti-corruption schemes for all employees, the Company add
one question with EQS as: "Do you agree and behave in line with the Company’s policies on anti-corruption
The evaluation result of this question, on a total scale of 5, was 4.34. The system implementation of the busine
and monitoring system has enabled the Company to drive the operations continuously and has stimulated t
corporate spirits on all employee levels.

Remuneration for the Directors and Executives

The Company has defined a clear and transparent policy with regards to the remuneration of Directors. Th ‘
remuneration is within a suitable range of the industry standards, in which the remuneration is at average level
in the market, and is authorized by the shareholders. Directors who are assigned to serve as Audit Committee
Directors as well will receive an appropriate additional remuneration according to the increasing workload. The
Managing Director and other employees receive remuneration based on individual performance; the remuneration "
is reviewed by the Compensation and Director/MD Search Committee. To ensure the transparency and clarity,
the policies and principles for determining compensation for Managing Director and executive management have
already been presented for shareholders’ consideration and approval in the Meeting of Ordinary Shareholders
No.1/2006, on April 28, 2006. -

In 2011, the Company provided remuneration for the Board of Directors and Executives as follows: (Directors
did not receive any remuneration from the subsidiary companies.)
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er year)
ration for the Members of Board of Directors
Unit : Baht
|

Salary Bonus Total
rs. Anurat Tiamtan Chairperson 360,000 280,000 640,000
r. Viwat Limsakdakul Managing Director 240,000 250,000 490,000
_Mr. Prasob Snongjati Independent Member 240,000 250,000 490,000
'/VMr. Virat Phairatphiboon Independent Member 240,000 250,000 490,000
Mr. Somchit Sertthin Member 240,000 250,000 490,000
Mr. Surachet Supsakorn Member 240,000 250,000 490,000
Mr. Chalit Limpanavech Member 240,000 250,000 490,000
Miss Roumsin Supsakorn Member 240,000 250,000 490,000
Dr. Asaniya Suwansirikul Independent Member 240,000 250,000 490,000
| 2,280,000 | 2,280,000 | 4,560,000

emuneration for the Audit Committee

Meeting fee (THB)

Mr. Prasob Snongjati
Mr. Virat Phairatphiboon

Dr. Asaniya Suwansirikut

Chairperson

Director

Director :

200,000
120,000

120,000

Remuneration for the Nomination and Remuneration Sub-committee

Yeatly Salary (THB)

Dr. Asaniya Suwansirikul

Mr. Prasob Snongjati

Mr. Surachet Supsakorn

Chairperson
Director

Director

50,000
30,000
30,000




Remuneration for Executive Directors and Management (per year

- Atotal of eight Executive Directors and Management received the remuneration of THB 23,337,680:

Orcher Remuneracion

- The provident fund contributed by the Company for eight Executive Directors and Managernent was 5
otal of THB 999,126,

- Atotal of 3 Executive Directors and Management were provided with Company cars, the other 5
Management officers were provided with vehicle aliowances in total of THB 980,040

Board Evaluarion

The Board of Directors of TIPCO Food [Public) Lid. had concluded an annual formal evaluation of iis own
performance as follows:

The individual Director did self-evaluation and total board t:uncticnmg evaluation, had reviewed and discussed
the outcome in the board of directors’ meeting and the Corporate Governance Cormmitiee’s meel ing based on

h

the preliminary format set by the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

The Board of Directors reviewed its role and performance by means of discussion with review of meeting agenda
and rmain results, e.g. the comparison of the Company’s performance with its business plan, the effectiveness of
risk management, the development of strategy, and the approval of business plans and significant investment,
elc. Some main points which somehow are stilt in pending stage of implementation as: the independence of
Chairmanship, the combination of Board of Directors which shall consist of independent member in number

exceeding 50% of total, and the requirement of reqular meetinas on basis of over 6 times a vear.
g Y

The Diraectors and Membears reviewead ihe Ohai

formznce through discussior in whict

admirec that the Chairperson performed her functions properly and with justice; and in each meeting agenda

Chairperson facilitated opporiunities for every Director ana Members to express their opinions freely without
time Umil. This has brought proud feelings toward her duties and responsibilities, and full appreciation from all
Directors and Members.

The Audit Committee also reviewed iis role and performance and agreed that their work was completed and
in compliance with guidelines and regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand and its Office, by holding
the meeting with external auditor, internal auditor and Directors without interference from the management.
The Audit Committee conveyed the meeting resuits to the management for improvement and performed fully

functions of financial budget evaluation, settlement of conflicts of interest and other assigned duties.

The Nomination and Remuneration Sub-committee has appraised itself that its performance was fully complied

with the set policies. In 2011, it nominated candidates for appointment as Directors because the Directors who
were retired by rotation, were qualified for re-elected.
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& Managing Director performance appraisal was undertaken by the Rernuneration and Search Sub-Committee
d the Chairperson as part of the annual salary review process, taking into account the MD’s self-evaluation.
s performance was reviewed on the key areas and results such as the Company’s performance, Business

arformance Scorecard, Smart Goal, the achievement of business goals/budget/plan, and the succession plan, etc.

e Board of Directors assessed the performance of the Audit Cornmittee and satisfied with its completion of

sks with efficiency, identification of risks and recommendations on ground of performance with accuracy and

ficiency.

The Board of Directors also assessed the performance of The Norination and Remuneration Sub-committee
‘and satisfied with its results of work, particularly on a number of productive recommendations, e.g. human

resources management, guidelines for CSR, etc.
In the process of evaluation, no material failings or weaknesses were identified.

‘The Board concluded that the Board was operating effectively, that the Board understood its roles and
rresponsibilities, that the Board had good understanding of the Company’s business and environment, and that

‘each Director continued to make an effective contribution to the Board assignments.

Investor Relations

The Board of Directors recognizes the importance to assure information disclosure whether financial reports
or general data that is accurate, timely, and transparent. To handle investor relations activities, the Company
founded a dedicated corporate unit, comprising two Members of Board of Directors, as: Mr. Viwat Limsakdakul,
Managing Director and Ms. Nitima Aungatichart, Treasurer, as to coordinate with the investors. The Investors may
contact the Company for further information by Tel. 02-2736801 or at the website www.tipco.net, or via their
e-mail address viwat@tipco.net or nitima@tipco.net. In 2011, the Company improved its website. Therefore, the
investors can access conveniently the Company’s information in which the item of investor relations activities

is made separately and easy accessible.

Dividend Payment Policy

The Company and its subsidiaries provide the dividends upon the accumulation of a positive retained earnings
balance. The dividend payout ratio is depending on the corporate operating performance results and future

investment project obligations. However, the payment of not less than 1 in 3 of net profit is observed.

Appointment of Auditor and Consideration of Audit Fee

The Audit Committee considers the qualifications and performance of the auditors and proposes the
appointment of the corporate auditors as well as the audit fee to the Board of Directors yearly. The Approval is
the sought-after from the Shareholders’ Meeting. The auditors, to be proposed, are required to be duly approved
by the Securities and Exchange Commission and the Stock Exchange of Thailand.
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In 2011, the remuneration for the auditor includes:

1. Audit Fee

The Company and its subsidiaries paid remuneration for auditors a total of THB 2,015,000 with details asi
follows: ‘

For the Company's financial statements and consolidated financial statements a total of THB 950,000.

For the Financial statements for 5 subsidiaries a total of THB 1,065,000.

2.  Non-Audit Fee

The Company and its subsidiaries paid for other services a total of THB 280,000.

The Board of Directors’ Responsibilities

Yearly, the Board of Directors considers the improvement and to revise their policies of performing corporate 3
governance functions in order to achieve the Company’s objectives, creates the employees’ responsibilities 1
towards operational performance as assigned duties, creates transparency on integrity basis, increases
sustainable competitive competency of the business, increases confidence to stakeholders in consistent with
the current business performance. In 2009, the Board of Directors had the resolution on revising item 9 of the

policies of performing corporate governance functions, which stated: Item.9: To proceed more concretely with
the environmental and social activities.

Leadership and Directors’ vision

The Board of Directors has leadership, vision and independence of making decisions, for the highest benefit of
the Company and its shareholders. The Board of Directors participates in the formulation of and approval for
the vision, strategies, goals, business plans and the corporate budget. This extends to governing the
management in accordance with the predetermined business plans and budget, efficiently and effectively.
The Board of Directors and management, in accordance with their duties, have a responsibility towards the
shareholders. There is a distinct separation in the duties and responsibilities of the Board of Directors and the
management, whether from the Board and the Managing Director, or the Board and the shareholders. For further

details, refer to the section "Equity Structure and Management” and the “TIPCO Food Group Code of Ethics”
under the titled "Rights of various shareholder groups”.

The Company's Directors are individuals with knowledge, skills and potential and have completed the following
training programs:

List of Directors who have completed Directorship Training Programs

List of Directors who have completed Directorship Training Programs regarding the 10D programs as follows:
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rectors have enrolled and completed the 10D Directorship programs (DCP), except for Mr. Somchit Sertthin
Miss Roumnsin Supsakorn. However, both of them have already passed the Director Accreditation Program
p) organized by Thai Institute of Director Association. The Company is also in the process of enrolling them

he 10D’s Directorship programs.
addition, the Directors who have completed additional training include:

drs. Anurat Tiamtan, completed 10D Chairmanship, Finance for Non-Finance Directors courses and Corporate
~overnance Roundtable Executive Discussion with Professor Ulrich Eteger; Sufficient Economy and Corporate
“ovemance (10D 5/07/2006), The Natural Disasters (10D 5/09/2006); and Board Performance Evaluation (10D
12/12/2006) Sufficiency Economy: the path sustainable growth {11/05/2007) Corporate Governance and
Creating Added Value to Business (9-10/11/2007) Making Corporate Responsibility (CR] Tangible-sharing
xperience [3/6/2009).

Mr. Prasob Sanongjati completed the 10D Audit Committee course, Directory Certification Program (DCP], The
Board's Role on Fraud Prevention and Detection course (10D 29/6/2010).

“ Mr. Viwat Limsakdakul passed the course of The CEO Forum-Hong Kong, organized by the Boardroom
i’ Briefings Club (BBCJ, Driving Organizational Success through Top Talent Management organized by Watson
_Wyatt (Thailand), Directors Forum 3/2004 on Nomination and Appointment of Directors and the APIC CEO Forum:
' Leadership Rejuvenate your Leadership Effectiveness, organized by Asia Pacific Innovation Co., Ltd. Other
programs included “Mergers & Acquisitions -How to Achieve Transparency (10D 7/03/2006}; DCP Refresher Course
(10D 27/07/2006); Opportunities for Investment in Food Processing Sector in india (Embassy of India 7/09/2006}; Lead-
ership and CEO Succession Planning (10D 19/10/2006), Corporate Leadership Forum 2007 (15-16/03/2007} Leadership
for Business Excellence (27/03/2007), Board Performance Evaluate (10D 13/07/2007) Board Practices for Joint Venture
and Group of Companies [I0D 6/11/2007) Thailand’s Functional Food & Drink : Industry Trends & Market Essentials
(8-9/11/2007) Asean Business Forum 2009 (26-27/10/2009) The New & Powerful Strategic Thinking {15/09/2009),
Role of the Chairman Program (RCP 17-18/5/2010), Thailand Competitiveness Conference 2010 (1-2/9/2010),
Top Executives Networking 2010 “Moving Forward Together” (17-18/9/2010), an international seminar in building
a collective action on Anti-Corruption by the private sector of Thailand (9/11/2010}.

Mr. Somchit Sertthin completed the Advanced Management Program (Harvard Business School 2002).

Mr. Surachet Supsakorn passed the course of “Looking at the Oil Situation in 2006 {IOD 12/01/2006), Thailand's
Economic Outlook 2006/07 (10D 8/08/2006).

Mr. Virat Phairatphiboon completed the course of Director Certification Program (DCP); Audit Committee
Program (ACP).

Mr. Chalit Limpanavech completed the Director Certification Program (DCP), Financial Statements for Directors
(10D 2-3/09/2009), Audit Committee Program (10D 17-18/09/2009).
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Dr. Asaniya Suwansirikul completed the Director Certification Program (DCP) (10D 10/09/2008), Role of th
Compensation Committee Program [RCC) (10D 7-8/10/2008), Financial Statement for Directors (FSD) (10D
15-16/10/2008), Making Corporate Responsibility (CR] Tangible-sharing experience {3/06/2009) ;

List of Directors with Financial Knowledge

Directors with finance-related experiences between 20-30 years include:

Mr. Prasob Snongjati, Mr. Somchit Sertthin, Mr. Viwat Limsakdakul and Mr. Virat Phairatphiboon.

Conflict of Interest

The Company eliminated conflict of interest by adhering to the policy of its code of business ethics, which
specifies a code of conduct for various stakeholder groups. Moreover, the Board of Directors is kept informed of
transactions that may pose a conflict of interest and connected transactions, and reviews the suitability of each
instance with caution. {Refer to the elimination of conflict of interest under the heading “Shareholders: Rights
and equitable treatment”) The Company further complies with the guidelines of the Stock Exchange of Thailand
and added amendment to its Article of Association, in order to protect the interests of minority shareholders.

This matter was duly approved by the 2003 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, with the amendment containing
the following details:

“The Company's Articles of Association, Section 8, item 48: In the case that the Company or subsidiaries agree
to a related transaction, or a transaction relating to the acquisition or divestiture of assets of the company or
its subsidiaries in accordance with the Announcement the Stock Exchange of Thailand enforceable for related
transactions conducted by listed companies; or the acquisition or divestiture of assets of listed companies as

may be the case; the Company is to defer to the guidelines and methods contained in aforementioned
Announcement in relation to that instance”.

Also the Company protects against potential conflicts of interest by having employees sign @ "Memorandum of
Actions Conflicting with Company interests”. The agreement specifies the penalty and procedures, culminating in
termination of employment, in the case that it is found there was intention to ignore or contradict the agreement.
In order to ensure measures that provide additional protection against the use of insider information for personal
gain, a requirement has been instituted since 2004 for Directors and management to disclose their shareholding
in the Company at each Board of Directors’ Meeting. Furthermore, any changes in Directors’ or management’s
shareholdings must also be reported to the Company Secretary. This obligation has been effective since 2003.

Related transactions defined by the guidelines of the Stock Exchange of Thailand are obligated to be reviewed
by the Audit Committee. The matter is then presented for Board of Directors’ authorization, wherein any
Directors with a stake in the transaction are barred from exercising votes. Large transactions are required to be
authorized by the Shareholders’ Meetings and announced in the newspaper publication. Related transactions

are valued according to market price guidelines: comparisons are made between the market price and at least
3 other companies.
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ess Ethics

<5 Ethics are determined in the Code of Conducts of the TIPCO Food Group, serving as a guideline for
orporate governance. The Code comprises of ideology defined as a commitment of justice, the pursuit
~ellence, belief in personal value and social responsibility. Business Ethics is defined as anti-corruption,
éalengagement with responsibility, fair treatment to all business relevant parties, seeking business benefit
justice, and equitable treatment of all concerns. The Code of Conduct for stakeholders includes a code
uct for management, employees and major shareholders, as well as recommendations when problems
_ Directors and employees alike have been continuously informed of these codes over a considerable
d of time. Relevant people are required to sign their acknowledgement every 2 years as indication of their
pliance. Furthermore, management is responsible to ensure that employees under their supervision strictly
ply with such guidelines. Any employee who does not observe the Company’s Code of Conducts will be

Libject to penalties in accordance with the Company's Regulations.

lance of Power of Non Executive Directors

e Board of Directors comprises of 9 Members who are fully equipped with knowledge and various

periences as follows:

- Member, serving as Executive 1 person, representing 11%;
- Members, not serving as Executives 8 persons, representing 89%;

- Independent Directors 4 persons, representing 44%;

e Board of Directors is made up of more than one-third of Directors, who are qualified as independent

rectors, and more than one half of non-executive Directors.

The number of Directors representing significant shareholder groups is a fair proportion to other shareholder

groups.

The Board of Directors has the responsibility concerning the performances of its duties according to the law,
the objectives and Articles of Association of the Company, as well as the resolutions of Shareholders’ Meetings
and with honesty according to the guidelines of good corporate governance. The term served by Directors is
determined by the Company’s Articles of Association, which in turn specifies that the term is to be authorized
by the Annual Shareholders’ Meetings. Each year, a proportion of 1 in 3 of the Board will complete their tenure
[Refer to the heading “Nomination of Directors and the President” in ftem 9.2]. In addition, as of 2003, Board
of Directors conducted a Self Assessment program which evaluates the performance of the entire Board. Each
Director pays attention to self development so as to gain their knowledge, skills and to increase the standard
of performing the duties efficiently pertaining to good governance management. (Refer to the heading “Board
Evaluation”]
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Merge or Separation of Positions

The Chairperson of Board of Directors and 3 Members, totaling 4 persons, are representatives of the majori
shareholder group.

The Managing Director is a Professional Executive who has no connection or relation with the majori
shareholder group whatsoever. The composition of the Board of Directors includes more than one-third of t
total number represented by Independent Directors, and more than 1 in 2 represented by Non-executi
Directors. This facilitates a suitable balance and check of management. In addition, the division of duties, relati
to the formulation of corporate governance policies and routine management duties, is clearly specified (Ref
to the topic "Role and duties of the President, Board of Directors and Sub-committee under the Management
Structure]. The Board of Directors appointed the Remuneration and Search Sub-Committee to review the.
recruitment and selection of suitably qualified candidates according to the requirement of the Board, for
nomination as Managing Director or Directors. The Committee was also assigned the task of considering
remuneration for the Board of Directors and the management team.

In order to ensure that the mechanism for monitoring, inspection and balance of management authority are '»
accurate and transparent, the professional company Internal Audit has independency concerning jointly
determining scope of audit process. It reports its audit findings directly to the Audit Committee, which in turn
comprises 3 Independent Directors. (Scope of the Audit Committee’s authorization and duties can be checked
from page 80.

Definition Process and Appropriation of Remuneration

The Company defines a clear and transparent policy with regards to the remuneration of the Directors.
The remuneration is within a suitable range for industry standards and is authorized by the shareholders.
The Directors receive appropriate additional remuneration in accordance with the increased workload. The
Managing Director and other employees receive remuneration based on individual performance and is reviewed
by the Remuneration and Search Sub-Committee. To ensure transparency and clarity, the policies and principles
for determining compensation for Managing Director and executive management was presented already for
shareholders’ consideration and approval at the Shareholders’ Ordinary Meeting No. 1/2006 on April 28, 2006.

In each year, the Remuneration and Search Sub-Committee shall review whether the remuneration of Members
of Board of Directors is appropriate by the comparison with same type and size of industry.

The Board of Directors and Sub-committee’s Meetings

The Board of Directors

The Board of Directors normally schedules the meetings each quarter, within 45 days of the last quarterly date.
Additional meetings may be convened as necessary. The date of the consecutive meeting is determined in
advance at each current meeting, together with the specific agenda. There is also a regular agenda dedicated
to the monitoring of operating performance. The Company Secretary is responsible for the preparation of
summons for the meeting, including the agenda and supporting documents, 14 days prior to the meeting.
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allows Directors sufficient time to study the documents before the meeting. Each meeting generally lasts
urs to consider agenda items. In 2011, the Board of Directors met to discuss normal agenda matters on 4
asions, with 1 meeting convened to consider an extraordinary agenda issue, for all total of 5 meetings. The

cord of attendance for each Director at the meetings is summarized below:

T T
Name Term of directorship Number of | Number of | Number of
attendance/ | attendance/ | artendance/
total total total
number of | number of | number of
meeting meeting meeting
(times) (times) (times)
normal |extraordinary|  Total
agenda agenda
1 Mrs. Anurat Tiamtan Chairperson April 2010-April 2013 44 11 5/5
. Mr.Viwat Limsakdakul Managing Director April 2010-April 2013 4Lf4 11 5/5
. Mr. Prasob Snongjati Independent Member | April 2009-April 2012 44 N 5/5
. Mr_Virat Phairatphiboon | Independent Member | April 2009-April 2012 414 11 5/5
. Dr. Asaniya Suwansirikul | Independent Member | April 2009-April 2012 4/4 11 5/5
. Mr. Surachet Supsakorn Member April 2011-April 2014 414 11 5/5
. Mr. Somchit Sertthin Member April 2011-April 2014 A Al 5/5
. Mr. Chalit Limpanavech | Independent Member |  April 2011-April 2014 4/4 1/1 5/5
. Miss. Roumsin Supsakorn Member April 2010-April 2013 4l4 11 5/5

The Company recorded accurately and completely the minutes of each meeting, so that the related parties may
inspect if required.

(Refer to The Board of Directors’ Report on responsibilities to financial statements.)

The Audit Committee

The Audit Director served a term of 2 years. There are presently 3 Audit Committee members; all of them are
also the Independent Directors, with names as follows:

1. Mr. Prasob Snongjati Chairperson
2. Mr. Virat Phairatphiboon Director
3. Dr. Asaniya Suwansirikul Director

4. Miss Wantanee Poorpadong Secretary to the Committee
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In 2011, the Audit Committee met 5 times to review normal agenda items. The attendance details of each Aud;t
Committee Director are presented below:

Name ; Position ; Meeting attendance/
- Tortal number of meetings (times)
1. Mr. Prasob Snongjati Independent Member . 5/5
2. Mr. Virat Phairatphiboon independent Member 5/5
3. Dr. Asaniya Suwansirikul Independent Member ‘ 5/5

(Please refer to the Report of the Audit Committee for additional details.]
Remuneration and Search Sub-committee

The Remuneration and Search Sub-Committee serves a term of three years and comprises 3 members.
The guidelines for appointing Committee members defer to the principles of the good corporate governance

in which qualified experts from outside or Independent Directors representing more than half of the number of
Directors. The names of the Committee are as follows:

1. Dr. Asaniya Suwansirikul | Independent Member | Chairperson
2. Mr. Prasob Snongjati - Independent Member } Member
3. Mr. Surachet Supsakorn ~ Member r Member

The Remuneration & Search Sub-Commitiee met twice in 2011, with the attendance of each Committee
Director as follows:

Name | Position Meeting attendance/
! Total number of meetmgs (nmes)

1. Dr. Asaniya Suwansirikul . Independent Member | 2/2
2. Mr. Prasob Snongjati | Independent Member 2/2
3. Mr. Surachet Supsakorn ¢ Member | 2/2

In 2011, the Corporate Governance Committee held 1 meeting. As the entire Board of Directors serves as the
Corporate Governance Committee, the agenda for evaluating compliance of corporate governance was in
accordance with good corporate governance in line with the guidelines of the Organization for Economic
Corporation and Development (OECD]. Also the OECD, the Stock Exchange of Thailand, was in the Board of
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ctors’ Meeting [N0.5/2010 on December 23, 2010). Al members of the Board of Directors completely attended
}neeting. (Refer to the section related to evaluation results for compliance with good corporate governance
slation to governance policies.)

ernal Control and Internal Audit

Board of Directors has implemented a system of internal control that encompasses all key areas, from
vance to operations. This ensures that its business activities comply with laws, rules and regulations relating to
sk management. The system extends to the implementation of mechanisms for audit and sufficiently efficient
lance of management, protection of corporate assets and justified returns to all stakeholders. The Company
ecifies the scope of authority and responsibility for each level of management and employees. Operational
ocedures are specified in writing. Management and individuals with potential are the focus of development,
ith enrolment in courses such as the Internal Quality Audit IS0 9001: 2000 program, which allows the inspection
performances across lines of employments. Since 2003, the Company has hired audit companies from outside
perform functions of internal audit, and to do cross-check reports and to make a joint consideration with the
ompany’s Internal Audit Committee for the internal audit plan.

additional, the Board of Directors made amendment to the responsibilities of the Nomination and
Remuneration Sub-committee to create fairmness in the selection of suitable individuals, to manage the business
as Directors and Managing Director, to consider a fair remuneration of Directors and employees according to
their performance. The Board also established the Corporate Governance Subcommittee for purpose of
formulating governance policies and business ethics, including the periodic review of policies and compliance
with policies. The Company has endeavored to create a culture of good corporate governance, since it believes

in a philosophy of management with quality, integrity and transparency that is fair to all parties. This also serves
to promote sustainable business growth.

Details of the Company’s control system and internal audit may be summarized as follows:

In relation to operational controls: The Company has clearly specified the authority and Codes of Conduct in
- writing, for reference towards operational staff and management. The Company oversees the use of assets in
- generating benefits and utilizes a system of budgets and feasibility studies prior of investing in new assets.
The system includes monitoring activities to ascertain whether actual performances differ significantly from
the budget. There is also a clear separation of duties between operational staff, supervisors and evaluators,
to encourage suitable balance and checks between them. The internal controls cover financial matters, with
financial reports presented to the relevant management heads.

In relation to internal audits: The Company has contracted an outside firm to conduct internal audit duties, to
ensure that its key operations and financial activities comply with predetermined guidelines. The task includes
the review of compliance with laws and regulations relevant to the Company. The external firm hired for this
Purpose has total independency in its audit and balance responsibilities and reports directly to the Audit
Committee. It also jointly determines the scope of audit activities with the Audit Committee.
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ature of Business

ipco Foods Public Company Limited, previously known as The Thai Pineapple Public Company Limited, was
stablished on March 22, 1976 with the initial registered capital of 10 million Baht. Currently, the company has the
egistered capital of 500 million Baht, with the paid up capital of 482.6 million Baht. Its headquarter is located at
ipco Tower, 118/1 Rama 6 Road, Samsen Nai, Phayathai, Bangkok and the factory is located at Muang District,
Prachuap Khiri Khan Province. The company was granted the investment privileges by the Board of Investment
f Thailand, for production of canned pineapple, pineapple concentrated juice, crushed pineapple, and canned
ineapple juice, for export. The company was listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand in 1989, which led to
change concerning the stock structure with the issue of shares to the public. However, the group of major
~shareholders remained the same. In 1993, TIPCO F&B Co., Lid., formerly known as Tipco Foods Co., Ltd, was
established as its subsidiary because of the investment diversification into the ready-to-drink fruit Juice business.
- Subsequently, the company'’s fruit juice products received good customers’ response. As a result, the company
has been committed to continuously conduct research and development for new products in order to meet the
needs of customers. The company has been proceeding with the policy of introducing at least one new product

item yearly, since 1997. The company’s products contain high nutritional value and health benefits, compared
with other products within the same category.

Currently, the company has 7 product categories as following:

1. 100% fruit and vegetable juice products, consisting of; Tangerine Juice, Valencia Orange Juice,
Si Thong Orange Juice, 4 Variety Orange Juice, Blood Orange Juice, Shogun Orange Juice, Sai Nam Phueng
Orange Juice, Red Grape Juice, Apple Juice, Pineapple Juice, Guava Juice, Tomato Juice, Broccoli and
Mixed Fruit Juice, Beetroot and Mixed Fruit Juice, Carrot and Mixed Fruit Juice, Purple Carrot and
Mixed Fruit Juice, Mixed Kiwi and Grape Juice, Mixed Prune and Grape Juice, Pornegranate and Mixed
Fruit Juice, Cranberry and Mixed Fruit Juice, Mixed Aloe Vera and White Grape Juice, Mixed Spinach
and Wheat Grass Juice; Cherry Berry Juice, Mangosteen and Mixed Fruit Juice, Mixed Apply Cider and
Pomegranate Juice, Goji Berry and Mixed Fruit Juice, Latte [fruit juice 98% with soya milk 2%} -Pommy
Latte Flavor and Orange Latte Flavor, Mixed 32 Vegetable and Fruit Juice, Super Fruit Essence-

Pomegranate Extract Juice, Super Fruit Essence-Prune and Fig Extract Juice, Tipco Fruit Plus Mixed
Veggie with Aloe Vera Gel Minced.

2. Pasteurized 100% fruit and vegetable juice products, consisting of; Shogun Orange Juice, Valencia
Orange Juice, Sai Nam Phueng Orange Juice, Strawberry Juice, Fuji Apple Juice, Aloe Vera and White
Grape Juice, Cherry Berry Juice, Mango with Mixed Fruit Juice, Lemon Juice with Lemon Pulp, Mixed

Kiwi and Grape Juice, Pomegranate and Mixed Fruit Juice, and Mixed Vegetable and Mixed Fruit Juice.




3. 30-40%Fruitand Vegetable juice, consisting of; Kiwi Mixed Juice, Veggi Mixed Juice, Orange Mixed Juice,
Red Grape Mixed, Berry Mixed Juice and Apple Mixed Juice.

4. Cereal Drink under Nature Up brand consists of nutritious ingredients of corn, brown rice, and soy bean.

SINPRINE 575 Pk 0 Rk

The products, consisting of; Cereal Drink with 30% Orange Juice, Cereal Drink with Job Tear, }
Oat Drink with Malt Extract- Original Flavor and With No Sugar Added Flavor, Oat Drink with Black
Sesame, Germinated Brown Rice Drink of 9 Varieties-Original flavor and No Sugar Added Flavor and
Multigrain Mitk Drink plus Black Sesame-Beauti Light Flavor and Beauti Shine Flavor.

5. Functional Drink Category under the Suntory Dakara Benefit brand, the new flavor which plus
L-Carnitine and white kidney bean extracts, no sugar added. This product is developed by Suntory
Beverage and Food Limited, a joint partner of Tipco F&B Co., Ltd.

6. 100% Natural Mineral Water under Aura and Aquare brand
7. Green Tea under Suntory Mirai with 3 flavor, original, Sagura and Honey Lemon.

In 2004, the company expanded into the retail business of freshly made fruit puree/smoothy under the brand
Squeeze Juice Bar. There were 10 branches in the beginning. Tipco Retail Co., Ltd was established in 2007 to
support the expansion of this firm established business unit. Comprising of 55 branches of its own and 13 franchise
branches, there were 68 branches in total of Tipco Squeeze Juice Bar in 2011.

In 2007, the company took over Tipco Biotech Co., Ltd. [previously known as Thai Sankyo Co., Ltd.] for its valuable
assets, consisting of the plantation areas of 6,899 rai, 1 ngan and 20.4 square wah, the biological laboratory-
tissue culture lab (for plant selection and expansion), and the plant extraction factory.

In 2009 the company had introduced the new variety of pineapple named Hom Suwan into the fresh fruit
market. It was very well received by the consumers because of its distinctive characteristics such as strong
aroma, evenly golden-yellow colour, firm texture, dry but juicy flesh, shallow eyes, uniform ripeness, and
containing of a 4 times higher level of Vitamin C than the Sri Racha variety.

As for the business philosophy, the company values the quality of the product at the highest level, for that
reason the company has continuously applied for the assessment and accreditation of most of the well known
international quality system standards. Its records are as follows:

1994150 9002 as the first canned pineapple factory accredited in the world, by Thai industrial Standards Institute
and by RW TUV Germany

1995 HACCP by S6S (Thailand)
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o 9002 for pineapple juice and pineapple concentrated juice, by SGF International E.V./IRMA Germany

ALAL by The Central Islamic Committee of Thailand
R by Thai Kashurt Service Co., LTD.

003 BRC Standards for quality management and safety required by the British Retail Consortium for food
sors of foods imported to the United Kingdom, by SGS (Thailand] and by EFSIS[SAI GLOBAL]

150 9001 version 2000 by S65 (Thailand)

; International Food Standard (IFS) for quality management and safety required by the German & French

il Consortium for food processors of foods imported to the EU, by SGS (Germany]
1SO 22000 in Food Safety Management, as the first food company accredited in Thailand, by SGS (Thailand)

7 integrated assessment for all 5 systems, 1SO 22000, ISC 9001, GMP, HACCP, and IFS (Single Food Audit
k); by SGS (Thailand). Tipco is highlighted as the global model for such integrated assessment.

007 GMA-SAFE System of U.S.A for safe and security of food supply chain, by Food Audit International (FAI]

007/2008 Certified Organic Standards for aseptic crushed aloe vera, from plantation for processing by

epartment of Agriculture

008/2009 Certified IFOAM Organic Standards for aseptic crushed aloe vera, from plantation for processing, by

rganic Agricultural Certification Thailand

009 Audited on Food Safety and Food Security according to Audit Program of the U.S.A and scored
- “Excellent”, by FAl (Thailand)

2010 1SO 9001 version 2008 by SGS (Thailand)

2011 Environmental Governance Award for Prachuab Kirikhan Factory Thai Labor-Standard : TLS 8001-2010

Complete Level-Beginning Stage Outstanding Award of Labor Relations and Labor Welfare
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Revenue Structure of Sales or Services to Outside Parties in the past 3 years

0,
Product/ () ared by | % stake 2009 2010 2011
service held
by the Revenue % Revenue % Revenue
Company
Canned Tipco Foods 1,817.60 | 40.78 | 1,748.02 | 37.08 | 1,684.74
pineapple and [Thailand) |
pineapple juice | PCL/
concentrate Tipco
Marketing
Co.,Ltd.
Mixed fruit, Tipco Foods 617.03 13.84 657.17 13.94 661.62
others (Thailand)
PCL.
Tipco Retail 75.49%*
Co.,Ltd.
Tipco Biotech 100.00
Co.,Ltd.
Ready-to-Drink | Tipco F&B 50.00 | 2,022.37 | 4538 | 2,308.59 | 4898 | 2478.73 | 5137
beverage Co.,Ltd.
Total 4,457.00 | 100.00 | 4,713.78 | 100.00 | 4,825.09 | 100.00

** The company holds indirectly the shares of Tipco Retail Co., Ltd., in the proportion of 75.49 % through Tipco
Beverage Co., Ltd. and Tipco F&B Co., Ltd., whose shares are 50.99% and 49% held by the company, respectively. **

Development in the Past Year

In 2010, Tipco F&B Co., Ltd., the producer and distributor of ready-to-drink 100% and 40% fruit juice, pasteurized
100% fruit juice, cereal drink, functional drink, natural mineral water and Green Tea: had introduced new products ;
Tipco Super Fruit Essence-Prune and Fig Extract Juice; Tipco Fruit Plus-Mixed Veggie with Aloe Vera Gel Mince;
Nature Up Multigrain Milk Drink Plus Black Sesame Beauti Light Flavor and Beauti Shine Flavor: Dakara functional
drink-modified formula which plus L-Carnitine and White Kidney Bean Extracts no sugar added; and Green Tea
Original, Sagura and Honey Lemon Flavor.
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ry Overview and Future Competitive Situation

ational business of the company, the export of Canned Pineapple which is in agricultural product section
: elies on quality of raw material and sensitive price of the market. In the beginning of 2011, pineapple
hortage due to the drought continuously from 2010. Sales slowed down especially forward sales. Then,
 weather changed around the middle of the year 2011 to favor for Pineapple plant, the output was back
mal situation through the second half of the year. Anyway, the depressed economic situation of USA and
e together with the uncertain political situation of Middle East that is high growth potential market has
ed that sales could not be performed as planned. However, resulted from the recovering of raw material

on supported the cost management efficiency and profitability to be at the appropriate level.

trend of the ready-to-drink beverage market will see more fragmentation of product lines for more targeted
omer sub-groups. All players will invest more in advertising and sales promotion. The company has monitored
e trends, and has consequently made it the corporate policy to introduce the new product yearly, for at least
"Category, related to food, fruit, and beverages, of which the company has a vast expertise. The diversifications

s product lines will generate more income as well as maintain its leader position and market shares.

the Squeeze Juice Bar, the company emphasizes on expanding its own branches as well as franchise

ches. The density of consumer’s population and the main income per household are the primary specifications
ancerning selection of locations.

' i'ragricultural and plant-extracts business; the agricultural plantation, Hom Suwan has been well received from
arket. The company has focused on the process of plantation to increase output per rai, the quality standard
r releasing more product into market to generate sales. In the part of plant-extract business, the strategy is to
lild relations with customer as a partner for joint cooperation in research and develop plant-extract project.
12011 the business can achieve to launch the first fruit extract product and export to customer. This business
expected to expand both new product with the existing partner and also new partner entering. Moreover, the
mpany itself, there has been a continuously research as the national innovation projects on hand which is
pected to ready to commercialize in 2012.
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In 2009, both the domestic and foreign inesses were affected by the s luggish global economy. Notably in
the United States and in Europe where the economic crisis started, total sales declined drasticatly. Even though

the company expanded markets into other regions, the reduction could not be compensated, resulting in @
significant overall reduction of total sales from the export business. As for the domestic business, the reduction

in total sales was due to both the uncertainty regarding the global economic situation which caused consumers
fo be uncertain as to its repercussions and severity and, therefore, to be precautious in their spending and the
domestic political uncertainty which led consumers to go out less and spend less. Nevertheless, the company
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inued to implement its strategy to launch new products in the market and to select target locations for retail

ness expansion in order to satisfy the variety of consumer needs. As for its export business, the company

ed on managing its cost of production and the pricing structure to cover foreign currency exchange rate

cost of fresh fruit fluctuations. To this effect, the company also maintained its policy in purchasing and

ng forward foreign exchange contracts to minimize potential foreign exchange risks. Moreover, the

pany expanded its markets to other regions of the world in order to mitigate risks following the severity of
financial crisis affecting countries in Europe.

2010, the growth of total sales revenue was mainly due to the domestic sales growth as the domestic economy
irted to recover and the political situation improved, leading to an increase in local consumers’ spending. At
same time, the company focused on communication concerning the characteristics, qualities and benefits
its products. Besides, the company continued to maintain its strategy of launching new products to meet
nsumers’ needs. The retail sales business also grew significantly as the products offered exactly met cus-
mers’ demand. The company was, therefore, able to open up many branches as these retail outlets became
well-known by the market and appreciated by a lot of tenants as well as department stores. This development
Sllowed the company to increase its distribution channels and to make its image directly known to consurmers.
s for food services, the company was able to increase sales of its Ready-to-Drink beverage through restaurants,
otels, bus lines and airlines. With regards to its agricultural and plant extract businesses [for food, beverage and
osmetic ingredients], the company'’s fresh pineapple named Hom Suwan was increasingly marketed through
onvenience stores. However, being in the introduction stage to the market, availability of this pineapple was
till imited. At the same time, the company continued to focus on research and development of plant extracts
n order to develop products which could be of interest and be beneficial for the company in the future.

With regards to revenue from export sales, last year those of canned fruit and concentrated pineapple juice
eclined mainly due to the strengthening of the Thai Baht by an average of 10% during the year, resulting in

g the Baht denominated sales revenue to decrease by 2.1% compared to an increase by 10% when denominated
In US Dollar.

The market for exports of fruit juice to ASEAN countries under the company’s brand and to Non-ASEAN countries
as an OEM manufacturer under customers’ formulas and brands continued to expand since countries within this
region have been less affected by the global financial crisis and their economies remained relatively strong.

Total Sales Revenue in 2011

In 2011, total sales revenue grew from the previous year by 2.4% with domestic sales revenue increasing by
7.5% and export sales revenue decreasing by 4.6%.

Revenue from Domestic Sales

Total domestic sales increased in 2011, especially during the first 3 quarters of the year as economic figures
showed signs of recovery and the political situation improved with the new government, resulting in improved
public confidence which subsequently led to an increase in consumers’ spending. However, total sales were
affected during the 4" quarter as with Bangkok and the surrounding areas suffering from the flooding disaster,
goods distribution centers as well as transportation routes were inundated, impeding some goods from being
put on sale. The effect of this disaster affected both total sales of beverage and the Juice Bar retail businesses.
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supstantially as i:he;; bed THPCU products 10 pecome well-known by the public and (o have & more modern
image. However, during the 4” quarter of the year which is normally its peak sales period, the company suffered

significantly from the floods. Even though the company’s production at its manui facturing plants were not s0

rmuch affected due to its preventive measures and was obliged tc stop production only during 2 weeks but the
flooding disaster in Bangkok and the surrounding areas caused the distribution centers of its distributors to be
inundated and transportation routes to be cut off, causing the sales distribution of some products to be halted.
The sales revenue during the 4™ quarter was, therefore, not according to the established plans.
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il and Food Service Businesses

enue of the Squeeze Juice Bar continued to grow continuously throughout the first 3 quarters of 2011
élowing down during the 4" quarter due to the floods which obliged several branches to close down
rily. Sales revenue continued to increase as a result of new product developments in response to
L omers’ needs and the opening of new branches. As at the end of 2011, the Squeeze Juice Bar had a total of
\nches of which 55 were operated by the company and 13 operated under franchise. With regards to its food

e, the company continued to gain new customers in the group of restaurants, hotels, bus lines and airlines.

ricultural and Plant Extract businesses (for food, beverage and cosmetics ingredients)

ncrease in revenue was due to the agricultural business or the Hom Suwan pineapple production. The
gth of the Hom Suwan pineapple comes from its special characteristics which are well accepted by the
rket. The fact that it is cultivated in an area where the climate is ideal as well as its cultivation process having
n suitably adjusted to the cultivation area as well as the climate conditions in the said area have resulted in
re production having been marketed and, evidently, in more sales revenue. As for the plant extract business,
company undertook research and development in cooperation with a main custorner which is a major plant
act producer in Japan and has succeeded to obtain the first product, a fruit extract, which has been exported

apan at the end of 2011. It is expected that the sales revenue from this product should increase in the future.

evenue from Export Sales

he export sales of canned fruit and concentrated pineapple juice declined as the United States’ economy has not
et recovered and the European countries have started to enter a recession, causing a decline in the purchase
rders coming from customers in these countries who are the company’s major customers. The company has
riven to find new markets in replacement thereof but has not been able, in the short-term, to completely
mpensate for such reduction.

s for fruit juice exports to the ASEAN markets where sales are made under the company’s brand and to
NON-ASEAN countries as an OEM manufacturer under customers’ formulas and brand, the expansion continued
to grow on a regular basis.

Proportion of Domestic and Export Sales Revenue

In 2011, the proportion between the domestic and export sales revenue were equivalent to 60.5 : 39.5.
The proportion of export sales revenue was slightly reduced due to the decline in purchase orders from countries
suffering economic problems. At the same time, the strengthening of the average value of the Baht in 2011
~ Compared to the previous year caused the Baht denominated sales revenue to decline as well. Nevertheless, the
- company intends to keep its existing policy whereby the revenue proportions of its domestic and export sales
shall be maintained at 50:50 in order to balance risks which may arise from its domestic and export businesses.
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Analysis of Other Incomes

T ~‘

Other Incomes 2009 ‘ 2010 | 2011
Gain from exchange rates 2.7 ‘ 15.7 2.4
Reversal of doubtful accounts | - | 0.2 -
Reversal of allowance for expired goods | - | 18.5 1 7.8
Gain from claims of demolished products - 10.5 -
Marketing promotion support 50.3 ; 90.9 3 248.7
Revenue from selling raw materials and scraps materials 6.2 i 5.4 ‘ 6.3
Others | 453 353 | 59.0

Total 05 1765 3242

Gain from exchange rates:

In 2009 and up to 2011, as exchange rates have been extremely volatile, the company maintained its policy
of purchasing and selling forward exchange contracts periodically to mitigate potential risks, rsulting
in a gain from exchange rates of 2.7 Million Baht in 2009, 15.7 Million Baht in 2010 and 2.4 Million Baht in 2011.

Reversal of doubtful accounts:

As one of the doubtful accounts has been classified as bad debt, the amount has been included in the category
of other expenses.

Reversal of allowance for expired goods:

The allowance set by the company for expired goods in accordance with the accounting standard in view of the

expiration time or damage which was in excess during the previous year was reversed and booked to income.

Marketing promotion support:

This was a financial support provided by Suntory Beverage and Food Ltd. for advertisement and sales promotion for
products under its commercial brand, produced and distributed by the subsidiary company (TIPCO F&B Co., Ltd.].
This amount included also the special rebate for purchasing goods according to the set target.

Other incomes:

The company's recorded sales revenue are on the FOB basis and revenues from shipping and insurance under

CIF term were booked as other income while expenses on shipping and insurance were booked under selling
and administrative expenses.
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2009 2010 2011
Million % Million % Million %
Baht of sales Baht of sales Baht of sales
{ sales 4,457.0 100.0 4,713.8 100.0 4,825.1 100.0
t of Goods Sold 3,203.4 719 | 35319 749 | 32748 67.9
<5 Profit 1,253.6 28.1 1,181.9 25.1 1,550.3 32.1

2009, the gross profit ratio of the exporting business declined as drought led to a shortage of fresh fruit while
icos escalated, resulting in an increase in the cost of goods sold. As for the domestic beverage business, in
the company focused on managing the demand and supply chain to reduce the cost of goods sold and
hance productivity, resulting in in an increase in the domestic gross profit ratio.

émo, the gross profit ratio declined mainly due to the export of canned pineapple business. The drought crisis
came more severe and greatly affected the production of pineapple. Apart from causing prices of fresh fruits
rise continuously, the weather condition affected their quality as well, resulting in a decline of output per ton
fruits. At the same time the strengthening of the Baht caused sales denominated in Baht to slump. As most
the cost of the canned fruit business was in Thai Baht, it directly affected the declining export business’ gross
ofit ratio. Total sales of the domestic beverage business increased substantially as a result of marketing
tivities emphasizing on the positive benefits, characteristics and quality of the company’s products. At the
me time, improvements in the chain of supply and demand management initiated since 2009 led to substantial
st savings. As for the retail business, total sales grew drastically, resulting in an économy of scale which led
an increase in the overall of the domestic gross profit ratio.

In 2011, the gross profit ratio increased as a result of the export business which benefited from the company’s
production process adjustment to ensure a higher productivity from inputs of raw materials. This led to a
substantial increase in the gross profit of the exports business while gross profit from domestic businesses,
both beverage and retail, declined slightly as sales were not according to plans during the period of the floods

and raw material costs also increased.

Selling and Administrative Expenses

2009 2010 2011
Million % Million % Million %
Baht of sales Baht of sales Baht of sales
Sales and administrative expenses 1,133.7 25.4 1,334.6 28.3 1,560.4 323
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The selling and administrative expenses ratio in 2010 increased from 2009 as a result of the company’s emphasis
on marketing policies, especially in the 100% fruit juice in order to deal with the intensified competition in the
domestic market. This strategy proved to be successful as total domestic sales increased significantly. In 2011,
the increase in selling and administrative expenses was due to marketing efforts in the beverage business in
order to support the several new products which were launched during the year. However, the fact that sales
were not in accordance with plans during the 4™ quarter led to an increase in the selling and administrative
expenses compared to total sales ratio of the beverage business.

Report on Cash Flow Analysis

Expenses . 2009 2010 2011

Cash flow from operations

Profit before income tax ; 240.2 178.8 369.8

|

Adjustments to reconcile profit before income tax to net | 172.7 -0.2 126.4

cash provided by operating activities

Adjustments to decrease (increase) in working capital : 119.4 220.1 -638.6
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 532.3 396.0 -142.4
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities -123.0 -319.8 -283.7
Net cash provided by (used in} financing activities -353.3 -115.9 422.4
Effects of foreign currency exchange on cash & cash - -2.7 0.1
equivalents
Increase (decrease] in cash & cash equivalents 56.0 -39.7 -3.6
Cash & equivalent at the beginning of the periods z 28.5 ‘ 84.5 447
Cash & equivalent at the end of the periods ‘ 84.5 f 44.7 41.1

|

Cash flow from operations was positive in 2009 due to the company's policy in gradually utilizing and selling the
remaining inventory of last year as planned, resulting in lower level of inventory especially raw materials. From
the immense order during the end of the year period, the company unavoidably, had high volumes of finished
goods and ongoing manufacturing goods in the inventory as such goods were needed for delivery during the
beginning of the following year. In 2010, cash flow from operations declined owing to rising costs of fresh fruits
caused by fresh fruit shortages as well as an increase in marketing and promotional expenses. In 2011, cash
flow from operations was negative due to declining fresh fruit prices caused by oversupply. The company's
inventory balance at the end of the year was high due to its policy to produce and keep finished goods in order
to benefit from low costs and to sell them when prices are at appropriate levels.

Cash flow from investing activities:

In 2009, one of the company’s subsidiaries invested in moving all of the remaining fixed assets under the
subsidiary’s ownership from the Prachuap Khiri Khan factory to the Wang Noi factory as well as in purchasing
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ew machineries to replace certain parts of the existing ones. The company purchased and took ownership
buildings and structures at the Prachuap Kriri Khan factory from the subsidiary. The company also incurred
vestment expenditures regarding the maintenance of fixed assets at the AURA mineral water factory to ensure

at they were in good condition and operated efficiently.

In 2010, at the beverage factory in Wangnoi, additional machineries were acquired to support the expansion of
the production capacity of existing products with a view to accommodating sales growth. Moreover, additional
machinery investment was made to support the production line of packaging of products using PET bottles so
as to cater to customers’ diversified needs. At the Prachuap Khiri Khan factory, apart from expenses for normal
maintenance of fixed assets, the company made additional machinery investment to support the empty can
line for enhanced efficiency. At the AURO mineral water factory, additional machines were bought to support

the production line expansion.

In 2011, the company made additional investment at the beverage factory in Wang Noi in order to enhance
efficiency of the current production line. As regards the Prachuap Khiri Khan factory, the company incurred
investment expenditures for the empty can line through replacement of parts of existing machineries and
additional investment for enhanced efficiency of the production line. As for the AURA mineral water factory, the
company incurred costs of overhauling machineries of the existing production line.

Cash flow from financing activities:

In 2009, the company paid off all long-term debt obligations totaling Baht 308.5 million for the investment
in the Prachuap Khiri Khan factory (Of this, Baht 102.8 million was used for loan prepayment]. Subsequently,
the company received a new long-term loan amounting to Baht 500.0 million for investment in long-term
assets to replace short-term credit facilities which were previously used as a source of funds as well as for
use as a part of working capital. Viewing that at the time of the global economic crisis and liquidity crunch
the company might be faced with a problem to mobilize funds for use as working capital as the company’s
credit facilities were all an uncommitted line, the company decided to seek long-term credit
facilities as part of its total loan portfolio in order to meet the company’s minimum working capital
requirements during such economic crisis and to help reduce risks arising from a lack of liquidity in funding
sources in the future. The acquisition of the new long-term loan resulted in an decrease in short-term loans.
In 2009, the company paid dividends (based on the 2008 operating results] of 130.3 million. In 2010, it entered
into a Baht 200.0 million long-term loan contract for investment in machineries at the beverage factory in Wang
Noi and partially drawdown Baht 180 million to pay for the machineries according to the term of payment. The
company then repaid the long-term loan obligations of Baht 200 million during the year. Also, the company
paid dividends (based on the 2009 operating results) of Baht 72.4 million. In 2011, the company entered into an
additional Baht 300 million long-term loan contract to obtain funds for use as working capital and to replace
certain portions of short-term loans. The level of funds obtained was deemed commensurate with the company's
minimum working capital requirements. This long-term credit facility would also help enhance the company’s
liquidity in the future when it is expected that there will be an increasing demand for short-term credit facilities
to support business expansion. This year the company also paid long-term debt obligations of Baht 274.0 million.
The increase in the short-term loans was due to the company’s plan to keep inventory for subsequent sale.
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Liquidity
Liquidity ratio (times) 2009 2010 2011
Current Ratio 1.2 0.9 1.0
Interest Coverage Ratio 4.6 4.1 4.9
Debt to Equity Ratio 1.3 1.3 1.4
?

Current Ratio:

In 2009. the company obtained a long-term loan for repayment of the short-term loan used for fixed assets
investment in the previous year as well as for use as a minimum working capital as required by the company.
The decrease in short-term loans led to an increase in the current ratio. In 2010, the current ratio declined to
lower than 1 (time] as a result of a reduction in inventory and trade accounts receivable from the export business
following a decline in sales caused by the lack of raw materials - fresh fruits. in the meantime, current liabilities
increased as the current portion of long-term liabilities increased. [The long-term loans of the company were
due for payment starting from the 3 quarter of 2010. The subsidiary was scheduled to make the first payment
in the 2™ quarter of 2010. Additionally, the company still had accrued expenses payable related to the
marketing and promotional support program. The company also had accounts payable totaling Baht 59.2 million
for machineries at the beverage factory in Wang Noi which were due for payment in April 2011. The company
will use funds obtained from approved long-term credit facilities to pay off such accounts payable. In 20171, the
company’s current ratio slightly increased due to the increase in inventory and the replacement of a portion of
the short-term loans with the long-term loans used as working capital.

Interest Coverage Ratio:

In 2009, interest rates decreased throughout the year. As the financial crisis began to wind down, the company's
interest coverage ratio went up to 4.6 times. In 2010, the company’s additional long-term loan for machinery
investment at the beverage factory and the upward trend of interest rates starting from the 3 quarter caused
a slight decrease in the company’s interest coverage ratio. In 2011, interest rates rose continuously from the
previous year and began to decline in the 4" quarter owing to diminishing concerns about inflation rates. Also,
due to the flooding situation, the Bank of Thailand had lifted financial restrictions to some degree to help business

operators. Apart from that, the company’s profit before interest and tax rose, hence an increase in the company’s
interest coverage ratio in 2011.

Debt to Equity Ratio:

The company’s debt to equity ratio remained unchanged in 2009 and 2010 and increased in 2011 due to an
increase in total liabilities.

Profitability
Profitability ratio (96) ! 2009 2010 2011
Gross profit margin 28.1 251 32.1
Net profit margin 4.6 3.1 7.1
Return on equity 10.4 7.2 14.3

B e,
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profit margin:

ross profit margin dropped in 2009 and continued to decline in 2010 as a result of the negative effects of
ck of fresh fruit supplies for production as planned and the rise in fresh fruit prices in the export business
h were aggravated by the Baht appreciation in 2010. In 2011, the gross profit margin increased thanks to
export business which saw improvements in the efficiency and effectiveness of the manufacturing process.

profit margin:

2009, although the company realized a profit from investments in associated companies amounting
Baht 120.1 million, the company’s net profit margin remained low due to a decline in sales. In 2010,
company realized a profit from investments in associated companies amounting to Baht 245.2 million.
Infortunately, the declining sales of the export business along with the increase in costs of goods sold (fruits)
ind administrative and selling expenses on the beverage business, according to the company’s marketing policy,
ésutted in a lower net profit margin. In 2011, despite the fact that the company realized a profit from investments
n associated companies amounting to Baht 179.0, lower than that of the previous year and incurred a large
mount of marketing expenses to support several launches of new products during the year, the company’s
et profit margin increased as a result of the substantial decrease in costs of fruits in the export business.

Return on equity:

n 2009, return on equity was low due to the negative effects on the canned pineapple exporting business
rom the beginning of the year which worsened in 2010. Nonetheless, in 2011, the decline in the cost of sale of
he canned pineapple export business resulted in a considerable increase in return on equity.

Asset Quality and Financial Ratio

% of Total Assets 2009 2010 2011
Accounts receivable-net 12% 10% 8%
Inventory 22% 17% 26%
Investments and loans-net 12% 16% 16%
Property, plant and equipment-net 49% 52% 45%
Deposits and guarantees - - -
Others 5% 5% 5%

The ratio of accounts receivable to total assets continued to decrease from 2009 to 2011. In 2009, the average
collection period was 44 days as several debtors were faced with a liquidity problem and thus requested to
extend the payment period of partial debts. Nevertheless, the company had closely monitored debt payment and
adopted a more stringent policy in granting credits. This evidently caused a decrease in the average collection
period in 2010 to 39 days. In 2011, the company expanded its market to attract new customers in replacement of
the existing customers in countries with economic problems. On entering new markets with risks, the company
has to exercise extra caution in considering and granting credits to new customers and strictly follow up on debt
payment, hence a reduction in the average collection period to 33 days.
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Inventory: In 2010, the ratio of inventory to total assets decreased from that of 2009 due to orders placed by
customers around the end of 2009 which required the company to produce and keep finished goods in the
inventory for further submission at the beginning of 2010, hence the high level of inventory at the end of
2009. The number of days in inventory in 2009 and 2010 was 116 days and 84 days respectively. The inventory
level was in line with the forecast of raw material price changes as the company’s inventory increased at the
time when the raw material prices were expected to increase. In 2010, despite the company’s forecast of the
worsened drought crisis, shortages of fresh fruit supply led to the company’s inability to keep inventory
according to the company’s policy, hence a decline in inventory level. In 2011, fresh fruit supply in the market
was at a high level, hence a reduction in costs. The company, therefore, gradually produced and kept finished
goods in inventory for further sale according to the inventory management policy, resulting in the increase in
the proportion of inventories to total assets and the increase in the number of days in inventory to 165 days.

Investment: The company made an investment in Tipco Asphalt Pcl. in which the company had the policy to
hold 20-25% of shares. Such investment was recorded using the equity method in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. The investment cost was shown in notes to financial statements. The company
had the policy to maintain the investment and make a profit in the form of a return on investment to at least
cover such investment cost as a minority shareholder.

Property, plant and equipment: The company has regularly undertaken repairs and maintenance on a yearly
basis. In 2009, the company invested in additional machineries in replacement of the existing ones at the beverage
factory in Wang Noi. As regards the factory in Prachuap Khiri Khan and the AURA mineral water factory,
the company continued to maintain machineries as well as the surrounding environment to be in a good
condition and efficient. In 2010, additional machinery investments were made at the beverage factory in !
Wang Noi, the factory in Prachuap Khiri Khan and the AURO mineral water factory with a view to enhancing
production efficiency. In 2011, most of the investments were related to repairs and maintenance of existing
buildings, machineries and equipment. As regards the factory in Prachuap Khiri Khan, most of the investments
were related to the empty can line to replace old machineries and enhance efficiency.

Operating Efhciency
Operating Efficiency Ratio (%) 2009 2010 2011
Return on assets 4.4% 3.1% 6.0%
Return on fixed assets 8.8% 5.8% 13.2%

In 2009, return on assets was at a low level as a result of the decline in sales. in 2010, the continued decrease

in return on assets was due to the decrease in sales in the export business. In 2011, sales bounced back and the
company did not make additional investment in assets whil

e enjoying and optimizing the benefits of assets it

y.

had invested in earlier. Thus, return on assets and return on fixed assets increased substantiall
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ds in the future

will still be another difficult and challenging year for business undertakings as there are a large number of
actors, both in Thailand and foreign countries, which have not yet been resolved including the economic
ation of the United States which has not yet recovered, the financial problems in European countries leading
: economic recession, the domestic political situation, flooding problems as well as exchange rate
ations. This poses a challenge to the company in preparing plans and strategies that would effe;tive[y
kle the aforesaid issues and enable it to move forward in a sustainable manner.

> export business continues to experience problems caused by a decreasing demand for products of major
ntries such as the United States and the European countries as a result of economic problems which tend
éke time to recover. The company has made efforts to enter new potential markets such as countries in the
dle East and East Europe. However, there are still many restrictions in doing business with these countries
ich require the company to exercise extra care in taking actions and to examine all concerned issues such
isks from default on payment, fund transfer systems, étc. Therefore, the market expansion to penetrate new
ups of customers must be done gradually. In addition, the company has a strong commitment to develop new
ducts to cater to market needs with a view to supporting sales growth. Another key risk factor of the export
iness is the high volatility in exchange rates which causes sales to deviate from actual plans. Restructuring
§-ling prices which allows the use of exchange rates in setting prices and the requirement for the sales function
keep abreast of situations and information at all times should help the company to embrace changes rapidly
1 mitigate risks to a certain extent. In this regard, the company has entered into a forward foreign exchange
tract to hedge against risks according to the existing policy. The company has also studied and considered
er financial tools as risk management alternatives.

regards the fruit juice drink business, factors such as the domestic political situation and flooding prospects
e a negative impact on domestic consumption and are still uncertain. In 2012, new product launches and
plementation of marketing strategies will be key forces that will drive sales. Over the last two years, the
mpany has improved the efficiency of the production line of products packed in PET bottles, which makes
vailable for the company’s launch of new products to cater to diversified needs in the market. As regards
“Squeeze Juice Bar” retail business, the selling prices have been adjusted since the end of 2011 to be
line with increased costs, resulting in increased returns. The company continues to adopt a strategy of
nch expansion to appropriate areas both in the forms of the company’s own management and franchise
nagement to stimulate business growth. |

regards the plant extract business, the company has coordinated with a group of alliances in doing research
development of fruit extract substances, allowing the company to start exporting products of this segment at
end of 2011. The company also has the plan to expand a line of products in 2012 as it already has a customer
€. In addition, the company has initiated a project to do a research about plant extract substances in
laboration with foreign partner, which is under way and is expected to be completed during 2012. The company
S expected to launch new products in 2012 which are the fruit of its own research and development projects.

S regards the fresh fruit business, Tipco's Hom Suwan pineapple has become widely recognized and received
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a good response from the market. Such success is a result of two key factors, i.e. the company’s management
and maintenance of sources of production to ensure that products meet quality standards and are brought to
the market on a continuous basis.

Financial Situations

The anemic economic recovery of the United States and the financial problems of Europe have aggravated
exchange rate fluctuations in 2012 and capital flows into Asian countries which are viewed to have not yet
been affected by the problems and whose economies remain strong. However, investments in Asia are still
considered as risk-weighted assets, hence capital flows in and out of Asia for short-term profit-making and
cause Baht fluctuations in response to the said capital flows. One of the company’s risk management strategies
is to closely monitor currency movements and to enter into forward foreign exchange contracts as appropriate.
The company has also studied other financial mechanisms as alternatives for enhanced efficiency of risk
management. As regards interest rates which are another key financial risk factor, from the beginning of 2011
there has been a concern over inflation rates and the Bank of Thailand has thus taken financial measures to
raise interest rates and indicated signs of an upward trend in interest rates in order to maintain a stable inflation
rate. As the company’s entire long-term loan obligations were tied up with floating interest rates, the company
would be exposed to risks should interest rates rise. Thus, the company entered into interest rate swaps to
exchange floating rates with fixed rates for a portion of its long-term loans in order to mitigate interest rate risks.
However, subsequently, in the 4™ quarter of 2011, the concern about inflation declined and the flooding crisis
occurred, interest rates were then reduced to help business operators and stimulate the economy. Although it
is expected that interest rates should be further reduced in 2012, there is still a high uncertainty due to various
factors such as the flooding problem, oil prices and the political situation. In this regard, the company has
constantly assessed interest rate risks and financial tools as well as negotiated with financial institutions to
adjust financial costs to ensure that they remain within an appropriate level.

Future goals

The company aims to achieve steady and sustainable growth in 4 main businesses: vegetables, fruits and food;

ready-to-drink beverage; retail and food service; and plant extract for food, beverage and cosmetic ingredients.

As regards the vegetable, fruits and food business, the company focuses on exporting products to the global
market and as for the ready-to-drink beverage business, the company together with its joint venture partner,

Suntory Beverage and Foods Co., Ltd., has put emphasis on business growth and to become one of the leaders
in Asian markets.
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isk Factors

hort term business risk

eeting of the Subcommittee of Business Risk Assessment classified business risk into 2 categories: short-term
nd long-term business risk. The impact of risk is classified into 5 levels: Level 5-severe risk [maximum); Level
-high risk; Level 3-medium risk; Level 2-limited risk; and Level 1-minimum risk as details below:
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NATURE | DEGREE .
CATEGORY OF RISK OF RISK REASON IMPACT AND MEASURES TO COPE
Production (A 5 The slow Fluctuations in the exchange rate may

~and export of The recovery of US erode the company's profitability.
- canned volatility Economy and The company has set up regularly
pineapple, of foreign remained meetings between Finance and Sales
: pineapple exchange financial to fix the exchange rate used for quoting
juice rate problems in product prices and to update the situation
concentrate Euro Zone have and trend of exchange rate. The meeting
and mixed encouraged in/ will also make decisions together
fruit out capital flow concerning closing exchange
shortly, resulting rate risk exposure.
in the fluctuation
of exchange rate
(B) 4 Economic crisis As sales of countries that have economic
High level in Europe caused | problem reduced, the company is seeking
of Inventory of the slow down new market to compensate like, Middle
of purchase and East, East Europe including developing
delivery order new products.
(C) 4 Labor is not The company could not keep up with its
Labor sufficient due to production due to labor shortage.
shortage high turnover Furthermore, labor cost tends to be higher.
rate of labor in S0, it imposed the measures to solve
production line the problem by setting up an incentive
program for employees to reduce
the turnover rate and also increasing
level of alien labor




Long term business risk

P-4V

l

| NATURE DEGREE : - . -
CATEGORY l OF RISK OF RISK REASON 1 IMPACT AND MEASURES TO COPE
‘! _
Production and (A) 5 Impact of the “ Fluctuations in the currency exchange rate
export of canned The global economy, | may erode the company’s profitability.
pineapple, volatility Thai political | The company has therefore implemented
pineapple juice | of foreign instability ' risk prevention measures with the forward
concentrate exchange | purchase and sales contract of foreign
and mixed fruit rate ‘ currencies in appropriate amounts.
‘ [Depending on the Baht's trend
! to be weak or strong.)
‘
(B 4 Various and more \‘ Uncertain direction of interest rate caused
Uncertain complicated of difficulty on risk management. Since all
trend of factors effect the of the company’s long term loans based
Interest change of interest | on floating interest rate. The company has
rate rate ' changed some loan to be fixed interest
i rate based in order to close risk in case of
rate hiking. However, the company has
measure to closely monitor update
. information for adjusting port to be
\ in line with the market shortly.
{C) 4 Labor is not ‘ The company could not keep up with its
Labor | sufficient dueto | production due to labor shortage.
: shortage high turnover | Furthermore, labor cost tends to be higher.
\ rate of labor in So, it imposed the measures to solve
1 production line the problem by setting up an incentive
} program for employees to reduce the
: ‘ turnover rate and also increasing
‘ ‘; level of alien labor
- !
(D) 3 Financial crisis Sales to countries that still have economic
World in Euro Zone problem, like US and Euro Zone countries
economic countries still stow down. The company plan to adjust
recession remains portion of sales to enter more product

to new market with concern of account
receivable risk as important factor.
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Remuneration and Search Sup-Committee

1. Dr. Asaniya Suwansirikul Chairlady
2. Mr. Prasob Snongjati Member
3. Mr. Surachet Supsakorn . Member

Corporate Governance Subcommittee

All members of Board of Directors are all members of Corporate Governance Sub-committee.

Business Risk Assessment Committee
1. Managing Director Chairman
2. Director of Business Development and Financial support Vice Chairman
3. Operations Director -Beverage Business Member
4. Operations Director-Fruit and Vegetables Business Member
5. Senior Manager-Retail Business and Food Services Member
6. Senior Plant Manager-Prachuab Factory Member
7. Senior Plant Manager-Wang Noi Factory Member
8. Senior Manager-Controller Member
9. Senior Manager-Treasurer Member
10. Senior Manager-Human Resources Development Member
1. Senior Manager-Quality System Management Member
2. Senior Manager-Engineering Services Member
13. Senior Manager-Information Technology Member
; 4. Warehouse Manager Member
. 15, Procurement Manager Member
16. Production Manager Member
17. Quality Assurance Manager Member
18. Customer Services Manager Member




Management Team

1. Mr. Viwat Limsakdakul Managing Director

2. Mr. Pornchai Phulsuksombati ‘ Director of Business Development and Financial support
3. Mr. Chanchai Kanjanaratmanee Operations Director -Beverage Business

4. Mr. Napat Supsakorn ' Operations Director-Fruit and Vegetables Business

5. Mr. Peerapong Archawapongsawat : Senior Manager-Retail Business and Food Service

Authority and Duties of the Board of Directors

1. Conduct the company's business in full compliance with all the relevant laws, company’s objective and
Articles of Association, and the shareholders’ resolutions, as well as preserve the interests of the company

in accordance with the principle of good corporate governance.

2. Determine policies and business directions as well as monitor and supervise that performance of
managerment comply with such policies and directions and with efficiency and effectiveness for maximizing

the company’s economic value and shareholder’s wealth.

3. Hold an annual general shareholder meeting within four months from the end of the company’s accounting

period and convene an extraordinary general shareholder meeting as necessary.

4. Hold a Board of Directors meeting quarterly, wherein at least half of the number of directors must be present.
Decisions at the meetings will be resolved by a majority vote; if votes result in a tie, the chairperson of the

meeting will cast the decisive vote.

5. Recommend, discuss broad and thoroughly, and make decision carefully concerning consideration of agenda

matters at the board of directors meeting.

6. Prepare a balance sheet and income statement at the end of the company’s accounting period and present
these externally audited financial statements to the shareholders at the annual general meeting for
consideration and approval.

7. Appoint the Managing Director and determine the remuneration.

8. Empower operating authority to the managing director to manage the company, including the authority to

appoint and terminate employment; determine remuneration for employment in accordance with policies of

the Board of Directors: as well as delegate authority to employees in accordance to the business situation.
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9. Consider and approve the capital expenditure and the annual operating budget and supervise the usage of

the company'’s resources.
0. Determine guidelines and policies for the remuneration of senior management.

1. Implement an internal control and audit system, including financial, operational, and compliance control

as well as establish the risk control and management system.

2. Report financial and other important information that are significant to shareholders in an accurate,

complete, and sufficient way, as well as verify and certify those information accordingly.

Authority and Duties of the Executive Board

1 Determine the most efficient and effective business directions and strategies for the Company.

2. Review periodically the operating performances, in order to promptly implement corrective measures to

achieve business goals.

3. Evaluate and consider investment projects and the annual budget for the consideration of the Board of

Directors.
4. Provide advice to the Board of Directors when making important decisions.

5. Handle the Company’s financial activities with financial institutes within scope of authority, concerning

short-term loans, withdrawal, and opening of new accounts.
6. Handle mortgage transactions with the Department of Lands within scope of authority.
7. Authorize investment budgets within scope of authority.

8. Represent the Company and deal with external parties on behalf of the Company.

Authority and Duties of the Managing Director

1. Manage the Company’s operations and business in accordance with the policies and authorities determined

by the Board of Directors.

2. Determine the business plan, including both long term and short term business goals, determine long term

strategies, as well as prepare the annual budget, for approval by the Board of Directors.

3. Manage operations through the management, to achieve goals according to the business plan, for
sustainable competitiveness and appropriate returns for the shareholders.
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Authority and Duties of the Corporate Governance Sub-committee

Determine corporate governance policies in accordance with the regulations of the Stock Exchange of
Thaitand.

Review corporate governance policies periodically and assess the compliance of operations with such policies.

Approve the Company's Code of Conducts.

Authority and Duties of the Nomination and Remuneration Sub-committee

1.

N

Search for an appropriate candidate who is qualified according to the Company’s regulation to be appointed
as Director, as well as appraise the performance of Directors who are retired by rotation and quatified for
re-election. Then nominate the qualified candidate to the Board of Directors for approval, and subsequently
present to the Shareholders’ Meeting for appointment as Director.

Propose the remuneration, benefits, and specific employment conditions for employment, of the Chairman
of the Executive Board, Managing Director, and Senior Management as assigned by the Board of Directors.

Propose the remuneration for the Chairman and the Directors, according to the Company's remuneration

policy, to the Board of Directors for approval, and subsequently present to the Shareholders’ Meeting for
approval.

Recommend the successors of the Chairman of the Executive Board and the Managing Director to the Board
of Directors. Review the succession plan for the Senior Management and other important positions, prepared
by the Chairman of the Executive Board and/or Managing Director.

In charge of the following strategies:
5.1 Human Resources Strategy for Senior Management

5.1.1 Consider and recommend on human resource policies for the senior management, proposed

by the Chairman of the Executive Board and/or Managing Director, and present to the Board of
Directors for consideration.

5.1.2 Ensure that all qualified nominees are included in the succession plan for senior management

and important positions, and ensure that these plans be consistently reviewed by the Chairman
of the Executive Board and/or Managing Director.

5.2 Strategies on Performance Evaluation and Remuneration of Senior Management

5.2.1 Review Remuneration Strategies and propose to the Board of Directors for consideration and
approval.
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5.2.2 Review the remuneration and benefits, including the Employee’s Share Options Program, to
encourage the senior management to strengthen and enhance the capabilities of one’s self 1
and of the subordinates, and to perform their duties with devotion and of highest capacity, for
developing the company's business both in the short and long term. Propose these remunerations
to the Board of Directors for consideration and approval.

5.2.3 Recommend to the Chairman of Executive Board and/or Managing Director, the consideration
guidelines for Remuneration and other benefits for the Senior Management.

5.2.4 Deliberate and recommend to the Board of Directors regarding policies and incentive remunera-

tions intended to retain quality personnel.

Authority and Duties of the Business Risk Evaluation Sub-committee

1.

Ensure that all possible risks which can affect the stability of the Company are identified, monitored, and

avoided.

Keep in line with the business direction, strategies, and organizational core value.
Determine the severity of risk of all activities.

Specify clear indicators of risk.

Inspect the risk independently or implement regular self assessment.

Balance between potential damage from risks associated with business decisions, and the cost of controlling

such risks.

Encourage and promote employee feedback or warning to the management immediately at first sign of a

situation deteriorates.

Benchmark with other companies possessing excellent risk management systems.

Nomination of Director, Independent Director, and Managing Director

1.

The process for nomination and appointment of Directors, Independent Directors and Managing Director:

The Board of Directors determines the qualifications for Director, Independent Director, and Managing

Director.

The Nomination and Remuneration Sub-committee searches for qualified candidates and proposes to the

Board of Directors for consideration.

The Board of Directors proposes the appropriate candidates to the Shareholders’ Meetings for consideration

and appointment as Director or independent Director.

The Board of Directors considers appointment of the Managing Director.
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Qualifications for Directors

1. Possess an unblemished record.

2. Apply both vision and a broad business perspective.

3. Exhibit good interpersonal skills, a sense of justice, and an amenable personality.

4. Apply effective cormmunications skills;

5. Demonstrate systematicwbusiness thinking and decision making;

6. Understand financial matters, commerce or industry, and show business management experience.

7. Have prior experience as a director of a company or state enterprise.

Guidelines for Selection of Directors

1. Individual candidates must possess the qualifications as specified above.

2. Overall, the Board of Directors should be comprised of persons with a variety of skills that are of benefit to

the determination of corporate direction and guidance.

Qualifications of Independent Directors

1. Candidates must possess the requisite qualifications

2. The Director should perform his or her duties and express opinions using independent judgment and
integrity by taking into consideration the benefit of the Company as a priority. The individual should not

consider the interests of majority shareholders, individual shareholders or himself;

3. The candidate must possess the complete set of characteristics specified by the Stock Exchange of Thailand

and Company’s good practices, as follows:

3.1 Does not have shareholding in excess of 2% of the total number of shares with voting rights in the
Company, businesses in the Group, associated companies or persons with possible conflict of interest

(including connected persons as per Measure 258 of the Securities Act);

3.2 Does not have any involvement in company management, is not an employee or consultant receiving
a regular monthly salary, nor an individual with controlling authority in the Company, nor have businesses
within the Group or associated companies. This extends to persons who may have possible conflict of

interest, and candidates must have had no interest or stake as aforementioned for a period of not less

than one year;




(o8]
D

The nominee may not have any business relation; have no interest or stake-whether direct ¢
indirect-in financial or management matters of the Company, businesses within the Group, associateq
companies or persons with a possible conflict of interest of @ nature that may compromise

independence;

34 The nominee must not be a close relative of managament members. majority shareholders in the
Company, those doing business within the Group, associatec companies or parsons with possible confiict
of interest, nor may the individual be an appoiniee to maintain the interest of Direciors or major

shareholders;

©d
()]

The individual is obliged to disclose any relations io the Board of Directors which may compromise

independence.

Gualification tor Managing Divecror

1, Possess integrity and an unblemished record.
2. A professional management who is not @ major shareholder
3. Possess skills and experiences in various areas, including international business.

4. Exhibit astrong leadership, broad visionary, good interpersonal and communication skills, with an amenable

personality.

5. Possess the ability to coordinate differences and various skills and capability of employees to achieve

business objectives, in accordance with the corporate culture.

o~

Dermcnstrate skills in marketing, finance and personnel management.

Canable to oversee, marage, and conduc: the whole ¢ aperations of & dynamic organization.

-~

&. Possess business knowledge, able w identify business opportunities, and excels in problem solving.

The Procedures and Rules for 2 p;oimment of Director ar the General Shareholders’ Meeting

1. The shareholders’ meeting must voie o etect Directors one person at & time

e}

2. In exercising the voting rights for election of each Director, each shareholder shall have voting rights

according to the number of shares held with one share equal to one vote.

3. In exercising the voting rights for the election of each Director, the person who obtains the highest votes
of attending shareholders will be elected as a Director.




16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.
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Article of Association—Directors Section

At each Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting, one-third of all the directors, or, if the number cannot be
evenly divided by three thenthe number nearest to one-third, must retire from office. Directors who are required
to vacate their positions in the first and second year, following the registration of the company, shall be drawn
by ballot for removal. Inthe subsequent years, Directors who have served in office the longest will be required
to leave their positions. A retiring director is eligible for re-election.

In additional to the normal completion of the term, Directors may vacate their positions due to the following
circumstances:

1) Death
2} Resignation

3) Lack of qualifications or possession of characteristics not permitted under Measure 68 of the Public
Limited Companies Act of 1992.

4) A resolution passes by the Shareholders’ Meeting for a Director’s removal under ltem 20.

5} A court order for removal of a Director.

Any Director resigning from his/her position is required to submit a letter of resignation to the company.
The resignation becomes effective on the day of submission of the letter to the company. The resigning director
can also inform their resignation to the registration officer.

Any vacancy among the members of the Board of Directors occurring otherwise than by rotation may be filled
by nomination by the Board of Directors, in the next Board of Directors’ meeting. An exception applies when
there is less than 2 months left before the next election. Any person appointed shall retain office only during

such period of time as the director whom he replaced would have been entitled to retain.

The resolution of the Board of Directors, for the case above, must be made up of votes of no less than three
quarters of the number of the remaining board directors.

The Shareholders’ Meeting may pass a resolution to retire a director from his position, before the end of
his term, with votes of no less than three quarters of the total number of the votes of shareholders who are
attending and eligible to vote. Inaddition, these shareholders must hold in aggregate at least 50% of the total
amount of shares held by attending and eligible shareholders.

A director can but need not be a shareholder of the company.
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Connected Transactions

Persons with Mutual Interest and Related Transactions

Stake holding interest of management is considered in relation to connected companies, subsidiaries and

associated companies. Certain business are suppliers providing product or materials transport services in which

the cost of such products or services provided to the company is calculated at market rates stated in mutual
price policies referring to the Notes to Financial Staternents No. 6, and with no contractual obligations between

the Board of Directors with stake-holding interest owning to their status as Directors or shareholders are:

1. Mrs. Anurat Tiamtan
Mr. Surachet Supsakorn

Mr. Somchit Sertthin

MW ™

Miss. Roumsin Supsakorn

Details of connected relations among the Company’s Directors with related companies are summarized mainly
as the table below:

‘ Relationship with the
Related compan Type and Nature Relationship with the \ company/shareholder name
pany of Business | related companies | and equity stake of the
| | | related company’s toral share
S — I N —
i |
Thanomwongse | Distributor of petroleum | Mrs. Anurat Tiamtan i 15.79% held by
Service Co., Ltd. “ products, constructor \ Director Mrs. Anurat Tiamtan

|
. . ‘
of butldmgs,'roads and | Mr. Surachet Supsakorn | 15.79% held by
surface maintenance Director | Miss Roumsin Supsakorn

|
|
l‘ 1 share held by

|
\
|
|
\ |
| |
i \ | Mr. Surachet Supsakorn
.
|
|
|
|
|
|

Producer and l\ Mrs. Anurat Tiamtan | 24.33% held by

distributor of asphalt | Director | Tipco Foods PCL.
and distributor of & Mr. Somchit Sertthin l\

fuel products Director \

Tipco Asphalt PCL.
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Type and Nature

Related company of Business

Relationship with the
related companies

Relationship with the
company/shareholder name
and equity stake of the
related company’s total share

Ekachaicontainer
Terminal Co., Ltd.

Transport and shipping
service

\
|
\,
\

|

|

l

\

Mr. Somchit Sertthin \
Director \
|

|

|

|

25.17% held by
Mrs. Anurat Tiamtan

11.90% held by
Thanomwongse
Service Co.,Ltd.

12.56% held by
Miss Roumsin Supsakorn

Details of related transaction accounts between Tipco Foods PCL. and its subsi

2010 include these followings:

diaries with related persons in

Type of . . Related transaction value L. .
cramsaction Company/relationship | (million Baht) Pricing policy
| | ‘
1. Other incomes Tipco Asphalt PCL. 1 0.07 \ Market prices, equivalent to
Suratt Bittumen Co., Ltd. 0.02 | that qUoted for outsiders
Suntory Limited in Japan 211.16 ,
]
!
j Total \ 211.25 1
| |
| . | | | |
2. Purchasing | Tipco Asphalt PCL. | 20.66 | Market prices, equivalent
products ll ‘1 l\ to that quoted for outsiders
‘] Total ‘ 20.66 (
l ) \
3. Acquiring Thanomwongse | ‘
services and others Service Co., Ltd. \ 12.43 ~ Market prices, equivalent
\ Tipco Asphalt PCL. \ 2.24 \ to that quoted for outsiders
Ekachaicontainer \ |
Terminal Co., Ltd. ‘ 0.97
\ Total \ 15.64 \
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Details of related transactions between Tipco F&B Co., Ltd. and related companies include these followings:

trZZsF:fct(;in \ Company/relationship Relatfzfngfﬁzzag;zr:)value | Pricing policy
1. Selling products | Siamcontainer 0.17 * Market prices, equivalent to
\ Transport Co., Ltd. that quoted for outsiders
Raycol Asphalt Co., Ltd. 0.09
‘l Thanomwongse 1.51
1 Service Co., Ltd.
| Tipco Asphalt PCL. 1.22
Rattanajit Co., Ltd. 0.27 \
Thai Bitumen Co., Ltd. | 0.03
| Thai Crushing Co., Ltd. \ 0.03
‘ Suratt Bitumen Co., Ltd. 0.11
\ Thai Slurry Seal Co., Ltd. \ 0.02
| Tipco Maritime Co., Ltd. | 0.04
| Total | 3.49
2. Purchasing | Tipco Asphalt PCL. 1.95 Market prices, equivalent to
products l that quoted for outsiders
. Total 1.95
3. Acquiring services Tipco Asphalt PCL. 0.94 Market prices, equivalent to
and others Thanomwongse 10.89 that quoted for outsiders
Service Co., Lid.
Ekachaicontainer 0.22
Terminal Co., Lid.
Suntory Limited in Japan 2.0
| Siamcontainer 0.0
" Transport Co., Ltd. L
E Raycol Asphalt Co., Ltd. 1 0.21 l
| Total | 14.28 1 -

Details of related transactions between Tipco Retail Co., Ltd. and related companies include these followings:

1 l . [
Type of | . .| Related transaction value | . )
transaction | Company/relationship \ (million Baho) \1 Pricing policy
. '\

1. acquiring | Thanomwongse l 1.50 | Market prices, equivalent to
services Service Co., Ltd. ‘ ] that quoted for outsiders
and others Tipco Asphal PCL. )‘ 0.02 \

|
| Total | 1.52 ‘1




er service transactions were building rental paid to Thanomwongse Service Co., Ltd. This was booked as
ense of the Company, Tipco F&B Co., Ltd. and Tipco Retail Co., Ltd. of 8.08 million Baht, 4.88 million Baht

1.00 million Baht, respectively. The Audit Committee had taken serious consideration to prove that such
tal was fair when compared with similar buildings and facilities services available in Bangkok. Approval was

de by the Company's Board of Directors, in which related Directors had no voting rights.

he fuel purchasing transaction with Tipco Asphalt PCL, was done after surveying prices with other suppliers
order to make sure that this complied with the Company’s procurement standard under 1S0 quality system.

e Necessity and Rationality of the Transactions

rhe related transactions between the Company, subsidiaries and related persons who might conflict of interest
re treated as normal business activities and needed to be approved by Audit Committee first and then the Board
of Directors. This is in line with all endorsement procedures of the Company involving in price comparison and

market price quotation policy.

The Measure and Process of Related Party Transactions

The related party transactions at the present continuing to the future, must be approved by both the Audit
L Committee and the Board of Directors. This is in line with all endorsement procedures of the Company involving

in price comparison and supplier selection process, in which the Directors who have the conflict of interests

must obtain from voting.

Policies and Tendencies of Related Party Transactions in the Future

The related party transactions, which occur at present and may continue to the future, are treated as normal
business activities. There will be neither unusual transactions nor the transfers of interest between the
Company, subsidiaries and related persons with possible conflicts of interest. The Company will have the Audit
Committee or the Company's auditor or independent expert to examine the suitability of prices and rationality
of transactions and to make relevant remarks. Details, values and reasons on these transactions are required
to publicly disclose and report to Shareholders” Meeting and in the annual report. The Board of Directors has to
comply with securities and exchange laws and regulations, announcement of the Stock Exchange of Thailand.
Moreover, the Company has to strict with the disclosure of relevant transactions and acquisitions or sales of
significant assets of the Company or subsidiaries in accordance with the accounting standard of the Institute
of Certified Accounts and Auditors of Thailand. In case of any related party transactions between the Company,
subsidiaries and related persons with possible conflict of interests, the Company must have the Audit Committee
to examine the justification of these transactions. In case of any transactions that may be beyond the Audit
Committee’s capability, the Company will establish independent expert or auditor team to do that before having

any conclusions to propose to the Company’s Board of Directors or shareholders.




Report of the Board of Directors
‘Responsibility to Financial Reporting

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for the financial statements of the Company and it:’i
subsidiaries, including the financial information presented in the Annual Report. The financial statements ar
prepared in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles, while the suitable and consistent?{
accounting policies are duly adopted. Cautious judgment and the best possible estimates are exercised in thei
preparation of the Statements. In addition, significant information is sufficiently shown in the Notes to the:
Financial Statements. The Statements have been inspected by licensed and independent auditors, who have ;
not made any conditional comments. The Statements therefore accurately and reasonably reflect the financial
position and operating performance results of the business, for the benefit of shareholders, general investors
and parties with interests in the Company, in a transparent manner.

The Board of Directors has initiated, and continues to maintain, a system of risk management, as well as suitable
and efficient internal controls, in order to reasonably ensure that the recording of accounting data is conducted
accurately, comprehensively and adequately. This is with the aim of protecting the assets of the business, and to

identify weaknesses, to prevent risk from acts and corruption or transactions of a significantly abnormal nature.

To this end, the Board of Directors has appointed the Audit Committee, comprising of 3 Independent Directors,
to oversee and be responsible for ensuring the quality of financial reporting, as well as internal controls.

The Audit Committee’s opinions on this matter are shown in the Audit Committee’s Report as appearing in the
Annual Report.

The Board of Directors of the Company is of the opinion that the business” internal control systems are of a
satisfactory level to engender a reasonable degree of confidence in the consolidated Financial Statements, as
well as the Financial Statement of the Company’s subsidiaries as of 31 December 2011.

Aa-1 M Lhoveiimsr Lo _a

(Mrs.Anurat Tiamtan) (Mr.Viwat Limsakdakul]
Chairlady of the Board Managing Director
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Report of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of Tipco Foods Public Company Limited comprises 3 Independent Directors. Mr. Prasob
snongjati serves as Chairman of the Audit Committee, while Mr. Virat Phairatphiboon and Dr. Asaniya
suwansirikul serve as Members of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee carried out its duties in

compliance with the regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand and as assigned by the Board of Directors.

in 2011, the Audit Committee held 5 formal meetings with the corporate auditors and internal auditors. The
Committee also held several consultations with the internal auditors and management, with significant details
summarized as follows:-

1. The Audit Committee had reviewed and approved the annual internal audit program, in order to
ensure the sufficiency of internal control systems, with Audit and Management Consultants Co., Ltd.,
the internal auditors of the Company. An emphasis was placed on managing business risk and the

internal auditors were assigned the task of reviewing this on a quarterly basis.

2. The Committee had reviewed the financial statements and financial reports to ensure compliance
with generally accepted accounting principles and found that information disclosed are sufficient,

complete and credible.

3. The Committee had reviewed connected transactions between the Company and related parties and
found that such transactions were carried out in the normal business operation manner, with justified

competitive price and at an arm'’s length basis.

4. The Audit Committee opined that an effective system of controls was in place. No shortcomings of
a significant nature were found. Management was encouraged to enhance the efficiency of internal
control and risk management systems to conform with a changing business environment on an
ongoing basis. The Committee also provided supports and encouragement to the internal auditors

to ensure internal audit activities in 2011 measured up to an international standard.




5. The Audit Committee monitored the Company's investment projects by frequently following up and

reviewing progress with management.

6. The Committee reviewed and ensured that the Company was in compliance with the relevant
regulations and laws, in order to provide an equity and transparency to Shareholders and all related

parties. The Company was found to be in complete compliance with such regulations and laws.

7. The Audit Committee reviewed and submitted a proposal to the Board of Directors to appoint auditors
from Bunchikij Accountants Co., Ltd. as the corporate auditors for the year 2011 based on their past

performance, excellent reputation and professionalism.

In summary, the Audit Committee had reviewed the operations of the principal business of the Company and
held joint discussions with relevant management, internal auditors and the corporate auditors and is confident
that the Company’s internal control systems are currently sufficient and consistently enhanced. The Company
was found to comply with good corporate governance and risk management, while the process of the corporate
financial statements preparation was carried out under appropriate and adequate controls. The Company’s
financial statements were prepared in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles. In
addition, the Audit Committee conducted regular reviews of the relevant laws, regulations and rules to ensure
that the Company was in compliance with such laws, regulations and rules.

Prasob Snongjati
Chairman of the Audit Committee
10 February 2012
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AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of TIPCO FOODS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
(Formerly “TIPCO FOODS (THAILAND) PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED")

I have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position of TIPCO FOODS PUBLIC COMPANY
LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES as at December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the related consolidated statements
of comprehensive income, changes in shareholders” equity and cash flows for the years then ended, and have
audited the accompanying separate statements of financial position of TIPCO FOODS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
as at December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the related separate statements of comprehensive income, changes in
shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial staternents are the responsibility
of the Company’s management as to their correctness and completeness of the presentation. My responsibility
is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit.

| conducted my audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that
| plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
of material misstaterment. An audit includes examining on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles uses and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
| believe that my audit provides a reasonable basis for my opinion.

In my opinion, the consolidated and the separate financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position as at December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the consolidated
results of its operation and cash flows for the years then ended of TIPCO FOODS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND
ITS SUBSIDIARIES, and the financial position as at December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the results of its operation,
and cash flows for the years then ended of the TIPCO FOODS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED only, in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles.

Without qualifying my opinion on the aforementioned financial statements, | draw attention to Notes 2, 3 and 4
to the financial statements, during the year 2011, the company and its subsidiaries have adopted the new and
revised Financial Reporting Standards as announced by The Federation of Accounting Professions, which was
effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011, for preparation and presentation of
financial staterments. The consolidated and separate financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2010,
presented for comparative purpose, are therefore presented in the new format to conform with the financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2011.

< i&
//’
L

Bangkok (Pornchai Kittipanya-ngam)
February 21, 2012 Certified Public Accountant

Registration No. 2778
Bunchikij Co., Ltd.
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TIPCO FOODS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
(Formerly “TIPCO FOODS (THAILAND) PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED”)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at December 31, 2011 and 2010

ASSETS Unit : Baht
Consolidated Separate
Financial Statements Financial Statements
\ " Note 2011 2010 2011 \ 2010
CURRENT ASSETS ;
Cash and cash equivalents | 5.2 and 7 41,149,809 44,746,664 | 21,454,864 27,367,902
Current investments 8 307,527 263,805 ‘ 0 0
Trade and other receivables | 5.3 and 9 577,511,511 622,959,702 226,099,806 269,010,436
Short-term loans 4 10 0 0 289,300,000 274,000,000
to related parties : oy ;
Inventories 5.4 and 11 1,480,003,676 813,635,407 1,023,874,563 519,228,357
Other current assets 12 22,146,505 7,984,301 | 15,478,160 5,254,336
Total current assets \ 221,119,028 | 1,489,589,679 1,576,207,393 | 1,094,861,031
NON-CURRENT ASSETS l ‘ ;
Available-for-sale 5.5 and 13 11,142,199 0 11,142,199 0
investments ~ : ‘ ;
Investments in 55 and 14 936,647,977 741,094,394 647,1‘09,739 647,109,739
associated company
Investments in 55 and 14 0 0 210,811,670 210,811,670
subsidiary companies
Deposits at bank 15 4,180,000 4,180,000 0 0
used as collateral : ‘ -
Property, plant and 5.7 and 16 2,607,003,580 2,504,996,025 904,247,597 850,635,042
equipment ~
Intangible assets 5.8 and 17 30,279,803 31,253,748 27,388,041 28,370,018
Interest rate swap contract \ 4,254,143 0 4,254,143 0
Deposits and guarantees | 18 15,835,856 15,306,462 2,325,470 | 2,387,489
Other non-current assets 1 8,938,944 11,167,114 3,948,712 0
Total non-current assets \ 3,618,282,502 i 3,307,997,743 | 1,811,227,571 1,739,313,958
Total assets \ 5,739,401,530 \ 4,797,587,422 | 3,387,434,964 2,834,174,989

Notes to financial statements are an integral part of these statements.




TIPCO FOODS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
{(Formerly “TIPCO FOODS (THAILAND) PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED")

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at December 31, 2011 and 2010

LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

201y

Unit : Bapy

Consolidated

Financial Sratemends

"
Separate
Financial Statemencs

. Note 2011 2010 2011 { 2010
CURRENT LIABILITIES | | ,
Bank overdrafts and 191 1.238,070,822 . 812,000,632 | 76,000,000 ' 571937508
§hort-‘te‘rm l.o“an'_s from | ‘ : !
financlal INstitutions : l
Trade and other payables C20 | 552,466,741 443,608.461 | 189,881,667 163,834,337
Account payable for : 1 £9,614,192 5¢,165,866 4,151,863 ‘ 0
machinery : ! |
Current portion of long-term | 21 L 302,995,245 201.788.946 | 124,656,681 135,369,828
liabilities , : :
Accrued income tax 1 | 8,295,873 0 [ 7,825.92 | 0
Accounts payable to forward ¢ 23| 10,850,481 8.060,429 | 10,854,624 | 9,000,648
exchange contracts : ;] k !
Other current liabilities i 16,572,162 | 27.867,617 4,215,700 1 9,142,494
Total current liabilities 5 | 2,198,865,516  1,642,549,951 | 1,087,586,459 \ 889,284,815
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES |
Long-term liabilities ! 211 1,091,366,701 . 1,103,280.566 606,888,603§ 429,124,388
Provision for dismantling cost i 2,830,000 \ 0 0 i 0
Employee benefit obligations | 5.12 and 22 40,050,132 “ 0 34,005,459 : 0
_ ‘ ‘ S R ] I
~ Total non-current liabilities 1,134,246,833  1,103,280,566 | 640,894,062 L 429,124,388
Total Uabilities | 3,333,112,349 2 74E.830,517  1.728,480,521 | 1.218.409.203
SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY ‘
Share capital A

Authorized share capital (

500,000,000 Ordinary
shares of Baht 1 each,

i
500,000,000 | 500,000.000

1
|
1
|

Issued and paid-up share
capital 482,579,640
Ordinary shares of
Baht 1 each, fully paid

Non-controlling interests in
subsidiary of the associated

company

acquired at price lower .

than book value

500,000,000 | 500.000,000
482 579,640 ; 482,579,640
|
1
1,517,573 | 0

|
i

|

i

|

i

\

|

i

| |
lt 482,579,640 | 482,579,640
|

't

1

|

Notes to financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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TIPCO FOODS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
(Formerly “TTPCO FOODS (THAILAND) PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED”)
As at December 31, 2011 and 2010
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY Unit : Baht
Consolidated Separate
Financial Statements Financial Statements
Note 2011 2010 \ 2011 2010

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY ‘

Change in the interest in

subsidiary of the associated

company wich not resulted

in loss of control of the : '

associate 3,139,507 0 0 0

Capital reserve for
share-based payment
transactions of the ‘ :
associated company 1,129,990 0 0 0
Retained earnings B
Appropriated for
legal reserve 24.2 50,000,000 50,000,000 50,000,000 50,000,000
Unappropriated 1,489,476,487 | 1.194,440,001 | 1,110,990,712 983,186,146
Other components of equity (16,390,901 (56,369,018) 15‘,384,09‘1 0
Total equity holders of 2,011,452,296 | 1,670,650,623 |~ 1,658,954,443 | 1,515,765,786
the parent o :

Non-controlling interests 394,836,885 | 381,106,282 0 0
Total shareholders’ equity 2406,289,181 | 2051756905 | 1,658.954443 | 1515.765.786
Total liabilities and . :

shareholders’ equity 5,739,401,530 | 4,797,587.422 3387434964 | 2,834,174,989

Notes to financial statements are an integral part of these statements.




TIPCO FOODS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
(Formerly “TIPCO FOODS (THAILAND) PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED”)

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

Unit : Baht

Consolidated , Separate
Financial Statements ‘ Financial Statements
H H T T N
| Note 2011 2010 2011 ' 2010
Revenues from the sales of 26 4,825,086,125 | 4,713,779,149  2,458,307,570| 2,515,442,721

goods and the rendering of |
services | |
Cost of the sales of goods

and the rendering of services 3,274,826,466 3,531,881,710 | 2,052,695,023 | 2,459,368,786

Gross profit 1,550,259,659 1,181,897,439 405,612,547 56,073,935
Other incomes 27 324,181,252 176,459,334 122,025,470 130,498,449
Profit before expenses : 1,874,440,911 1,358,356,773 | 527,638,017 186,572,384
Selling expenses 1 (1,151,091,229) | (1,004,574,034) { (127,287,356)| (144,904,685)

Administrative expenses (409,289,101) (330,008,408) | (148,973,145) (107,056,548)

(29,427,720) (33,215,260) (29,427,72031  (33.215,260)

Profit {loss) before Share of r 284,632,861 (9,440,929) 221,949,796  (98,604,109)
profit from investments in

Management benefit expenses

associated company

Share of profit from 178,960,131 245,153,851 0 0
investments in

associated company

Profit (loss) before finance ’ 463,592,992 235,712,922 | 221,949,796, (98,604,109)

costs and income tax

Finance costs | ~(93,780,388) (56,953,563) | (52,716,504) | (31,410,645)
Profit (loss) before income tax 369,812,604 1 178759.359 | 169,233,292, (130,014,754)
income tax i | (9,873,272) | (9,355,047) 0
Profit {loss) for the years 359,939,332 178,759,359 | 159,878,245, (130,014,754)

Other comprehensive
income (loss)

Change in fair value of

|
|
interest rate swap contract } 4,604,880 | 0 4,604,880 0
. |
Available-for-sale 1 ‘
investments | 10,779,211 | 0 10,779,211 0

Notes to financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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" Tor the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

[pCO FOODS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
Formerly “TIPCO FOODS (THAILAND) PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED”)

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

equity-parent company

Unit : Baht
Consolidated 5‘ Separate
Financial Statements | Financial Statements
— l T H
2011 | 2010 2011 | 2010
Exchange differences on ‘l
translation of financial |
statements in foreign
currencies 51,947 \ (135,166) 0 0
Share of comprehensive 1
income (loss) in associated '
company 24,542,079 (45,251,985) 0 0
Other comprehensive 5
income (loss] for the years 39,978,117 \ (45,387,151) 15,384,091 0
A | -
Total comprehensive \ \
income (loss) for the years 399,917,449 | 133,372,208 175,262,336 \ (130,014,754)
Profit (loss) attributable to: 343,625,558 146,951,024 159,878,245 | (130,014,754)
Equity holders of the parent
Non-controlling interests \ 16,313,774 31,808,335 0 0
] 359,939,332 178,759,359 159,878,245 | (130,014,754)
- — - — R IR — _
Total comprehensive income \
(loss) attributable to: ]l
. l
Equity holders of the parent \ \ 383,603,675 101,563,873 | 175,262,336 i (130,014,754)
|
Non-controlling interests | | 16818774 31,808,335 0 11 0
l I
J \ 399,917,449 \ 133,372,208 175,262,336 \ (130,014,754)
| ,
Basic earnings per share \ \ \
Profit (loss) of shareholders’ | (Baht) 0.7121 0.3045 0.3313 % (0.2694)
|

Notes to financial statements are an integral part of these statements.




-syuawaels asay) jo ued jeibajuy ue a1 SUBWIDIE)S (B1DuRUY 0} SIION

.‘M&o,mmm ‘€L) Qmw.MmM.mU \“ ‘ __ T . (669°GEL'EL) , | Auedwod pajenosse Ut
* ,_ -syyeuaq sakoduig

(796'907°48) | (1L1°€85'¢) | (ELEEGEE) (£LE€58'7€) (7 910N)
syleuaq asAoidw

Aanjod Burjunoooe
ur abueyp jo joedw]

G068 1G0T | 282°901'18E | £29°059°0LY'L | (BLUT69E9G) | (6EETLLETLE) 17572061 0 0 100’077 761 L | B00‘000'0S 0 0 0 07966787 | peuodai Aisnoaid se-
110z ‘| Aenuer
1e se ajuejeqd

606'95L°LG0°T | Z8Z°901°L8E | £29°059'049°L | (810°69€°96) (656°LL8'LS)| 12G°20G'L 0 0 LOO'0YY'76L°L | 000°000°0S 0 0 0 079°6L5°28Y 0102 ‘1€ 49quiadag
je se aduejeg

010z 1294 3U) J0j SUICdU

g0z'TLeEEL GEC'B08°LE €48'€96"101 (151°28€°67) | (G86162°GY) | (991°GEL) 720°186°971
anIsuaya.lduiod 1e10)
(6w1°LGETL) (GyiLsees) (G1°L5€°2L) (172 ®10N)
pied puspiaig
TURLYLI066TL | LY6'L6TT6TE (£98°186'DL) LGS 6L9TCL) | L89UEYL 0 ] ZZL978'sLLL | 000°000°04 0 0 U 0v9°6L5°78Y 010z ‘L Arenuer
\e se soueied
jeo], 1$2521U] juared oy Jo | Aunba jo | VOOSSE UL | SAOUALIL stusw | 1enuod | pmeudordde | aalsas 23eI2088E 23RIHOSSE sn[ea jeardes azeys
Surjjonuod sioploy | siusuodwos | suoout aals uS1as0f uf | -189Au) dems -un s a4) jo oy 4o sooq uayp | dn-pred
~UON] Limba jerog, 1410 -uagpadwon | 1udwALS aes BN patesd  [suopousurn)  {0NU0D MO sopd| pue panssy
{e10], FERERGIN jeouRUY -10} 3523211 -oxddy wowAed | jossojpur |1e parmboe
jo qgepreay | goaupea | paseq painsas faedwiod
uoIE[suLy g @ -oxeys ou yoiym | pareoosse
uo SOUILIER PAUTRIN i 10} aamsa1 | Suedwod oy Jo
$2OUIIYIP [eindesy pareposse | Lwipisqns
saBueyoxy ay jo w

Awepprsqns | 1S0491
1s2103u1 oy | FUyjonued
ul dduey) ~UON]

|
R S A S BN

alitle ]} w>mmc.wn_0._&;~0u .ﬁ:—uo

\f! h? Lunba yo stuauoduiod BYIO

yuased 2y jo s1epjoy Lnnbyg

wed - Hun

0107 pue [{0T ‘L€ 12quiadd( papu? 1824 Y 10
SLNAWLLY.LS TYIONVNI4 JdLVAITOSNOD

| ALINOT SYAATOHTIVHS NI SAONVHD 40 mHZmzm,H<F%

(AALINIT ANVINOD OI'T1Nd (ANVTIVHL) SQ0Od ODdLL, Apawsog)
SHIYVIAISENS SLIANY JHLINITANVINOD DI19Nd SAOO0d OOdLL

1




1
| 181°687°907Z
4

17

1

|

6YY'L16°66¢

066°6Z4°L

,
|

LOG'6ELE

_
£LG'LLS'L

799°'785°000°C

ﬁqurﬁ

G88°9€8'76E

YLL'ELE9L

LL1'EZ6'8LE

153191

Surfjonuod

-UON

962°267'110°C (106°06€°91) (09y'6ZE°€E) | 897785

6L0°275°7C

GL9'€09°E8E LLLBLE6E Ly6°1S
066°62L°L
L0G6EL'E
ELG LIS
1G5°190°229°L (8L0°69€95) (6£5°1£8'L8) 125'206°}
uared oy jo £ynbo Jo | 1BI00SSE UL $IOULIND
NEM simouodiuos | woots aals | uSeioy ul
Aunba [e10], 1410 -uayp1duwiod | JUIUIAIEIS
Texo], 30 3rEyS [eouEUY
jo
uone[suEn
uo
SOOUDISPIP
safueyoxy

“SjuSWIeIEIS 950} jo Hed jesbajul ue 318 SJUSWIBIEIS jepueUl) 0} S310N

l\\J‘\\l«\J\\\\l - e
LIZ'6LL'0L | 088'709'7 | L8Y'9LY'68Y'L | 00000008 Ho&.oﬁ._ LOG6EL'E | ELGTLLSL | 0Y9'6LE'T8Y L10Z ‘1€ Joquadag
1e se aouereg
s e ey
L1Z'6LL°0L | 088'709'y | 8GG'STY'EVE 1102 Jeak ayy Joj swodul
ansuayaIduod jeoL
066°62L°L fuedwiod pajerdosse
ay) 4O suoldesuen
ywowAed paseq-a/eys
J0) anlasal) jEnded
LOG6ELE 9)e120SSE 3Y)
10 104JU02 J0 SSO] Ul
paNNSaL 10U YaIym
fuedwod pajeldosse
3y} Jo AJerpisans ui
1sase)u1 3y Ui abueyd
€LG'LISL %00( Uy Jamo)
ao1:d Je paJinboe
fuedwiod paleidosse
ayj jo Aleipisqns ul
s15u91U1 BUMOJIU0D-UON
0 0 676'058°G71°L | 00000005 |0 0 0 0%9°6L5°28Y pajsnipe 1oy
-110z 'V Aienuer
1e se asueleg
— f S R
siuaw 10B1IU0D _uuum:moa% EYS et 218100858 | S1BIOOSST anfea | [evideo oreys
-1$2AUT dems -u(} 1287 ay3 jo ay Jo 5100q Uyl dn-pred
3[es-10§ el porend  [suonoesuen [o1IU0d  [19MO] soud| pue panssy
-2]qe[iEAy | 1s121MI -oxddy ; juswded | jossojur |1E parmboe
Jo anfea paseq-oreys| TS Auedwoo
Iref surures paureIyg 10] 9AJ2531 | 10U YIIYM PatTRIOOSSE
_SENU Auedwod g jo
poeIo0sse Arerpisqns
_ ays jo Ut 1$2101U1
ﬂ Azerpisqns up|8urjonuod
1sa3olur o | -UON
_ ur 28uey)

£Limba jo siuduodwod PP

awoouy salsudyaIdwiod PPO

yuazed a1 O SIPIOY Ambyg

yegd : Wun

ALINOTA SYFATOHTIVH

0107 pue 1107 ‘1€ 32que3(J papu? s1eak 2} 30
SLNAWH.LY.LS TYIONVYNLI ga.LydriosNOD

S NI SAONVHO 10 mPZmZmHﬁ%,

{JELIATT ANVINOD or1and (ANVIIVHL) Sa00d ODdLL, Apraw10d)

, AR OdLL




*SUaUIAIR)S ISIYY JO ped dm\_mwur:. ue aJe SjuULIE)S (Bldueuy O} SINON

—
—

<

o

L Ew7'Y66°8G9°L 160°78€°GL LLZ 6LL°0L 088°709°Y ZLL'066°0LL°L 000°000°0S 0%9'6L5°28Y7 110z ‘L€ Jaquadad
je se asuejeq

CIRAATATA! 160" 78E°GL LLZ 644501 088709y GY7Z'818°651 L 10z Jeh 2y} 4o}
aWw0oUl 3AISUBYa1dUI0D 18301

L0V7269°C8YL 0 0 0 L97'TLLI1LGE 000°000°0S 079 645°28Y Umu,m:.:um JBYV-1102Z ‘1 Auenuer
1B SE 9ouEeg

i S PR RS USSR SV BRSNS — - \.i?\:

A.& £40 mmw B (6L9°€40°CE) ? 807: syyauaq 99k01dwi3
| Aonod bununoide
,m i ur abueyo jo Umo_E_

98.°G9L° m_m L 0 0 ; 0 . 97l° om_ mwo ooo ooo 05 079 61G°28Y _u@toam_ A m:o_>8q se-
| . (pavpny) 1107 't Asenuer
m Hm se mucmgmm

98/'69LGLG L 0 0 i o | 971°98L°€86 000°000°0% ; 079°645°28Y o—oN _‘m hmnEmumo
W _v | e se asuejeg
(764 710°0EL) @mﬁ ﬁo om: | | 010¢ Jeak ayy 10} aUI0dU
” anIsudya1dwod 1e1oL
(er1°L88°2L) (571°45€°2L) (172 210N) pied puspiniQ
GRY'LEL'BLLL 0 0 0 GY0'8GG°G8L L 000°000°04 079°645°C8Y | (paupny) 010 'L Asenuer
um se mucm_mm
o .mmwotrwl T Lmba T suswnsoaur | T )penuod T T wiomu,.ﬂ_.vmﬁ T l eudes uf_m ) -
! Jjo siuouodwrod  [9[es-s0§-2[qejieay dems a1es ﬁBS&O&%:D pareL _mo_mm{\ m:-ﬁ_wg
| 12410 [RI0], 3S2121U1 JO 3NJEA Iiey] T T suruaes Wmm_w_mmm.i pu panss|
ﬁil “swoout y:éuawa&m.u.\&_‘mo“ - - T e

~ fimba jo siuauodwod PYIO)

ues  JUN

0107 PUB { 10T 1€ 10quuada] papu sieak ay3 104
SINAWALYLS TVIONVYNIA IVIVJAES

ALINOA SYAATOHTIVHS NI SHONVHD J0 mFZmEMrQPMJ

(OALINTT ANVINOD D1'T19Nd (ANVTIVH L) SAO0d ODdLL, 4Howog)
SAMAVIAISANS S.LTANY GELLINITANVIWOD DIdNd SAOOT OOdLL




ALETVORY 2011 [HICEERES

M LRI WY i 0103
TIPCO FOODS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
(Formerly “TIPCO FOODS (THAILAND) PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED”)
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW'S
For E{?:ars ended December 31, 2011 and 2010
Unit : Baht
Consolidated Financial Separate Financial
Statements Statements
Note 2011 2010 2011 2010
Cash flows from operating activities :
Profit (loss) before income tax 369,812,604 | 178,759,359 | 169,233,292 |(130,014,754)
Adjustments to reconcile profit before
income tax to net cash
provided by operating activities
Depreciation and amortization 197,134,176 186,688,453 102,351,475 99,495,292
Withholding tax-written off 224,538 289,704 0 0
Doubtful accounts (reversal) 528,537 (200,000] 528,537 (200,000}
Loss on decline in value of invento-
ries (reversal) 0 (128,632) 0 (128,632
Loss on expired goods (reversal) (7,849,383} | (18,548,923 | (4,563,073}| (15.787.415)
(Gain) loss on exchange rate 10,704,258 15,624,190 4,830,737 14,579,003
(Gain] loss on sales of fixed assets
and writting off 6,874,609 5,788,070 199,991 2,068,847
Employee benefit expenses 5,214,155 0 3,854,480 0
Share of profit from investments
in associated company (178,960,131) | (245,153,851} 0 0
Interest income (58,325) (101,059} | (9,834,305)| (6,231,388
Interest expenses 92,554,422 55,547,880| 52,537,932 31,232,073
496,179,460 178,565,191 319,139,066 (4,986,974)
Change in operating assets and liabilities
(Increase] decrease in assets
Trade accounts receivable 60,390,898 41,369,467| 54,122,231 55,510,750
Amounts due from related parties 1,739,970 | (40,958,388) 630,450 1,282,260
Inventories (664,396,561) | 222,791,882 |(500,715,403) | 256,695,563

Notes to financial statements are an integral part of these statements.




TIPCO FOODS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
(Formerly “TTPCO FOODS (THAILAND) PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED")

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

Unit : Baht

Consolidated Financial

Separate Financial

Notes to financial statements are an integral part of these statements.

Statements Statements
Note 2011 2010 2011 2010 o
Value added tax (12,880,960)|  3,036,605| (12,880,960)| 5,867,860
Prepaid expenses (574,680) (523,695)| (2,042,561} | [1,470,559)
Other accounts receivable (13,407,940} |  26,962,515| (8,086,780 2,501,482
Other current assets 3,818,649 4,797,707 960,360 (21,970)
Deposits and guarantees (529,394) 71,39 62,019 310,546
Deferred Charges 301,437 2,410,562 (2,109,125) 0
Other non-current assets 2,010,761 6,109,909 0 61,623
Increase (decrease) in liabilities
Trade accounts payable (272,471)| (52,496,488 | (6,235,125} | (59,066,635)
Amounts due to related parties (511,476} 531,653 (85,718) 327,053
Accrued expenses 87,890,788  64,665,623| 21,254,701 (24,426,253)
Advance incomes 4,373,837 3,348,881 3,483,804 3,851,993
Accrued withholding tax 12,315 172,024 181,739 (430,560}
Other current liabilities (12,451,821)|  (2,458,706) | (6,030,927)|  (872,260)
Employee benefit obligations (2,600,567 0| [1,922,700) 0
Exchange differences on translation
of financial statements in foreign
currencies 51,948 {135,166 0 0
Cash generated from operations (50,855,807} | 458,260,972 {(140.274.929) 235,133,919
Interest paid (89.738,514) | (54,240,803) | (50,879,479)| (29.937.781)
Refund of prepaid company
income tax 0 2,633,833 0 0
Income taxes paid (1792,538) | (7.937,911)| (1,529,123) | (4,444 746)
Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities (142,386,859) | 398,716,091 (192,683 531) 200,751,392




Lkl 201 VIO 00T SURDIC RNy Lt 0105
TIPCO FOODS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
(Formerly “TIPCO FOODS (THAILAND) PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED”)
For the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010
Unit : Baht
Consolidated Financial Separate Financial
Statements Statements
Note 2011 | 2010 2011 2010
Cash flows from investing activities :
Increase in current investments (43,722) (21,028) 0 0
increase in time deposits 0 (180,000 | 0 0
Increase in short-term loans to related ; ;
parties 0 0{ (15,300,000)]  (400.000)
Purchases of Available-for-sale ;
investments - (362,988 0| [362,988) 0
Sales of fixed assets 11,506,127| 3,078,157 1,126,961 957,017
Purchases of fixed assets (282,661,775) | (320,557,226) (146,589,645} | (85,425,713
Payment for intangible assets {474,900} (1,421,900) {82,000} (843,725)
Repayment for account payable for ; ' e
machinery (11,705,539 (804,403) 0 (804,403)
Interest received 58,325 101,059~ 9,834,305| 6,231,388
Net cash used in investing activities (283,684,472} | (319,805,341 | (151,373,367} | (80,285,436]
Cash flows from financing activities :
Increase (decrease) in bank overdrafts 70,190 2,000,632 {1,937,507) 1,937,507
Increase {decrease] in loans from
financial institutions 426,000,000 0| 176,000,000 60,000,000
Repayment for long-term
machinery payable (26,411,848} | (23,295,435) 0 0
Repayment for liabilities under o
finance lease (3,258,052} (2,285,125)| (1,989,208} (1,752,915)
Proceeds from long-term loans 300,000,000 180,000,000 300,000,000 0
Repayment for long-term loans (274,000,000) | (200,000,000} |(134,000,000) (95,000,000
Dividend paid 0 (72,357,145) 0| (72,357,145
Net cash provided by (used in
financing activities 422,400,290(115,937,073) | 338,073,285 (107,172,553)
Notes to financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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TIPCO FOODS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
(Formerly “TTPCO FOODS (THAILAND) PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED”)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

Consolidated Financial Separate Financial
Statements Statements
Note 2011 2010 2011 2010
Effect from exchange rate in cash and
cash equivalents 74,386 (2,718,643) 70,575 (2,711,924)
Increase (decrease} in cash and cash
equivalents, net (3,596,655) | (39,744,966)| (5,913,038} 10,581,479
Cash and cash equivalents as at
January 1, 44,746,464 84,491,430 27,367,902 16,786,423
Cash and cash equivalents as at
December 31, 52and7 41.149.809 44,746,464 21,454,864 27,367,902
Supplemental disclosures of cash
flows information
Non-cash items :
Account payable for machinery 16,323,956 57,283,108 4,023,956 0
Machinery payables-installment 0] 10,460,000 0 0
Lease contract liabilities 4,232,075 3,194,000 2,661,075 0

Notes to financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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TIPCO FOODS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
(Formerly “TIPCO FOODS (THAILAND) PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED”)

N otes to Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

1. General information '

1.1 The Company was incorporated in Thailand on March 22, 1976, and has been listed in the Stock
Exchange of Thailand since 1989. The operations of the Company and its subsidiaries are manufacturer
and distributor the products of pineapple in syrup, pineapple juice, mixed fruit juice, herbal drinks

and natural mineral water.

12 The address of the company and its subsidiaries are 118/1 Rama 6 Rd., Samsen Nai, Bangkok 10400
and the factories are as follow:

_ 212 Phetkasem Rd., Moo 16, Aownoi, Amphur Muang, Prachaubkhirikhan 77210
- 205/1 Moo 2, Pongyaeng, Amphur Mae-Rim, Chiang Mai 50180

- 90/1 Moo 7, Phaholyothin Rd., Sanubtueb, Amphur Wangnoi, Ayuthaya 13170

1.3 By the resolution of the ordinary shareholders’ meeting No. 1/2011 on April 22, 2011, passed the
solution to change the company’s name from “TIPCO FOODS (THAILAND) PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED"
to “TIPCO FOODS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED". The company registered the change with the Ministry

of Commerce on May 10, 2011.

2. Basis for preparation and presentation of the financial statements

21 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles, which are issued under the Accounting Professions Act B.E.2547, and have been presented
under the Accounting Act B.E. 2543, and according to the requirements of the Securities and Exchange
Commmission, and the regulation of the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

22 The financial statements are presented for Thai currency reporting purposed and prepared in Thai
language. This English translation of financial statements has been prepared for the convenience of

the readers who were not conversant with Thai language.

2.3 Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial statements
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The consolidated financial statements included the accounts of the company and the subsidiaries as follo
\ Paid—up share capital % of investments
Name | 2011 2010 2011 2010
SUBSIDIARIES
Tipco Beverage Co., Ltd.* 50,000,000 50,000,000 99.9999 99.9999
Tipco Marketing Co., Ltd.* 24,740 24,740 100.00 100.00
Tipco Biotech Co., Ltd. 50,000,000 50,000,000 99.9988 99.9988
INDIRECT SUBSIDIARIES
Tipco F&B Co., Ltd. 600,000,000 600,000,000 50.00 50.00
(indirect portion by
Tipco Beverage Co., Ltd.)
Tipco Retail Co., Ltd. 500,000,000 500,000,000 75.50 75.50

(indirect portion by
Tipco Beverage Co., Ltd.
and Tipco F&B Co., Ltd.)

in this consolidation.

policies as applied to the Company.

issued and revised Financial Reporting Standards

* There is no any income from operation in this accounting period

2.4 Notifications of applying the Financial Reporting Standards

Outstanding intragroup balances, significant intragroup transactions, and the investment of the

Company in subsidiary companies and shareholders’ equity of the subsidiaries have been eliminated

The financial staternents of a foreign subsidiary company which was included in this consolidation,
were translated into Thai Currency by using the rate prescribed in note 5.14 to the financial statements.
Gain (loss) on exchange rate were shown under the section of Shareholders’ Equity.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared by using the same significant accounting

The Federation of Accounting Professions Under the Royal Patronage of His Majesty the King has
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2.4.1 Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2011:

109

Accounting Standards

TAS 1 [revised 2009)
TAS 2 {revised 2009)
TAS 7 (revised 2009)
TAS 8 (revised 2009)
TAS 10 {revised 2009)
TAS 11 (revised 2009)
TAS 16 {revised 2009)
TAS 17 (revised 2009)
TAS 18 {revised 2009)
TAS 19

TAS 23 [revised 2009)
TAS 24 (revised 2009)
TAS 26

TAS 27 (revised 2009)
TAS 28 (revised 2009)
TAS 29

TAS 31 (revised 2009)
TAS 33 [revised 2009)
TAS 34 [revised 2009)
TAS 36 (revised 2009)
TAS 37 (revised 2009)
TAS 38 [revised 2009)
TAS 40 (revised 2009)

Presentation of Financial Statements

Inventories

Cash Flow Statements

Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
Events After the Reporting Periods

Construction Contracts

Property, Plant and Equipment

Leases

Revenue

Employee Benefits

Borrowing Costs

Related Party Disclosures

Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Plans
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
Investment in Associated

Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies
Interests in Joint Ventures

Earning per Shares

interim Financial Reporting

Impairment of Assets

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Intangible Assets

Investment Property

Financial Reporting Standards

TFRS 2
TFRS 3 [revised 2009)
TFRS 5 {revised 2009)
TFRS 6

Share-Based Payment

Business Combination

Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Assets

Financial Reporting Interpretation

TFRI 15

Agreements for the Construction determine of Real Estate

Interpretations of Accoun

fing Standards

TSIC 31

Revenue-Barter Transactions involving Advertising Services
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The adoption of the new and revised financial reporting standards has resulted in the change of the
accounting policies of the Company and its subsidiaries. The impact of these changes are disclosed ip
notes 4 to the financial statements.

2.4.2 Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013.

Accounting Standards

TAS 12 : Income Taxes

TAS 20 [revised 2009) l Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of
‘ Government Assistance

TAS 21 (revised 2009) The Effects of Change in Foreign Exchange Rate

Financial Reporting Interpretation £

|
1

TSIC 10 | Government Assistance-No Specific Relation to Operating Activities

TSIC 21 Income taxes-Recovery of Revalued Non-Depreciable Assets

|
TSIC 25 ,  Income taxes-Changes in the Tax Status of an Entity or its Shareholders

The Company and its subsidiaries would not yet adopt the above standards.

2.5 Preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and disclosure for contingent assets and liabilities. The
actual results may differ from such estimates.

2.6 The financial statements for the year 2010, have been reclassified to conform to the classifications

used in the financial statements for year 2011, The status of the financial statements, however has
not changed substantively.
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The significant reclassified items are as follow :

Unit : Baht

Consolidated Financial Statements| Separate Financial Statements

Reclassified Previously Reclassified Previously
items reported items reported
rade and other receivables 622,959,702 0 269,010,436 0
rade accounts receivable 0 499,583,602 0 248,398,493
mounts due from related parties 0 56,480,893 0 277,854,174
hort - term loans to related parties 0 0 274,000,000 0
alue added tax 0 1,790,887 0 1,790,887
repaid expenses 0 13,223,747 0 7,308,162
ther accounts receivable 0 44,402,239 0 9,173,025
ther current assets 7,984,301 15,462,635 5,254,336 3,740,031
rade and other payables 443,668,461 0 163,834,337 0
rade accounts payable 0 220,349,147 0 117,506,323
mounts due to related parties 0 934,024 0 354,053
ccrued expenses 0 199,495,578 0 27,381,574
¢ Advance income 0 17,130,040 0 13,271,756
kaA(:crued withholding tax 0 3,351,665 0 1,143,709
eserve for anti-dumping duty 0 4,998,948 0 0
] Other current liabilities 27,867,617 25,276,676 9,142,494 13,319,416

licies for the following :

The change of the accounting policies and the presentation of the financial statements

January 1, 2011, the Company and its subsidiaries have adopted the new and revised financial reporting
andards as described in note 2.4 to the financial statements, which has resulted in the change of the accounting




3.1

3.2

3.3

TAS 1 [Revised 2009) Presentation of Financial Statement

The requirement of the revised accounting standards, the financial statement is consist of:
3.1.1 Statement of financial position

3.1.2 Statement of comprehensive income

3.1.3 Statement of changes in shareholders’ equity

3.1.4 Statement of cash flows

3.1.5 Notes to the financial statement

TAS 16 (Revised 2009) Property, Plant and Equipment

The revised standard requires the entity that an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that
is significant in relation to the total cost of the item shall be depreciated separately. The revised
standard also requires an entity to review useful life, residual value and depreciation method at least

at each financial year-end. The changes have been applied prospectively in accordance with the
transition.

Besides, the revised standard also requires the entity to include in cost of PPE, an initial estimate of
the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site, when the entity has obligation
to do. The changes have been applied retrospectively in accordance with the transitional provisions
of the revised TAS. However, the impact of this change is amounting to 0.05% of total assets of the
consolidated financial statement which is not materiality. The subsidiary has applied prospective
method in accordance with TAS 8 [revised 2009) Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors.

TAS 19 Employee Benefits

Under the new policy, the Company and its subsidiaries” have obligation in the severance payments
upon the retirement under the labor law as a defined benefit plan, which the amount in the interim
financial statements was calculated by a qualified actuary by using the projected unit credit method.

Previously, this obligation would be recognized when it has occurred.

The Company and its subsidiaries have recognized the total amount of this liabilities as an

adjustment to the beginning balance of retained earnings (January 1, 2011) as described in note 4 t0
the financial statement.
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4. Impact of the adoption of new and revised financial reporting standards

The change of the accounting policies as described in note 3 to the financial statements has impacted to the

financial statements, as follow :

Unit : Baht

Consolidated

Financial Statements

Separate
Financial Statements

- statement of financial position as at December 31, 2011

" Retained earnings at January 1, 2011

- as previously reported 1,194,440,001 983,186,146
Impact of change in accounting policy,

Employee benefits (34,853,373 (32,073.679)
Employee benefits—in associated company (13,735,699) 0

(The first time adoption in TAS 19 for associated company)

Retained earnings at January 1, 2011-After adjusted

1,145,850,929

5,214,155
0.0108

951,112,467

statement of comprehensive income

Increase in employee expenses 3,854,480

0.0080

Decrease in Basic earnings per share (Baht]

5. Summary of significant accounting policies

51 Measurement basis used in preparing financial statements

Historical cost is used as measurement basis in preparing these financial statements except some
itemns indicated in relevant notes.

52 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash represents cash on hand and demand deposits with banks.

Cash equivalents comprise fixed deposit and short-term highly liquid investments which are not
restricted in their uses, and thatare readily convertible to known amount of cash and which are subject

to an insignificant risk of change in value, such as deposit expiring less than 3 months from
acquisition date or investments.




5.3

5.4

Trade accounts receivable

Trade accounts receivable are stated at net realizable value which are the amount of invoices netted
from the allowance for doubtful account. Allowance for doubtful account is based on the estimated

uncollectible amounts by considering from the present financial status of each account receivable.

Besides, the management of company and its subsidiaries will also provide the allowance for doubtful
accounts by considering from the status of each account receivable.

inventories

Inventories are valued at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower. Net realizable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

The costs of purchased inventories comprise the purchase price and other costs directly attributed
to the acquisition of goods. Manufacturing cost of finished good and work in process comprise from

raw materials, labour and manufacturing overhead. The cost of inventories are calculated as follow :

Raw material, spare parts - Valued at cost price under average method.
and factory supplies
Work in process : - Valued at production cost price under average method.

Finished goods ; - Valued at production cost price under average method.

(@]
wl

The Company and its subsidiary provided the allowance for expired goods from the goods which were
considered to expire and expected to damage.

Investments

Available-for-sale investments represent investments in marketable equity securities-available for
sale. which was accounted for at fair value (the lasted bid price) as at the close of business on the
balance shest date by reference to the Stock Exchange of Thailand. Unrealized gain (loss) on adjustment
the value of investments are recognized in shareholder’ equity

Investments in associated company in the Consolidated financial statements are accounted for by the
equity method. [See attachment No. 1]

Investments in subsidiaries and associated companies in the Separate financial statements are

accounted for by the cost method less allowance for decline in value of investments. (See attachment
No. 2
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5.6

5.7

Leases agreement
Financial leases

The leases of assets, which the substantial all the risks and rewards associated with the ownership
of the assets have been transferred to the lessee, title may or may not eventually be transferred to
the lessee under the finance lease arrangements, are classified as finance leases. The lessee is 1o
record the finance lease as an asset and obligation at an amount equal to the fair value of the leased
asset or the preseni value of the minimum lease payment whichever is lower. The interest expense
is charged to the Income Statements over the lease period. The leased asset is depreciated over the
useful life of the asset.

Operating leases

The leases of assets, which the substantial all the risks and rewards associated with the ownership of
the assets have not been transferred to the lessee, are classified as operating leases. The payments
made under operating leases are charged to the Income Statements on a straight-line method over
the period of the lease.

Property, plant and equipment

Property is stated at cost. Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
allowance for loss on impairment of assets. Depreciation is calculated by straight-line method based
on the estimated useful lives of the assets or in accordance with the estimated production capacity
of machinery as the following :

Land development \1 10 Years
Building and complement \ 10-25 Years
|
Machinery and equipment “\
- Straight-line method 10-20 Years

- Estimated production capacity 919.04 million bottles

|
|
Tools and equipment ‘1 5-20 Years
|
|
|

Furniture and office equipment 3-10 Years
Vehicles 5-10 Years

A foreign subsidiary company calculated depreciation by Double-declining balance method for the
tools and equipment, the cost in the amount of USD 2,152.84, and they had been already depreciated
in fully amount.
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5.8

An initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site, wh
the Company and its subsidiaries have obligation to do have been include in cost of property, pla
and equipment.

Cost of addition, improvement, repair or extension of lease agreement that increase the fut
economic benefit are recognized as assets.

Depreciation is separately calculated on each component of assets, when the cost of each componen
is significant in relation to the total cost of the item.

The useful life and residual value of assets, and depreciation method are reviewed at least at eac
financial year-end.

Depreciation is recognized as expense for each accounting period.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and allowance for loss on impairment
of assets [if any). Amortization is charged to the statements of income by the straight-line method -
from the date that intangible assets are available for use over the estimated useful lives of the eco k
nomic benefit of the assets, Unless such lives are indefinite, intangible assets with an indefinite useful

life are not amortized but are systematically tested for impairment at each statement of financial
position date. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Computer Softwares | 3-10 Years

5.9

The Company and its subsidiaries recorded the amortization as expenses for each accounting period.

Impairment of assets

The Company and its subsidiaries should assess the impairment of assets i.e. Property, Plant and
Equipment and Intangible assets whenever there is indication that an asset may be impaired, the
impairment will be assessed by estimating the recoverable amount of asset, if it is below the carrying

amount of the asset, it signs an asset is impairment. The company should recognize the impairment
loss in the statements of income.

Recoverable amount of assets is the higher of an asset's net selling price and its value in use, and itis
determined from an individual asset or a cash-generating unit.
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5.10 Liabilities, provisions and expenses

51

The Company and its subsidiaries recognizes liabilities, provisions and expenses in the financial
statements when it has legal obligation or possible obligation arising from past events, the settlement
of which is expected to be made in the amount that can be estimated with sufficient reliability.

The Company and its subsidiaries recognize accrued the dividend, approved by the resolution of
ordinary shareholders’ meeting.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from sales of goods is recognized when significant risks and rewards of ownership have
been transferred to the buyer based on the invoices value less discount, goods return, and amounting
to the estimates [if any).

Revenue from services is recognized when the outcome of a service can be estimated reliably based
on the stage of completion of the transaction at the balance sheet date. When the outcome of a service

can not be estimated reliably, revenue is recognized only to the extent of expenses that are recoverable.

Interest income is recognized on the period of time.
Rental income is recognized on the period of agreement.

Dividend income is recognized when the right of receiving dividend is announced.

5.12 Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits, which fall due wholly within 12 months after the end of period in

which the employees render the related service, are recognized as expenses when incurred.

Postemployment benefits

The Company and its subsidiaries and their employees have jointly a provident fund. The contributions
from employees are deducted from monthly salaries and contributions by the Company and the
subsidiaries. The fund's assets are held in a separate trust fun and the Company and its subsidiaries’
contributions are recognized as expenses when incurred.

The severance payments retirement under the labor law as a defined benefit plan, was calculated by
a qualified actuary by using the projected unit credit method.
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3 Translation of foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Thai Baht at the exchange rate on the transaction

date. The remaining balances of assets and liahilities denominated in foreign currency at the end of
reporting periods are translated into Thai Baht at the exchange rate of that date. Exchange differences

are accouniad for as profit or loss in the staternents 6f nComs.

Foreign currency receivables and payables which were coverao by the forward exchange contract

=)

are translated at the rate prescribed in the contract. the difiersnce witl be written off along the period

of loans agreernents.
The foreign investment was wanslaled at the st rical rate

Equity in profit {loss) of foreign subsidiary company was rranslated at the average exchange rate for

the periods of 12 months.

As at Decernber 31, 2011 and 2010 the financial staternents of Tipco Marketing Company Limited which
was foreign subsidiary cornpany, located in United State of America, were translated into Thai
currency, at the ended of the period, the statements of financial position used the closing rate {the
average buying and selling rates of Commercial Bank|, the statements of income used the average
exchange rate of the period. Gain or loss on exchange rate had been shown in the shareholders’ equity
as follows :

Unit : Baht

‘? 2011 : 2810
; 302,521 ‘ [,637,687
51,947 (135,166

The share capital and reiained earnings were translated by using the historical rate.

; 5.15 Income ax

income tax, the Company and its subsidiaries recorded the total amount of incomne tax as expense

for the period, and recorded the accrued portion as liabilities in the statement of financial position.
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5.16 Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the profit (loss) for the years attributable to equity
holders of the parent by the number of weighted average ordinary shares which are issued during of
the years (482,579,640 shares).

6. Related party transactions

6.1 The relationship of person or related parties

Person or related parties The relationship

Tipco F&B Co., Ltd. Holding and co-directors

Tipco Biotech Co., Ltd. Holding and co-directors

Tipco Beverage Co., Ltd. Holding and co-directors

Tipco Retail Co., Ltd. Holding and co-directors

Suntory Beverage & Food Limited in Japan Holding and co-directors i

Tipco Asphalt PCL.

|
1
Tipco Marketing Co., Ltd. \ Holding and co-directors
|
\1
\ Holding and co-directors
l
l

Thanomwongse Service Co., Ltd. Co-directors \
Raycol Asphalt Co., Ltd. Indirect portion

Thai Slurry Seal Co., Ltd. Holding by associates’ directors

Ekachaicontainer Terminal Co., Ltd. Co-directors

Thai Crushing Co., Ltd. Co-directors

Rattanajit Co., Ltd. Co-directors
Siamcontainer Transport Co., Ltd. l‘ Holding by directors
Suratt Bittumen Co., Ltd. Co-directors

Bitumen Marine Co., Ltd. 1 Co-directors
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Unit : Baht

Balance at the end periods
Trade accounts receivable
- Subsidiary company

Tipco F&B Co., Ltd.
Tipco Retail Co., Ltd.
Tipco Biotech Co., Ltd.
- Related companies
Tipco Asphalt PCL.
Thai Slurry Seal Co., Ltd.
Thanomwongse Service Co., Ltd.
Rattanajit Co., Lid.

Siamcontainer Transport Co., Ltd.

Ekachaicontainer Terminal Co., Ltd.

Other receivable
-Subsidiary companies
Tipco F&B Co., Lid.
Tipco Biotech Co., Ltd.
Tipco Marketing Co., Ltd.
Tipco Retail Co., Ltd.
Accounts due from related parties
- Related company
Thanomwongse Service Co., Ld.
Tipco Asphalt PCL.
Suratt Bittumen Co., Ltd.

Tasco Shiping Co., Ltd.

Consolidated Financial

Separate Financial

Statements Statements
2011 2010 \ 2011 K 2010
19.705,118 | 13,663,714
818,582 | 385,138
- 780,354 742,547
88,116 159,035
| 360 0
281,341 144,472
0 120,959
183,080 193,152
79;660 81,3%
‘2,679,069 3,470,937
255,280 46,745
232,515 197,515
3,240 | 83,357
0 300 0 0
126,477 68,867 79,932 53,620
9,630 15,248 0 | 0
10,433 4,815 0 0
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Unit : Baht

Consolidated Financial

Separate Financial

Statements ‘ Statements
| 2011 ‘ 2010 .‘ 2011 | 20](; h
Alpha Maritime Co., Ltd. 1‘ 10,433 ‘ 0 0 0
Suntory Beverage & Food Limited in Japan E 54,563,952 | 56391663 | 0 0
Fixed Assets ; ‘
- Related company ]1 :
Thanomwongse Service Co., Ltd. “ 1,807,050 1,789,304 0 0
Trade accounts payable ‘\
-Subsidiary company \.‘ i
Tipco F&B Co., Ltd. i 1 11,315,936 ‘ 13,132,971
Tipco Biotech Co.. Ld. [ *\ 3,135,707 593,601
Tipco Retail Co., Ltd. | ‘ E 0 5,250
- Related companies 1 :
Tipco Asphalt PCL. [ 1,387,409 ‘\i 2,144,548 i 28,050 ‘ 1,705,382
Thanomwongse Service Co., Ltd. ‘] 579,868 ‘ 1,022,018 i 305,879 ! 672,958
| | ‘ ‘
Ekachaicontainer Terminal Co., Ltd. H 139,805 : 154,944 % 121,685 ‘ 149,249
» ! ‘ ;
Raycol Asphalt Co., Ltd. |‘ 221,989 ‘ 0 l 0 “ 0
Siamcontainer Transport Co., Ltd. ‘* 16,927 | 0 o 0
Other payables - related parties L ‘[ ‘
Thanomwongse Service Co., Ltd. 443,083 571,835 1 268,335 1 354,003
Suntory Beverage & Food Limited in Japan : 1,764,775 358,189 § 0 0
Loans receivable ‘ | ‘
-Subsidiary companies \ \ l ‘
Tipco Beverage Co., Ltd. ‘1 : 1 |
Balance brought forward N § i 262,800,000 | 256,800,000
Increase in loans receivable in the period ] “ 1 9,500,000 E 6,000,000
] i
Repayment of loans receivable in the period‘l 1‘\ 0 1 0
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Unit : Baht
Consolidated Financial Separate Financial
Statements Statements
2011‘ 2010 2011 2010
Balance carried forward 272,300,000 | 262,800,000
Tipco Biotech Co., Ltd.
Balance brough§ forward 11,200,000 16,800,000
Increase in loans receivable in the period 10,800,000 2,100,000
Repayment of loans receivable in the period (5,000,000} (7,700,000}
Balance carried forward 17,000,000 11,200,000
Revenues and expenses for the periods
Sales
- Subsidiary company 223,614,313 181,698,059
- Related companies 3,493,991 2,257,776
Rental income
- Subsidiary company 1,754,944 2,404,022
Interest income
- Subsidiary company 9,833,422 6,224,264
Other income
- Subsidiary company 56,272,717 55,917,555
- Related companies 211,249,351 56,513,773 90,553 287,541
Purchases
- Subsidiary company 75,199,270 90,491,613
- Related companies 22,605,540 22,353,600 20,660,340 15,084,600
Rental and services expenses
- Related companies 29,427,518 24,953,683 15,635,703 16,052,909
Marketing support expenses
- Subsidiary company 41,121,688 40,634,086
Other expenses
- Related companies 2,008,461 358,189 0 0




7. Cash and cash equivalents

Unit : Baht

Consolidated Financial

Separate Financial

Consist of :
Statements i Statements
2011 2010 | 2011 2010

Cash on hand 1,234,121 1,350,626 387,540 530,564
Demand deposits 39,915,688 43,395,838 21,067,324 26,837,338
(As at December 31, 2011 and 2010 the interest
rate are 0.01 %-0.50% p.a. and 0.005%-1.25%
p.a. respectively)

Total 41,149,809 | 44,746,464 21,454,864 27,367,902

8. Current investments

They represent the fixed deposit (6 months) of the subsidiaries which are free of commitments. (The interest
rate as at December 31, 2011 and 2010 are at 2.10% p.a. and 0.50%-0.95% p.a. respectively]

9. Trade and other receivable

Unit : Baht

Consolidated Financial

Separate Financial

Consist of : Statements Statements
2011 2010 2011 2010
Trade accounts receivable
- domestic 290,065,592 321,829,229 30,973,956 58,463,516
- foreign 157,417,936 184,263,121 150,809,131 182,300,269
- Related parties 632,497 699,012 21,304,054 14,791,400
448,116,025 | 506,791,362 | 203,087,141 | 255,555,185
Less Allowance for doubtful accounts 7,738,909 7,207,760 7,685,230 7,156,692
Trade accounts receivable, net 440,377,116 499,583,602 195,401,911 248,398,493
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Unit : Baht

Consist of :

Consolidated Financial

Separate Financial

Statements Statements
2011 2010 2011 2010
- Other receivables
- Other receivables - others 57,810,179 44,402,239 17,270,661 9,173,026
- Other receivables - related parties 54,740,923 56,480,893 3,250.‘036 3,854,174
- Prepaid expenses 14,531,990 13,223,748 9,718,446 : 7,308,162
- Advance to employees 1,844,071 929,088 408,276 276,582
- Accrued income 8207232 | 8,340,132 50,476 0
Total other receivables 137,134,395 123,376,100 30‘,697,8‘?5 20,611,944
Total 577,511,511 622,959,702 226,099,806 269,010,437
Aging schedule as at December 31, 2011
Unit : Baht
Consolidated Financial Separate Financial
Statements Statements
Not yet due 377,004,669 162,195,096
Overdue 1-90 Days 57,649,665 30,428,331
Overdue 91-180 Days 4,906,273 2,778,485
Overdue 181-270 Days 1,345,046 528,537
Overdue 271-360 Days 0 0
Overdue 340 Days 7,210,372 7,156,692
Total 448,116,025 203,087,141 ‘
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Aging schedule as at December 31, 2010

f Unit : Bahy
‘% Consolidated Financial Separate Financial

i Statements Statements

Not yet due 438,243,556 198,612,800

( Overdue 1-90 Days 56,741,337 43,667,312

: Overdue 91-180 Days 2,924,476 4,486,097

Overdue 181-270 Days 1,632,225 1 1,632,284

Overdue 271-360 Days 42,008 0

Overdue 360 Days 7,207,760 7,156,692

| Total 506,791,362 255,555,185

d 10. Short-term loans to related parties

Unit : Baht
Consist of : Separate Financial Statements

; 2011 2010

~ Loans to subsidiary companies

. - Tipco Beverage Company Limited 272,300,000 262,800,000

- Tipco Biotech Company Limited 17,000,000 11,200,000

{ Total 289,300,000 274,000,000 -

Loans to subsidiary companies are in the form of promissory notes. The interest rate at 4.00% p.a. and 2.50%
p.a. as at December 31, 2011 and 2010 respectively.
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11. Inventories

TIPCO FOODS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED 127

Unit : Baht

Consolidated Financial

Separate Financial

! l
Consist of L Statements »‘ Statements
)1 2011 2010 \ 2011 2010
Finished goods % 787,178,194 260,988,105 619,409,493 173,613,762
Work in process 5 141,680,451 155,790,101 65,327,619 71,577,284
Raw materials 520,693,161 384,229,046 313,371,540 262,156,441
Spare parts and factory supplies 34,628,885 29,595,624 20,732,553

23,006,184

1,484,180,691

1,021,114,836

830,602,876 528,080,040
Less Allowance for expired goods 14,719,550 22,568,933 4,374,040 8,937,112
1,469,461‘,141 808,033,943 1.016,740,796 519,142,938
Goods in transit 10,542,535 5,601,464 7,133,767 85,429
Total 1,480,003,676 813,635,407 1,023,874,563 519,228,357
12. Other current assets
Unit : Baht

Consolidated Financial

Separate Financial

Consist of : Statements Statements
2011 2010 2011 2010
Value added tax 18,807,173 4,589,689 15,314,7‘39 2,400,610
Short-term deposits 1,202,850 10,990 0 0
Prepaid company income tax 89,377 0 0 0
Withholding tax 125,761 2,108,543 0 1,838,671
Others 1,921,344 1,275,079 163,421 1,015,055
Total 22,146,505 7,984,301 15,478,160 5,254,336




13. Available - for - sale investments

Unit : Baht

Consolidated and Separate
financial statement

For the year ended 31 December 2011

Opening net book amount 0
Additions 1,009,070
Disposals {646,082
Changes in fair value 10,779,211
Closing net book amount 11,142,199

In this accounting period, the Company has received free warrants for purchasing new ordinary shares in totally
3,711,316 units, which the term is 3 years. The Company classified the investment as available-for-sale, which
were accounted for at fair value.

As at December 31, 2011, the remaining warrants are 1,266,159 units.

14. Investments in associated companies-equity method

(See attachment No. 1 and 2]

Investment in associated company

The financial statements of associated company, named Tipco Asphalt PCL. as at December 31, 2011 and 2010

were audited respectively by the other auditor, which the financial statements reflected investment in associated
company by the equity method are as follows:

Unit : Baht
Consist of Consolidated Financial Statements
2011 2010
Investment in associated company 936,647,977 741,094,394
Percentage of total assets in consolidation 16.32 15.44

Equity in profit for the pericds of associated
company

For the year ended December 31, 178,960,131 245,153,851

Percentage of total revenues in consolidation 3.36 4.77
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The financial statements of associated company are as follows :

TIPCO FOODS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED 129

Unit : Thousand Baht

Consist of : Consolidated Financial Statements

2011 2010
Total assets 15,520,507 10,748,611
Total liabilities 11,077,572 7,120,601
Total revenues 23,053,760 26,303,337
Profit for the period 735;572‘ 1,007,665

15. Deposits at bank used as collateral

They represent the fixed deposit (6 months] of the subsidiaries which were used as collateral as follow :

Unit : Baht
Consist of : Consolidated Financial Statements
| 2011 2010
For issuing Bank of Guarantee ‘ 4,(]00,000 ‘k 4,000,000
Used as collateral to the court for a lawsuit 180,000 180,000
) 4,180,000 | 4,180,000

16. Property, plant and equipment

[See attachment No. 3)
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17. Intangible assets

Unit : Baht
Consist of : Consolidated Financial Statements
2010 Purchase Decrease Transfer 2011
Cost price-intangible assets
Computer softwares 23,004,389 601,600 27,600 | 23,633,589
Trademarks 28,489,473 28,489,473
Total 51,493,862 601,600 27,600 | 52,123,062
Accumulated amortization-intangible
assets
Computer softwares 20,240,114 1,603,145 | 21,843,259
Total 20,240,114 1,603,145 21,843,259
Total intangibte assets 31,253,748 30,279,803
Unit : Baht
Consist of : Separate Financial Statements
2010 Purchase Decrease Transfer 2011
Cost price-intangible assets ,
Computer softwares . 21,547,458 148,700 | 27,600 | 21,723,758
Trademarks 26,463,244 26,463,244
|
Total 48,010,702 148,700 27,600 | 48,187,002
Accumulated amortization-intangible
assets
Computer softwares 19,640,684 1,158,277 20,798,961
Total 19,640,684 1,158,277 20,798,961
Total intangible assets 28,370,018 27,388,041
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18. Deposits and guarantees
Unit : Baht
! !
Consist of : . Consolidated Financial | Separate Financial
Statements 1‘ Statements
ISR ] i }
‘ 2011 ! 2010 1 2011 i 2010
, SR I -
o | | | ;
Anti dumping tax * . 18,109.413 | 17,228,100 | 0 0
3 | ! ?
Less Allowance for loss on Anti dumping tax  (12,854,741] | (12,229,152 | 0 0
_ : R I | ; _
‘ i ! 1
Net 1 5,254,672 | 4,998,948 l 0 ! 0
| | ‘ ;
Others ‘\ 10,581,184 ¥ 10,307,514 \ 2,325,470 { 2,387,489
| |
T I
Total ‘1 15,835,856 l\ 15,306,462 \ 2,325,470 : 2,387,489
1

* The guarantees of the subsidiary represent the quarantee of Anti dumping tax for the product which were sold
in The United State of America from the year 1996 to 2002.

The subsidiary has provided the allowance for loss on Anti dumping tax because the subsidiary has requested
for the refund of guarantee, but it seems to be lost.

19. Bank overdrafts and short-term loans from financial institutions

As at December 31, 2011

Unit : Baht
i i
Consist of : “ Consolidated Financial | Separate Financial
| Statements | Statements
|
1 !
| Amount “!Interest rate at!  Amount ‘ilnterest rate at
: ! ! 1
Bank overdrafts | 2070822 | MOR 1 0! MOR
| ; ; {
Loans from financial institutions : “ ‘1 l
- Loan agreements | 300,000,000 L MMR 0 ‘]
- Promissory notes \ 936,000,000 "3.65—4.00% p.a) 746,000,000 ]3.65—4.00% p.a.
|
Total \ 1,238,070,822 ! 746,000,000 t

l
|
:—k“
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As at December 31, 2010

Consist of :

Consolidated Financial
Statements

Separate Financial
Statements

Amount

Interest rate at

Amount

Interest rate at

Bank overdrafts
Loans from financial institutions :
-Loan agreements

-Promissory notes

2,000,632

95,000,000

715,000,000

MOR

MMR

2.15-2.64% p.a.

1,937,508

0

570,000,000

2.15-2.64% p.a.

MOR

Total

812,000,632

571,937,508

20. Trade and other payable

Unit : Baht
Consist of : Consolidated Financial Separate Financial
Statements Statements
2011 2010 2011 2010
Trade accounts payable
- Others 228,887,172 217,027,103 99,631,406 101,246,912
- Related parties 2,345,998 3,321,509 14,907,257 16,259,412
Total 231,233,170 220,348,612 114,538,663 117,506,324
- Other payables
- Other payables-others 298,025 324,270 80,640 0
- Other payables-related parties 2,207,858 1,015,916 238,335 354,052
- Accrued expenses 292,888,730 | 204,849,623 53,852,025 32,702,205
- Advance incomes 25,838,958 17,130,040 21,142,004 13,271,756
Total other payables 321,233,571 k 223,319,849 75,313,004 46,328,013
Total 552,466,741 | 443,668,461 189,881,667 | 163,834,337
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21. Long-term liabilities
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Unit : Baht
Consist of : Consolidated Financial Separate Financial
| Statements Statements

| 2011 2010 2011 2010
Long-term loans (Note 21.1) 1,363,000,000 | 1,337,000,000 728,000,000 562,000,000
Machinery payable (Note 21.2) 24,383,608 52,596,350 0 0
Lease contract liabilities (Note 21.3) 6,978,338 5,473,162 3,045,284 2,494,216
i ,394,36’1 ,946’ 1,395,069,512 731,545,284 bb4,494,216
Less Current portion of long-term loans 290,692,308 | 274,000,000 | 123,000,000 | 134,000,000
Current portion of machinery payable 9,260,016 15,502,462 0 0
Current portion of lease contract liabilities 3.042,921 2,286,484 1,656,681 1,369,828
Total 1,091 ,366,701 1,103,280,566 606,888,603 429,124,388

21.1.Loan agreements

21.1.1 As at September 14, 2011, the Company entered into the Loan Agreement with a financial
institution for long term-loan facilities in the amount of Baht 300 million for using as working
capital. The term of repayment will be within 3 years, the interest rate shall be at the rate equals

to the SMTHBFIX.

21 1.2 As at December 22, 2009, the Company entered into the Loan Agreement with a financial
institution for long term-loan facilities in the amount of Baht 500 million for using as working
capital. The term of repayment will be quarterly, the first repayment was in September 2009.
The interest rate for the first 36 months after the drawdown date shall be at the rate equals to
the 3MTHBFIX plus 2.25% p.a. and for the 36 months later, after the drawdown date onwards,
the interest rate shall be at the rate equals to the SMTHBFIX plus 2.50% p.a. Land, building were
mortgaged to cover the loans from financial institution.

In May 2011, the Company entered into an interest rate swap agreement to swap a floating
interest rate on a long-term loan to fixed rate. As at 31 December, 2011, the notional amount

of Baht 383 million was outstanding. The notional amount reduces on a quarterly basis in

accordance with the long-term loan repayment schedule.
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21.1.3 As at March 22, 2007, the Company entered into the Facility Agreements for short-term loang
facilities in the amount of Baht 150,000,000 for using as working capital, and tong term-loan
facilities in the amount of Baht 255,000,000 for investing in the business project. The term of
repayment will be quarterly, the interest rate shall be at the Bank's cost of funds plus 1.259
p.a. Land and building were mortgaged to cover the loans.

21.1.4 As at February 22, 2010, Tipco F&B Co., Ltd. entered into the Facility Agreements for long term-
{oan facilities in the amount of Baht 200 million for purchase of machinery. The term of
repayment will be quarterly, the first repayment will be in August 2012. The interest rate shall
be at BIBOR 1 Month or BIBOR 3 Months plus 0.525% p.a.

21.1.5 As at February 19, 2008, Tipco F&B Co., Ltd. entered into the Facility Agreements for long term-
loan facilities in the amount of Baht 700 miltion for repaying the refinanced debt and for
purchase of machinery. The term of repayment will be quarterly, the first repayment will be in
May 2010. The interest rate shall be at BIBOR 1 Month or BIBOR 3 Months plus 0.525% p.a.

21.2  Machinery payable
The subsidiary entered into the purchase of machinery agreement by installment, the terms
of payment are 24-69 months, the first repayment was in 2009 and the last payment will be in
2014,

21.3 Lease contract liabilities
The Company and the subsidiary entered into the lease contracts with 3 financial institutions,

the terms of agreement are 36-60 months, the first repayment was in 2008 and the last
payment will be in 2014.

22. Employee benefit obligations

The Company and its subsidiaries adopted TAS 19 Employee Benefits, disclosures are as follow :
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Unit : Baht

Consolidated | Separate
financial statements ; financial statements

22.1 Movement in the present value

of the defined benefit obligations

Defined benefit obligations at January 1, 2011 37,436,544 32,073,679

Current service costs 3,711,108 1 2,569,151
Interest costs 1,503,047 | 1,285,329
Benefits paid by the plan (2.600567)  (1,922,700)
Defined benefit obligations at December 31, 2011 40,050,132 1 34,005,459
Unit : Baht
Consolidated Separate

financial statements | financial statements

22.2 Expenses recognized in profit or loss |

Current service cost 3,711,108 2,569,151

Interest cost 1,503,047 | 1,285,329

Total 5,214,155 3,854,480

22.3 Principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date

% per annual

Consolidated and Separate

1

‘

» .

| financial statement
i

|

1

|

Discount rate 4.10

\
Future salary increase ! 3.00 - 5.00
|

23. FOI‘WQ.I'd exchange contracts

The Company and the subsidiary entered into the selling forward exchange contract with five banks and
recorded the banks as accounts receivable and accounts payable. The accounts receivable are translated at

the rate prescribed in the contract, and contra with the accounts payable which are translated at the average

selling rate of commercial Banks, and entered into the buying forward exchange contract with three banks
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which the accounts payable are translated at the rate prescribed in the contract, and contra with the accountg

receivable which are translated at the average buying rate of commercial Banks, the difference are accounteq

for as premium or discount on Forward Exchange Contract and have been included in other current assets ang

will be written off along the period of contracts.

The outstanding balance of forward exchange contracts are as follows :

Consist of :

Consolidated Financial
Statements

Separate Financial
Statements

2011 - 2010
The exchange forward contract-Sold {USD] | 17,449 454 ‘ —5—1 532860 1:
The exchange forward contract-Sold (EUR) 120,000 0
The exchange forward contract~Bought {USD) ‘ 509,622 873,423
The exchange forward contract-Bought [EURO) ‘ 0 500,000
60000000

The exchange forward contract-Bought [YEN]

2011 2010

!

119,000,000

i

16,749,454 ¢+ 49752577

24. Equity

24.1 Dividend paid

120,000 ° 0
64,921 1 0
‘ 0 0

The ordinary shareholders’ meeting No. 1/2010 held on April 22, 2010, passed the resolution to pay
the dividend at Baht 0.15 per share in amount of Baht 72,386,946 on May 14, 2010.

24.2 Legal reserve

Pursuant to the Public Limited Companies Act B.E. 2535 [1992], the Company must appropriate the

annual net profit to be a reserve fund which not less than five percent of the annual net profit deducted

by the total deficit brought forward [if any) until reserve reaches an amount of not less than ten percent

of the registered capital. The legal reserve had been fully reserved as the Public Limited Companies

Act B.E. 2535 (1992) mentioned.

24.3 Managing Capital

The company and its subsidiaries have policy to manage the capital by maintaining their ability to
continue the business as a going concern and to provide the appropriate capital structure by main
taining debt to equity ratio as stipulated in loan facility agreements. Besides, the company has policy
to pay the dividend not less than 1/3 of net profit of the Company's separate financial statements.

i
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25. Changes in associated company’s equity

Unit : Baht
2011 2010
Currency translation differences (31,525,633} (55,858,967)
Retained earnings of a subsidiary of the associated company
arising as a result of Company’s acquisition of minority interest ‘
in the subsidiary at a price lower than book value ‘ 0 1,517,577
Surplus on change in fair value of interest rate swap contract \1} (1,803,827) (3,530,149)
i (33,329,460) (57.871,539)

Total

26. Revenues from the sale of goods and the rendering of services

Unit : Baht

Consolidated Financial Separate Financial
Statements Statements

Consist of : *\

2011 ‘ 2010 ‘ 2011 \ 2010

| 4,825,086,125 | 4,713,779,149 | 2,435, 899,874 | 2,511,870,236

Revenues from the sale of goods

Revenues from the rendering of services 0 12,407,696 3,572,485

Total 4,825,086,125 | 4,713,779,149 \ 2,458,307,570 \ 2,515,442,721

27. Other incomes
Unit : Baht

Consist of : \ Consolidated Financial ~ Separate Financial
' Statements Statements
2011 - \ 2010 ‘ 2011 \ 2010
Management fees income 0 0 15,147,545 15,282,372
Royalty income 0 0 41,121,688 40,634,086
Marketing support income 248,660,536 90,855,782 0 242,208
Sale scraps income 6,317,051 5,437,934 ‘ 3,696,526 3,130,421
0 10,481,217 | | 0 10,481,217

Revenue from claim goods
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Unit : Bal
i
Consist of : Consolidated Financial | Separate Financial
Statements \ Statements
1 &
2011 1 2010 2011 ll 2010
iL e - -
Gain on exchange rate 2,444,768 \ 15,693,522 1,739,687 12,465,722
|

Reversal of doubtful accounts 0 i 200,000 0 1\ 200,000
Reversal of loss on expired goods 7,849,383 18,548,923 4,563,073 % 15,787,416
Interest income 58,325 101,059 9,834,305 1& 6,231,388

|
Others 58,851,189 35,140,897 45,922,646 26,043,619

|
|
Total 122,025,470 l\ 130,498,449

28. Staff provident fund

The Company and its subsidiaries joined with a contributory registered provident fund, in accordance with The
provident Fund Act B.E. 2530. The contributions from staffs are deducted from the monthly salaries, with the

Company matching the individual's contributions.

29. Classification of expenses by nature

significant expenses by nature are as follow:

Unit : Baht
1 1
Consist of : | Consolidated Financial | Separate Financial
i‘ Statements 1l Statements
. 1 T
\ 2011 L\ 2010 2011 2010
Employee expenses 477,631,645 394,388,667 297,297 419 239,683,126
Management benefit expenses 29,427,720 33,215,260 29,427,720 33,215,260
Depreciation 195,378,599 183,735,827 101,110,881 98,114,462
Amortization 1,603,145 1,649,696 1,158,276 1,368,309
Finance costs 93,780,389 56,953,563 52,716,504 31,410,645
Cost of production and service 3,029,732,420 -1 2,558,283,728 2,102,250,182 | 1,783,534,033

(Excluded cost of employees and depreciation)
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|

30. Income tax expenses

Unit : Baht ‘,

|

Consist of : | Consolidated Financial Separate Financial

i Statements Statements ;

\ 2011 2010 2011 2010

| |
Profit before income tax* \ 188,419,007 | (69.411,768) | 169,233,292 |(130,014,753]
Add Undeductible expenses % 23,280,575 14,414,361 16,498,969 6,180,839
Tax base-exempted expenses/income (18,840.973) | (34,450,084) | (10,137,126) | (22,746,605
Profit {loss] for tax calculation 192,858,609 | (89,447,491) 175‘,595,135 (146,580,519}
Corporate income tax rate 30 and 15-39 | 25,30 and 30 25

15-39

* profit before income tax in the consolidated financial statements are the profit before elimination intra-group
. MV;
transaction |

31. Privileges according to the Investment Promotion Act B.E. 2520

The Company and its subsidiaries have obtained the certificate for the investment promotion, some

privileges for factories in empty can product for factory at Prachaubkhirikhan and product of vegetable
and fruit for factory at Ayuthaya are as following :

1. Exemption from import duty on machinery as approved by the Board of Investment.

2. Exemption from company income tax for 8 years from the date income is first derived, which have
been expired in the year 2016.

3. Shareholders of the Company will be exernpted from tax on dividend received during the period in
which the company is granted exemption from company income tax.

The Company and its subsidiaries have to comply with certain conditions contained in the promotion
certificate.

The calculation of profit and loss between promoted and non-promoted businesses are distinguished
by the transactions which can be specified. Transactions which cannot be specified are allocated by

the proportion of income. Interest income except from saving deposits (over 2% of revenues) and

incomne from sales of scrap are recorded under non-promoted business.
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32. Revenues report for a Promoted Business

oard of Investment No. 14/1998 dated December 30, 1998 regarding revenues report
rt the revenues from domestic sales and export sale
s. The Revenues are as follows :

By the Announcement ofthe B
for a promoted business, the company is required to repo

separately and to report separately the promoted and non-promoted busines

(see attachment No. 4)

33. Long-term lease agreements

January 1, 2010, the Company and subsidiary entered into the renew lease agreement for TIPCO TOWER, for

additional using as the office of the company and subsidiary, the term of agreement is 3 years and the rental

and service fees is Baht 404,630/month and Baht 633,960/month respectively.

34. Segment information

The Company and its subsidiaries operate in two reportable business segments which are organized by simitar

products, products of vegetable & fruit and others. The busines

overseas. The segment information has been presented as follows:

s operations are carried on both in Thailand and

Business segment information Unit : Baht

Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2011

Segment Eliminated ‘ Total

Products of Others
vegetable &
fruit

Revenues from sales of goods 4,935,733,460 | 262,979,984 (373,627,319) | 4,825,086,125

Cost of the sales 3,413,468,284 | 233,406,223 (372,048,041) | 3,274,826,466

Gross profit 1,522,265,176 29,573,761 (1,579,278) 1,550,259,659
Other incomes 324,181,252

Share of profit from investments 178,960,131

for using the equity method

Selling expenses (1,151,091,229)

Administrative expenses (409,289,101}

Management benefit expenses (29,427,720)




ANNUAL REPORY 2011

TIPCO FOQDS PUBLLC COMPANY EIMITED 141

Business segment information Unit : Baht

Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended Deccmber 31,2011

, S“egnryi‘emy Eliminated Total
’Products of © Others )
vegetable &
friit
Profit before finance costs and income tax 463,592,992
; Finance costs (93,780,388)
| Incorne tax (9.873,272)
* Net profit after tax 359,939,332
Minority interest | 16,313,774
Net profit 343,625,558
Fixed assets - net 253,009,906 | 73,963,674 | 2,607,003,580
Assets for center i 3,132,397,950
Tbtal assets 5,73§,AG 1;530
Business segment information Unit : Baht
\ Consolidated Financial Statements
| For the year ended December 31, 2010
Segment i Eliminated l Total

Products of ) Others
vegetable &
fruit

Revenues from sales of goods

4,854,229,586 193,874,121 (334,324,558} | 4,713,779,149

Cost of the sales 3,696,761,011 168,116,884 (332,996,185)| 3,531,881,710
Gross profit 1,157,468,575\ 25,757,237 (1,328,373)| 1.181,897,439
Other incomes h 176,459,334
Share of profit from investments \ \ 245,153,851
for using the equity method \

Selling expenses \ \ (1,004,574,034)
Administrative expenses | | (330,008,408)

i et
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Unit : Baht

Consolidated Financial Statements
\ For the year ended December 31, 2010

—

Assets for center

|

2,292,591,397

Total assets

|
|

Segment , Eliminated Total
Products of 1 Orhers %
vegetable & l\ j
fruit l ‘
|
Management benefit expenses | | (33,215,260}
i
Profit before finance costs and income tax \ 235,712,922
!
Finance costs ‘1 (56,953,563
|
. '\
Net profit after tax 1 178,759,359
Minority interest [\ 31,808,335
Net profit \\ 146,951,024
Fixed assets - net 2,447,997 977 \l 56,998,048 2,504,996,025
l
l
|
|

4,797,587 422

Geographic segment information

Unit : Baht

For the year ended December 31, 2011

Sales-export

Sales-Domestic

Eliminated

Total

Revenues from the sale of goods

and the rendering of services

1,980,171,876

3,218,541,568

(373.627,319)

4,825,086,125

Segment operating profit

341,325,828

1,210,513,109

(1,579,278)

1,550,259,659
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Unit : Baht
\ For the year ended December 31, 2010
Sales-export |Sales-Domestic Eliminated \ Total
!
Revenues from the sale of goods ‘\ 2.070,243,975 | 2,977,859,732 l (334,324,558 \ 4,713,779,149
and the rendering of services | | |
Segment operating profit \ 60,394,053 | 1,122,831,759 \l (1,328,373 \ 1,181,897,439

35. Financial instruments

The Company and its subsidiaries’ financial instruments on balance sheet are as following:-

35.1 Risk management policies

35.1.1 Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations. The
Company and its subsidiaries are exposed to credit risk primarily with respect to trade accounts
receivable. The company and its subsidiaries manage the risk by adopting appropriated credit
control policies and procedures.

Credit risk which arise from trade accounts receivable are not much, since the company has a
strict policy concerning the analyzing and approving credit for its customer and the debt collection
process is also closely tracked by the company. Besides, the major part of the subsidiary’s
trade accounts receivable are the famous firms.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amounts of receivables as stated
in the statements of financial position.

35.1.2 Interest rate risk

\nterest rate risk arises from the potential for a change in market interest rates to having affect

the value of the financial assets and liabilities of the Company and its subsidiaries.

The company and its subsidiaries have the significant financial assets and liabilities are
classified by type of interest rates, and the fixed interest rates are classified based on the
maturity date or the date of new interest rate is fixed if it is fixed before the maturity date, are
as follow:
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Consolidated financial statements

As at December 31, 2011

Fixed interest rates

Floating \ Non-
Within Over

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Current investments

Trade and other receivables
Available-for-sale investment
Deposit at bank used as collateral
Financial liabilities

Bank overdrafts and short-term loans
from financial institutions

Trade and other payables
Machinery payable

Long-term loans from banks
Long-term machinery payable

Financial lease payable

interest interest
1year | 1-5 year rate \ bearing
o
40 ‘\ - - 1
0.3 | - - -
\ - { - - 577
\ - : >
| ¢ ] ] ‘
.
|
936 \ - 302 - \ 1,238
- - - 552 552
- - - 69 69
- - 1,363 - 1.363
9 15 - - 24
4 3 - - 7

Unit : Million Baht

% Consolidated financial statements
i
|

As at December 31, 2010 J
Iﬁ Fixed interest rates J Floating Non- \ Total
fWithin Over interest interest |
1 year 1-5 year rate \ bearing

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Current investments

Trade and other receivables
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\ Consolidated financial statements Unit : Million Baht

As at December 31, 2010

Fixed interest rates Floating Non- Total
Within Over interest interest
1 year 1-5 year rate bearing
Deposit at bank used as collateral 4 - - - 4
Financial liabilities
Short-term loans from financial 715 - 97 | - 812
institutions
Trade and other payables - - - Lbh YA
Machinery payable - - - 59 59
Long - term loans from banks - - 1,337 - 1,337
Long - term machinery payable 15 37 - - 52
Financial lease payable 3 2 - - 5
Separate ﬁnahciél stgteniéﬁts ‘ - U’“t M?ltfoﬁ Baht
" AcaDeembersioonl |
Fixéd interest raxés i Floatmg  Non- | Total
‘Withi‘n'f Over ihtefest. ' ihter‘est o
: ~ 1 year _1—5 year rae | b‘caar"mgf__
Financial Assets !
Caéh and cash equivalents ‘ & 21 | - ol : - e i
Trade and‘éthér rétéivébles o T F) — | — | S 26 | 226 ‘
' Shor’t—term lOahs to felated parties - | 289 e s o — o ’k 5~' | 289
Avaitabte—for%ate invé,stment P . S " i S —  S ﬂ{ | 1
Fin‘an‘cyial liabilities |
Short,—termlloahs:from financial S 746 k KN R R | S ' Thé k
‘insti/tutio‘nsy~ o R ‘ | ;’ ; 1 !
Trade and other payables : 'k L e -L S '15:90 190
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Separate financial statements Unit : Million Baht
As at December 31, 2011
Fixed interest rates Floating Non- Total
Within Over interest interest
1 year 1--5 year rate bearing
Machinery payable - - - 4 —T
Long - term loans from banks - - 728 - 728
Financial lease payable 2 2 - " 4
Separate financial statements Unit : Million Baht
As at December 31, 2010 )
Fixed interest rates | Floating Non- Total
Within Over interest interest
1 year 1-5 year rate bearing
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 27 - - - 27
Trade and other receivables - - - 269 269
Short-term loans to related parties 274 - - - 274
Financial liabilities
Bank overdrafts and short-term loans
from financial institutions 370 - 2 - 572
Trade and other payables - - - 164 164
Long - term loans from banks - - 562 - 562
Financial lease payable 1 1
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35.1.3 Foreign exchange rate risk

The Company and its subsidiaries’ exposure t

purchase/sale which are denominated in forei

o foreign currency risk mainly relating to
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gn currencies. The Company and its subsidiaries l

hedged against currency risk by entering into forward exchange contracts with maturities of

less than 1 year.

Foreign exchange contracts of the Company an

2011 are as follow:

d its subsidiary outstanding at December 31,

|

Foreign currency | Bought contracts Sold contracts

Contractual exchange rate

US Dollar 509,622 17,449,454
Euro 0 120,000
Yen 60,000,000 0

+
\

T

(Baht per 1 foreign currency unit)

31.1318-31.2326 30.28-31.7258
42.6250 0

0.3925 | 0

|

The balances of financial assets and liabilities of the Company and its subsidiaries denominated in

foreign currencies as at December 31, 2011 are as follow:

\ Financial Financial Average exchange rate
Foreign currency 1 assets ‘ liabilities as at 31 December 2011
\ {Baht per 1 foreign -

\ currency unit) i

US Dollar \ 5,092,543 477 496 31.64 \“ﬂ
Australia Dollar \ 0 83,733 32.15 |

Euro \ 0 12,119 40.97 I

Yen | 0 127,315,000 0.4078 L

|

Foreign exchange contracts of the Company and its subsidiary outstanding at December 31, lﬁ

. v;

2010 are as follow: i;.

1

Contractual exchange rate ‘

Sold contracts

Foreign currency Bought contracts

UsS Dollar 873,423 51,532,860
Euro 500,000 0
|

Yen 119,000,000 0

{Baht per 1 foreign currency unit)

30.04-30.05 29.61-32.61
4067 | 0

00.3593-0.3627 0
|
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The balances of financial assets and liabilities of the Company and its subsidiaries denominateq

in foreign currencies as at December 31, 2010 are as follow:

Financial Financial Average exchange rate

Foreign currency assets liabilities as at 31 December 2011

(Baht per 1 foreign
currency unit)

US Dollar 6,203,170 600,660 30.10
Australia Dollar 0 144,755 30.67
Euro 0 38,965 39.87
Yen 0 158,100,000 0.3699

35.2 Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value means the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled,
between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction.

The methods and assumptions are used by the company and its subsidiaries in estimating fair
value of financial instruments are as follows:

Financial assets and financial liabilities held for the short-term maturities, such as cash on hand
and deposits at financial institutions, accounts receivable and payable, and short-term loans,

the carrying amounts in the statements of financial position approximate at the fair value.

Investment in Debt Securities and Non-marketable Securities Equity Instruments or that do
not have a quoted market price in an active market, presented the carrying amounts in the
staternents of financial position at their fair values, or at the net asset value attributable to
investments, or at the discount cash flow of the present value.

Long-term loans, which have the fixed interest rate, the carrying value approximate at their
fair values, calculated by the present value of the contractually determined stream of future
cash flow discounted at the rate of interest applied at that time by the market to instruments,
presented as at the statements of financial position. Long-term loans at fair value, which have
the variable interest rate or the nearly interest rate applied at that time by the market to instruments,

the carrying value approximate at their fair value, presented in the statements of financial
position.
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36. Commitments

Consist of : Consolidated Financial Separate Financial
Statements Statements
: i
{
2011 2010 2011 2010 !
Letter of guarantee (BAHT) 24,077,638 21,042,408 13,167,632 13,351,282
Letter of credit (EUR] ; 241,500 0 241,500 0
Letter of credit (USD] 8,675 0 | 8,675 0
Letter of credit (CHF) : 0 128,000 0 128,000
|
37. Approval of financial statements 1
These financial statements were approved for issue on February 21, 2012, by the authorized directors. \
|
|
|
i

L3 ET




S
& Neydsy jo a3aLinm
760'17L 8Y9°9€6 24 gewe LLY'STE'L | LLY'GZGL | seployaleyS | Ja.nioejnuey ANVAWOD 2179Nd L1TVHJSY 00diL
Auedwod pajeioosse 1820) ay |
0 0
602'04C L1TTLT suoijoesues} dnoibenul pajeuiung sso
602'0LE L12'eLT €101
(MET s EDoIBWY
JO PRIEIS palluN Japun paiaisibay)
{fasnj
(G&€) (7€G) 00°00L 00°001 GZ G Jeploysleys waby QILINIT ANVAINOD ONILINEVYIN 00dIL
Auedwod Aserpisgns ubiato) oyl
(.Q3LNA
sjusipatbu ANVAINOD OAMONYS [VHL, Alautiod)
LLE'LGL £vL'871 66'66 66'66 008'9¢ 008'9¢ Jopioysieys | jednnsdeulieyd Q3LINIT ANVANOD HO31019 00dIL
€6L'61L1 800zl 66°66 66'66 000'0§ 000'CS J1apioyateys {Auedwiog BuploH|  QILIWIT ANVAWOD 39vHIAIE 00dIL
sajuedwod AteipIsgns 12207 8yl
010¢ 110 01o0¢ 10T 010¢ 1102
- (poysour Anmby) . [endes areys diys
” SIUSWISIAU] % dn-preg -uoneRy ssauisng sweN

SJUdWalEIS JeidDUBUL] paiepijosuo’)

1yeg puesnoy} : Jun

s

156G

poyawr Lanba-sotuedwoo paieoosse pue AIeIpIsqns ur SUSWISIAU] “§ ]

I 'ON uﬂoaﬂuwuu<




151

TIPCO FOODS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

2011

NUAL REPORT

¢

AN

0 0 126'£G8 | L26'LS8
0 0 OLL'LY9 | OLL'LYS | €EYC mmwm LLY7'GZS"L Rw.mmm.ﬁ I3p10YRIBYS neydsy jo
181n)oRINUEn Q3L ANVDWOD 2118Nd LIVHASY 00d1L
Aueduwiod paieInosse 1800] 8y
0 118'01Z | L18'0LC [me s, esuauY
1O PaIRIS PaNUN Jopun pausisitay)
0 0 G ,mm ; 00l 00! G G 1apioyateys 1uaby {aSN} GALINGMT ANVENOD ONILIMEVIN 03dIL
Auedwiod Aseipisgns ubiaio) 3yl
[.O3LHAM ANVAINGD OAMONYS IVHL, Ausuiod)
syuaipaibu
0 v.., 18L'091 | LBL'O9L | 6666 | 6666 | 008'9E 008'9E. | Jaployaieys | 1eolnsdeLIRYd Q3LINIT ANVAWOD HO31018 00dIL
0 0 oob'6r | 66667 L6666 6666 00005 | 000°0G | Jepioyaleys | Aueduiog buipioH Q3LIWIM ANVAWOO 39VH3A3E 03dIL
, saiueduiod AJelpisgns 1800} 8uL
oloz | 110¢ 010 | 110T 010¢ 110T 010¢ 1107
Paa1221 (poyasw 1507)) . EES areys drys
puapIal(g SIUDUIISIAU] % dn-preg ~-UonePy ssaursng JweN]

s1uswaIeIg [epueUL] Nesedsg

1yeg puesnoy : yun

poyaaur 1500-s31uedwod PajeIoosst pue ATeTpISqns UT SIUSUNSIAU] “§ ]

7 "ON 1uswyoeny




~
~
o
N

.

3

Nomvww% | £57'786'C ﬁwmm.qom_w LL7YOL'Y9 780'780'€51 LI6'662'9 | V9L'8G7'0E | LET'EC6'BCL wawdinba pue 1001
918'95Y'€08 Zyl'L4L'T  |098'90E'8S | 860'LT6'LYL | 88L'99L'GEDL L6G'SYE'L | LLY'0LS'E0L 1206'L76'8E6 swidinba pue Asuiyoen
66L'EILELE 900'0LE (88'LTY'ET |8LE'GYO'06C | 67T 6LY 900'0LE LL1'G8Y'Ey | €CE'LED'ILE wawedwod pue buipying
£94'207'0C 0SL'66L"Yy | €19'€0T'91 G99'8L5'0C 0c7'86Z' | SEC'0CT'9L Jawdoieasp pue

uonenaudap psieNWINIdyY

9G0'SLY'860°Z | L67'4L9'0G | £19'008'6  |8LS'ILE'LL |8GELZT'986'L |S60'9LIILLY | EVE'60E6IE yLEL6Y'LE | 061'9L9'26 | 9E6'LBLTE9E 12101
286'196'87 £ZE'YLL GZT'6L0'E | 080'LG9'97 | 760'87L'EY £ZeYIz'T  |L8L'ELL'9  |0ET'685'8S SOIYBA
LY8'TIG'06 | 7L0'6EC 628'€LZ'| 9G2'50S’c | 9VETY0'8Y 160'462'08 | L26'8LE"L 080'G6G'Z  |€99'CLG'S | /85'650'9L auidinba 221jo pue ainjiuing
610'778'88 | 67E€TLL L £00'9Z€'c  [€86'957'8 | 069'887'C8 8G7'/GL'STZ | €6G'SEY'SL  |GGZ'8LE'L  |GI8'89L'0C | G6CLEE 6L Juawdinbs pue sjoop
¥99'/GG'9EL L | 0LE766'6E | 628'0S8'C | LOV'6LE'GT | 9LLW60'LLO'L | ZLY'VE6'TLE'T | 0L8'62C'ICE £80'82L'C | 207'€2C'LE | €8C'60C'0Y0°C wawdinba pue Asauiyoen
907'yY9'SGS | ¥0L'LZZ'6 | EE9'SLS £19'96L'8  |ZZL'L08'S8ES | EL&'6YT7E0'L |EL0'GEE'SS | BE9'GLS 6LL'L6G'6 | 7GL'T60'000°L awadwod pue bulpiing
206'c77'es |0 0 Z06'E7Y'ES 206'260'SG | 000°066 0 206'€0L"S juswdojansp puer
9€2'7GY 791 206'269'G7L | 612'G65'G8Z G88'G6L'99Z 1500 eulbLio-puen
S$19SSe JO 150

1107 IJsuBl] [esodsiq | soseyoing 0107 1102 IoJsuelf, [esodsiq | soseydsing 0102
ﬁoc& 9y} UT (3SBIIOI(]) ASBAIOU] ﬂ.oﬂum a3 Ul (ISBIIDI(T) 2SEAIDU]
siusw2lelg [epueuly A1eIedag SIUSWIDILIG [BIDUBUL] PI1EPI[OSUO))

weq : yun : JO 115U

1ou quowdmbs pue 1uerd isdoig ‘91

¢ "ON 1UdWOEIY




153

THCO FOODS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

2011

ANNUAL REPORT

(UOMILL 6¥1'L 1yed : BLOZ) UOMIIL £67' 1 1yed JO JUNOLLE 3L} Ut S|

SJUBLLISIEIS 1BIDUBUI PBleprosuog Ul junowe Afng ut pateisaidap asem yoiym ‘quauudinba pueueld Jo1sooayL | 107 'LE Jeausds( 1B sy

L£65°LYZ 706 Zy0°GE9'058 _nwm‘.m@oé@_m G20'966'705'T 18U "Juswidinb

; ; : ” pue jued ‘Auadoid j210]
0LL'G8L'lZ | (08L'0EZ'LL) GoLerEsL |SBISO00E | OLLGBLIT (£2€"51'06) S9L'6YE'BL | ZEL'686'TGT $5820.d U Assuiyoep
185'870'86 | (56€'809'7€) |0 EV8'TYS'L9 | 660'TLL'09 | GZ6'69L'LT {ler1osz'z) o ELE'S98'LLC |769'08L'EyL | sseuboud ui pue yisuesy ul s1assy
078'E1006L | 86€'LG7'0LL mww‘.wé.%m.m 665'528'801'
560’8901 29715751 | 6Bl 69€'€9¢ £97'1G7'G1 $)955€ 40 JusLLIedul) ssa]
wwm,,wou_ w%. 028'806'G8L Rm@m_.ﬁqw Z90'LLE' L'
;__ﬁ_émﬁm&_ﬁ 86¢'0LL'8 | 188'0LL'LOL |8ESZLE00Z'L ﬁm.%_m,ﬁx_e UTLYL'8L | YL618E'C6L | VL8 V06'L9S' L 12101
R“Eﬁ.@ | neviL |grveee |sloeesy  |6l6291s AUETZT | 96lTS | 1651528y sSpIYEA
710 ,mw,@ 08EW9Z'L  |OgE8LL'E  [yLO0EYY'LY oﬁ.@m.mo ;, TYTLLS'T  |2TYYE'8 | 986725 66 Juswidinba sa1jjo pue ainyuin

,_ ﬁ Hom I9jsuel], Tesodsiq $ISBYDINJ 0102 :om | Joysuely [esodsi(q saseydIn g 01027
pourad a1 ur (asB2103(]) aseardu] potrad oya ur (asearda(]) asesnu]
muCOEouwum Tw_uﬁ:wﬂmm vumuwavm wuﬁuauuwuw ﬁm_ucwcmm ﬁvuwﬁ:OmCOU

Weg : pun 1 JO 18ISUOD)

1ou 9uawdmba pue 1ue(d “radorg -9y

€ "ON] 1USWYORNY




(22°Zvp'GLS'T | 0LL°2S0°90V°C | LS SOL'OY VL6'78T 69 0£5°£0€°8SY'T | G06°€05°98 0 §99°€08°LLET
L9706 0L6 L €L8°LEE°LE6 L 66L°991°6¢€ 0 0/8°8£9°G68°L 0 0 0£8°829°658"L podxg-sores
6V0'8E6VYS L6TVLL VLY 8//°8€6 VL678L 69 00£°829°209 G06°€05°98 0 G6LVTLOLS JMISAWO(J-59[eS
2181 241 U} 2181 53 UL
ssauIsng swoout ‘1'°d XE1 JWI00U} ssouisng swooul ‘T 0'q Xe3 Jwooul
[erop parowoiy Jo 1goid 10u oY1 10§ Auedwod [eroL pazowoig 30 1goxd 10u 2aq1 105 | Auedwoo woyy
-UON] xe1 swoour Auedwod | woiy uondwaxy -uoN xe1 swoou {uedwoo | uondwoxy
WOy UEMO[Y WO1j SOUBMO[[Y
$SOUTSI(] PIIOWOI] $SAUISNY PRIOWOI]
010t 110T
s1udWwaTeI§ [epUEUL] A1eredag
e < Jun
SV L6LLELLY 06e°181°G/6C 661°99L°6¢€ 000°LEV 660°C GZL980°GZ8V 640°69L°€T9C 0 or0LLELOTT
071'789°666°L 810°84L°098°L 661°99L°6¢€ £0€°6€L°66 9E6°CT8L06"L 0€6°0£€°€8L L 0 900°cév Ve L 110dx7 -sores
620°G60'VLLT zeeeor'viL 0 L69°L69°666°L 68L°T9T°LL6%T o LgErors 0 ovo'rZ8‘9/0°C | JUSAWO(J-S9es
21BI 32U Ul 2181 oY1 Ul
ssaursng swooul ‘T O'q XE1 JUWOOUL ssautsng suroour ‘1'0’q XE) SWOodU[
e paroworg 30 1goid 10U 213 10§ KAuedwod [eloL, parouwrorg Jo agoxd 10u oyp 103 | Auedwod woy
-UON] xe3 swooui Auedwod | woyy vondwaxy ~UON] xe3 owoour Auedwoo |  uvondwaxy
Wo1j dUBMO[[Y UI0IJ 20UBMO[[Y
ssaursng Pa10WoL] ssauIsng Paiowoi ]
010¢ 110T
SIUDWAIEIG [EIDUBUL] PIIEPIOSUO))
Wed : yun

ssausng pa10owoi] € 10j 110dax sanuaady ‘7€

174 ‘ON uﬁwaﬂowuuaew




ANNUAL REPORT 2011 FIPCO FOODS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITFD 185

General Company Information

1. General Information
1.1 Company Information
Tipco Foods Public Company Limited (former name "Tipco Foods (Thailand) Public Company Limited”]
operates the main business in producing and exporting of canned pineapple, pineapple juice concentrate and
canned mixed fruits. Current paid-up capital is Bt 482.58 million.
Head Office  : 118/1 TIPCO Tower, Rama 6 Road, Samsen Nai Sub-district, Phaya Thai District,
Bangkok. 10400
Public Company No : 38
Home Page : www.tipco.net
Telephone No : 0-2273-6200
Fax No. . 0-2271-4304, 0-2271-1600
Factory 1 212 Moo 16, Tambon Aou Noi, Muang District, Prachuab Kirikan Province. 77210
Factory : 205/1 Moo 2, Tambon Pongyang, Maerirn District, Chiangmai Province. 50180
1.2 Subsidiary and Associated Companies

Tipco Asphalt Public Comnpany Limited

operates the business in manufacturing asphalt emulsion and distribution of petroleum products. Currently the
Company holds 24.33 percent shares. Total paid-up capital is Bt 1,525.48 million.

Head Office : 118/1 TIPCO Tower, Rama 6 Road, Samsen Nai Sub-district, Phaya Thai District,
Bangkok 10400

Tipco Beverage Company Limited,

operates the business as holding company Currently the Company holds 99.99 percent of shares. Total paid-up
capital is Bt 50 mitllion.

Head Office  : 118/1 TIPCO Tower, Rama 6 Road, Samsen Nai Sub-district, Phaya Thai District,
Bangkok 10400

Tipco F&B Company Limited

operates the business in producing and distribution of ready - to-drink beverage products. Currently the Company
indirect holds 50% percent of shares in TIPCO F&B Company Limited by TIPCO Beverage Co., Ltd. Total paid-up
capital is Bt600 million.

Head Office  : 118/1 TIPCO Tower, Rama 6 Road, Samsen Nai Sub-district, Phaya Thai District,
Bangkok. 10400

Factory - 212 Moo 16, Tambon Aou Noi, Muang District, Prachuab Kirikan Province. 77210

Factory ©90/1 Moo 7, Tambon Sanubtueb, Wang Noi District, Ayutthaya Province. 13170




Tipco Marketing Company Limited

operates the business of distributing agent. Currently the Company holds 100 percent of shares. The total
paid-up capital is US$1billion.

Office : 800 Liberty Bldg., Buffalo, New York 14202, USA.

Tipco Biotech Company Limited

operates the business of herbal extraction substance and agriculture business. Currently the Company holds
99.99 percent of shares. Total paid-up capital is Bt36.8 million.

Head Office  : 118/1 TIPCO Tower, Rama 6 Road, Samsen Nai Sub-district, Phaya Thai District, Bangkok.

Factory : 504 Tambon Prachuab Kirikan , Muang District, Prachuab Kirikan Province

TIPCO Retail Company Limited,

operates the retail business. Currently the Company indirect holds 50.99 % of shares by TIPCO Beverage Co.,Ltd
and 49% of shares by TIPCO F&B Co., Ltd. Total paid-up capital is Bt50 million.

Head Office  : 118/1 TIPCO Tower, Rama 6 Road, Samsen Nai Sub-district, Phaya Thai District,

Bangkok. 10400

References:

Company Registrar : Thailand Securities Depository Company Limited
62 The Stock Exchange of Thailand Building, 4, 6-7 FL.,
Rajadapisek Road, Klongtoey,
Bangkok 10110 Telephone: 0-2229-2800

Auditor : Mr. Pornchai Kittipanya-ngam, CPA No. 2778 and/or
Mrs. Suwanee Kittipanya-ngam, CPA No. 2899 and/or
Mr. Sanit Hirunpanupong, CPA No. 3652

87 Modern Town Bldg., 9 - 10 FL,,
Soi Ekamai 3, Klongton, Bangkok 10110
Telephone: 0-2382-0414

Legal Advisors . Mr. Tawadchai Jaranakranya
Ch. Chana Songkram Law Firm

52/3 Su-main Road, Bangkok
Telephone: 0-2282-2955
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Summary of Specified Items per Form 56-2 in 2011 Annual Report

Presented in accordance with the Capital Market Supervisory Board notification Ref. Tor.Jor.11/2552 regarding
rule, conditions and procedures for disclosure of information relating to financial status and operation result of
issuing company

Item Page

1. General Information 155-156
1.1 Company Information
1.2 Subsidiary and Associated Companies
1.3 Referred Persons

2. Message from the Chairlady 10-11
3. Report of Board of Directors 90
4. Report of the Audit Committee 91-92
5. Financial Highlights 8-9

5.1 Financial Data
5.2 Financial Ratios

6. Nature of Business 55-59

6.1 Nature of Business for the Company and subsidiaries and its operating policy
6.2 Earning structure

6.3 Trend of industrial condition and competition in the future
7. Risk factors 73-74

8. Shareholding Structure and Management , 75-85
8.1 Shareholders
8.2 Management Structure
8.3 The Selection of Directors and Managing Director
8.4 Management Team

8.5 The Management’'s Remuneration

9. Corporate Governance 32-54
10. Connected Transactions 86-89
11. Management Discussion and Analysis 60-72

12. Financial Statements 94-154
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